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Progress through ups and downs, sustainable development through innovation.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of Hengdeli Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “year” or the
“year under review”) for your review.

The year of 2022 was an extremely difficult year. The global
economy continued to be hit by a combination of factors,
including the spread of the COVID-19, the Russian-Ukrainian
war and high global inflation, which severely hampered the
recovery of the world economy. Mainland China’s economy
started off well in early 2022, but the subsequent recurrence
of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 severely
disrupted economic growth and caused great difficulties
for the Group’s development. In the face of the difficult
environment, the Group continued to adhere to the principle
of “sound, steady and long-term operations” and adjusted
its business to adapt to the market conditions, so as to
ensure the survival and pursue growth, and to safeguard the
interests of shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 the Group recorded
revenue of RMB1,259,579,000 (2021: RMB992,962,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 26.9%; high-end
consuming accessories business recorded revenue of
RMB630,330,000 (2021: RMB550,933,000), representing
a year-on-year increase of 14.4%; international commodity
trading recorded revenue of RMB408,956,000 (2021:
RMB327,061,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
25.0%; watch trading sales amounted to RMB220,293,000
(2021: RMB114,968,000), representing a year-on-year
increase of 91.6%. The Group recorded a loss of
RMB88,139,000 (2021: profit of RMB20,210,000) and
loss attributable to equity shareholders amounted to
RMB80,022,000 (2021: profit of RMB26,282,000). The loss
was mainly attributable to lower gross profit and foreign
exchange losses incurred by the operating units as a result
of exchange rate fluctuations.
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During the year under review, China’s economy was under
great pressure, and the high-end consuming accessories
business of the Group was also deeply affected. However,
the Group is stability-rooted and pursues development
through innovation. The Group has adopted various
measures to address risks and achieved increase in
revenue from accessories business. However, there was
no improvement in profit compared to the same period last
year due to the expansion of new projects and a significant
increase in labour costs and others.

During the year under review, in accordance with the
established strategy, the Group continued to carry out
the international commodity trading business. Due to the
ever-changing global political and economic environment,
the operation of the business fluctuated. While its sales
increased, profits had decreased compared with the
same period last year due to the fluctuations and drop in
price. In line with the Group’s new strategic direction and
the development of its international trading business, the
Group continued to promote in-depth development of its
international shipping business, serving customers including
world-renowned mines and China’s large-scale state-owned
enterprises, and achieved a new breakthrough. During the
year, the operation of the international shipping business
achieved outstanding results, laying a solid foundation for
the future sustainable development of the Group.

During the year under review, in line with the established
strategy, the Group liquidated its remaining watch stocks
and completely ceased its renowned watch operations.

The Group’s core values of “respect, commitment,
cooperation and innovation” have enabled us to build a solid
foundation for corporate governance and fulfilment of social
responsibilities. Believing that business coexists as a part
of society and prospers along with it, the Group, apart from
its efforts in achieving business results and creating brand
value, has been improving its social values by protecting the
environment, managing environmental quality, conserving
resources and developing talents. The Group also actively
participated in public welfare activities with an aim of
growing together and sharing with the community.

At present, from a global perspective, the trend of political
unrest is still obvious while great uncertainties over global
economy remain. However, the economy of Mainland
China is resilient, abundant of control measures under
macroeconomic policies. With the efficientive coordination
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of pandemic prevention and control, as well as the effects of
various policies and measures to stabilize the economy, the
business environment will enter a new phase. The economy
of Mainland China is expected to continue to recover,
leading to a general upturn.

Next year, in line with the new strategic direction, the
Group will continue to adhere to the principle of “sound,
steady and long-term operations”, and will leverage on the
environment of stable economic development in Mainland
China to keep abreast of the market trend and continuously
adjust and consolidate new business models while
maintaining the steady development of its existing business.
The Group will further advance the process of international
trade, continuously expand and strengthen the international
shipping business which is closely related to international
trade, and strive to steadily grow, hoping to become a
stronger participant of the international shipping supply
chain in the near future, and achieve new breakthroughs in
corporate development.

The Group will continue to adapt to market demands
and continuously enhance the service standard of its
integrated services for commercial space in both Mainland
China and international markets. The Group will adjust
the manufacturing of high-end accessories for renowned
watches while embarking on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories in other high-end lifestyle products
such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones, and
to expand its commercial space beautification services
to living space beautification services, thus becoming
an indispensable independent segment in the industry
ecological chain of high-end consuming accessories.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, suppliers, customers and
other business partners for their ongoing trust and support,
and to all our staff members for their dedication and
wholehearted contributions over the past year.

By order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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The directors of the Company are pleased to present to you
this report and the audited accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s business
was primarily focused on the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories, the building up of high-end
consuming service platforms, international commodity
trading and its related supply chain services.

High-end Consuming Accessories Service

The Group has a relatively mature industrial chain for high-
end consuming accessories manufacturing, mainly covering
from the manufacturing of watch, jewellery, cosmetics and
accessories and packaging products to commercial space
design, production and decoration. Companies are mainly
located in Suzhou, Guangzhou and Dongguan.

The two companies, namely “Guangzhou Artdeco” and
“Dongguan Born Talent”, mainly produce high-end watch
boxes and watch accessories for various types of watches.
After years of development, we have achieved great success
in all aspects, transitioning from low-end products to high-
end products, from simple processing to independent
innovative designs, and from techniques of purely handmade
to basically automated.

“Suzhou Henge” is a commercial space integration service
enterprise engaged in design, production, on-site installation
and after-sales service, comprising the design and
decoration for each types of counters, props and various
stores.
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After years of development, all companies under the Group
have achieved ISO9000 quality management certification,
which provides strong support for the manufacturing
of high-quality products; the companies have earned a
solid reputation in their respective fields, forming tight
relationships, mutual trust and interest sharing with
brand suppliers. A wide customer base covering China,
Switzerland, the United States and other countries in the
Asia Pacific region has been established. The application
of advanced information management systems, such as the
industry-leading ERP, BIM, and MES, provides practical
guarantee for efficient and compliant corporate operation.

During the year under review, due to the rapidly changing
pandemic across Mainland China and increased economic
uncertainties, downward pressure on the economy gradually
increased. In addition, the international market is ever-
changing and unpredictable. Our three companies all
operate in both the Mainland China and international
markets, therefore facing greater difficulties and challenges.
However, the Group has laid a strong foundation for
development through innovation. The Group has adopted
various measures to address risks. During the year under
review, the overall revenue from high-end consuming
accessories business continued to increase. However,
there was no improvement in profit compared to the same
period last year due to the expansion of new projects and a
significant increase in labour costs and others.
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Next year, the Group will adapt to market changes and
adjust such businesses respectively, further strengthening
the industrial management together with technical R&D and
innovation, taking quality as the priority and driving growth
by innovation. We will seek opportunities to conduct vertical
and horizontal industry integration of products, so as to
further improve our leadership in the industry. The Group
will focus on expanding the development in manufacturing
of high-end consuming accessories, and engage in deeper
cooperation with brands and international counterparts
in various ways. The Group will continue to enhance the
service standard of its integrated services for commercial
space in Mainland China and international markets. The
Group will also embark on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in other high-end lifestyle
products such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones,
and to expand its commercial space beautification services
to include living space beadutification services, striving to
become an indispensable independent segment in the
global industry ecological chain of high-end consumption,
SO as to build momentum for future development.

International Trading

During the year under review, in accordance with the
established strategy, the Group continued to carry out the
international commodity trading business, seeking a new
profit model and future development of the Group. During
the year, the international trading business mainly covered
the importation of iron ore, manganese ore and coal to
Mainland China. Due to the ever-changing global political
and economic environment, the operation of the business
fluctuated. While its sales increased, profits had decreased
compared with the same period last year due to the
fluctuations and drop in price.

Next year, the Group will continue to keep abreast of the
market and carry out international commodity trading
activities as applicable in a prudent manner in order to
lay a solid foundation for the Group’s healthy survival and
development.
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International Shipping

During the year under review, in line with the Group’s new
strategic direction and the development of its international
trading business, the Group continued the in-depth
development of its international shipping business which
mainly focused on global maritime transportation of dry bulk
cargo, such as coal, iron ore, manganese ore, food and
industrial salt. During the year, in addition to maintaining
good cooperation with world-renowned mines (such as
Vale and others) and large central enterprises such as
China Huadian, China Datang and China National Building
Materials, our shipping company established its first
cooperation with India’s largest coal trader, Libra Group,
and signed a series of voyage charter contracts, laying a
solid foundation for the Company’s shipping business to
expand its visibility in the Indian market. At the same time,
the Company also successfully commenced its first shipment
of Mexican industrial salt to China, opening up a new cargo
category for the Company. The Group’s shipping business
achieved rapid growth and outstanding results during the
year under review, contributing to the Group’s healthy
survival and development.

Next year, with the adjustment of China’s anti-pandemic
policy and the improvement of international fundamentals,
the shipping market is expected to continue to improve.
The Group will continue its expansion into the marine
transportation market of China and continue to provide
existing customers with better-quality shipping service.
At the same time, maintaining our prudential and
stable operating strategy, the Group will also target the
international market to explore new customers, new cargoes
and new routes to enhance the Company’s vessel capacity
and market competitiveness, so as to achieve robust profit
growth.
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Watch Trading

During the year under review, in line with the established
strategy, the Group liquidated its remaining watch stocks
and completely ceased its renowned watch operations.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financial condition, business
directions and prospects may be affected by various risk
factors and uncertainties. The major risks and uncertainties
for the Group are identified below. Except as stated below,
there may be other risks and uncertainties unknown to the
Group or not material at present but could become material
in the future.

Strategy Risk

The business environment in the market keeps changing
over time. Setbacks in economic activities pose a
particularly adverse effect on the sale of high-end products.
As a service provider of high-end brands, if our strategies
are unable to predict or adapt to the changes, the Group
may suffer from uncertainty risk. In this regard, the Group
will closely monitor the market and revise our strategic
approaches from time to time in order to put us on track for
healthy growth.

Commodity Risk

Currently, the Group’s business and operating results to
some extent rely on brand suppliers. If brand suppliers
no longer appoint the Group as their service provider, or
there arise quality issues regarding their services, there will
be a risk that the Group’s operating results may fluctuate
vigorously. The Group has maintained good cooperative
relationships with many international brand suppliers, so
that the risk of reliance on any single brand supplier can
be reduced, which leads to the continuous health of the
Group’s business.
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The Group is currently engaged in the international trading
business. Factors as price trends of trading products or
changes in customer demands are beyond our control and
any adverse changes in such factors could have material
adverse impact on the Company’s operating results.
Therefore, the Group will monitor the international situation,
the price trends of products and customer demands closely
to reduce the risks therefrom.

Operation Risk

Operation risk refers to the risk that losses will be incurred
because of the shortage or failure of an internal business
process, staffing or system, or attributable to an external
event. Managing the operating risk is, in general, the duty of
each functional department. The Group is of the opinion that
operating risk cannot be eliminated entirely and will have an
impact on our operating results and earnings.

The Group has issued guidance about internal standard
operating procedures, authorities and reporting hierarchy.
The Internal audit department will identify and assess
major operating risks and report any such risk to senior
management for appropriate countermeasures. Take
inventory control as an example, besides scientific
management and stringent controls on its operating process,
the Group will also make provisions so as to control risk to
the greatest extent.

Financial Risk

The Group’s financial risks mainly include market risk
and liquidity risk. Monetary condition, interest rates and
interest rate cycles may pose a risk to the financial position,
operating results and business of the Group.

Market risk refers to the risk that the Group’s earnings
and capital or the ability to achieve the desired business
goals may be adversely affected by changes in exchange
rates and interest rates, etc. The Group timely monitors the
relative foreign exchange positions of assets and liabilities
and makes appropriate adjustments to minimize foreign
exchange risk. Interest rate risk is regularly managed and
monitored by the Group’s senior management.
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Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group is unable to
obtain sufficient funds or realize assets, leading to failure
of meeting its contractual obligation when it falls due. In
managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flow and
maintains adequate capital and credit facilities to ensure the
supply of funds for the Group’s operations and to reduce the

impact of fluctuations in cash flow.

Talent Pool Risk

Recruiting the right people is an essential factor for the
development of an enterprise. Competition is intense in
the industry and regions in which the Group operates its
business. The shortage or loss of personnel with appropriate
skills or experience could pose a potential risk impacting
the Group’s ability to achieve its goals. The Group provides
competitive salaries and benefits as well as various
incentives to attract the right talent so as to satisfy the needs
of corporate development.

OUTLOOK

At present, from a global perspective, the trend of political
unrest is still obvious while great uncertainties over the
global economy remain. However, the economy of Mainland
China is resilient, abundant of control measures under
macroeconomic policies. With the adjustment of pandemic
prevention and control policies, the effects of various
policies and measures to stabilize the economy will continue
to emerge, making the business environment enter into
a brand new stage. The economy of Mainland China is
expected to show a further recovery, thus ushering in a

general rebound.
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In the new year, the Group will continue to adhere to the
principle of “sound, steady and long-term operations” in
accordance with the new strategic development direction.
Leveraging on the environment of stable economic
development in Mainland China, the Group will keep abreast
of the market to adjust and consolidate its business model
constantly on the basis of the steady growth of its existing
business. The Group will further advance the process of
international trade, continuously expand and strengthen
the international shipping business closely related to
international trade, and strive to grow, hoping to become
a stronger participant of the international shipping supply
chain in the near future, and achieve new breakthroughs in
corporate development.

The Group will continue to adapt to market demands and
continuously enhance the service standard of its integrated
services for commercial space in both Mainland China and
international markets. The Group will continuously adjust
the manufacturing of high-end accessories for renowned
watches while embark on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories in other high-end lifestyle products
such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones, and to
expand its commercial space beautification services to
include living space beadtification services, thus becoming
an indispensable independent segment in the industry
ecological chain of high-end consuming accessories.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the knowledge of the Company, there was no major
change to the relevant laws and regulations that have major
impacts on the business and operation of the Group for
the year. Also, the Group has complied with such laws and
regulations in all major respects covering sale of products,
protection offered by online platforms to brand suppliers,
labor standards, environment protection and anti-corruption
and bribery prevention policies.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial position.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB1,259,579,000 (2021: RMB992,962,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 26.9%; the
revenue from high-end consuming accessories business
amounted to RMB630,330,000 (2021: RMB550,933,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 14.4%; the revenue
from commodity trading amounted to RMB408,956,000
(2021: RMB327,061,000), representing a year-on-year
increase of 25.0%; the sales of watches trading amounted to
RMB220,293,000 (2021: RMB114,968,000), representing a
year-on-year increase of 91.6%.

Breakdown of revenue: (for the year ended 31 December
2022)

5 7% [l R
RE B BB OMEIRR -

WA
HE-_ZE-_—_F#+-_A=+—BIEE " K
% E U A $%151,259,579,000C (A R ¥ - T
F) (== = — 4 :992,962,0007T) © & & F
Bk EF26.9%  mimBEREXBZIKRAR
630,330,0007T (= & = — 4 : 550,933,000
L) REFRLE EF T144% 0 KR
Z 5 W A 5408,956,0007C (= T = — 4 :
327,061,0007T) * REAF R EFT725.0% :
KB 5§ 8 % 5220,293,0000T (= & —
— 4 :114,968,0007T) ' B®EF R EA T
91.6% °

WASH : (BE_E-_—F+-_A=+—H1t
FE)

2022 2021
=== - —%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR (F7) % AR (Fx) %
High-end Consuming Accessories S HEIRE 630,330 50.0 550,933 55.5
Commodity Trading ArEmE S 408,956 325 327,061 32.9
Watches Trading EHE 5 220,293 17.5 114,968 11.6
Total #st 1,259,579 100 992,962 100

Commodity Trading
REBmES

o

2022

o ar-
Watches Trading
EBIRE S
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s gross
profit amounted to approximately RMB94,174,000 (2021:
RMB113,867,000),
of 17.3%. Gross profit margin was approximately 7.5%
(2021: 11.5%),
percentage points. The decrease in gross profit and gross

representing a year-on-year decrease
representing a year-on-year decrease of 4

profit margin was mainly due to a decrease in sales price
caused by the unfavorable economic environment during the
year.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a loss of RMB88,139,000 during the
year (2021: profit of RMB20,210,000), representing a year-
on-year decrease of 536.1%. Loss attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to RMB80,022,000 (2021:
RMB26,282,000),
of 404.5%.The main reason for the loss for the year is the

profit of
representing a year-on-year decrease

decrease in gross profit and the foreign exchange loss
incurred by the operating units as a result of exchange rate
fluctuations.

Financial status and net debt to equity ratio

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial
position. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total
equity of RMB3,219,834,000 (2021: RMB3,272,463,000)
and net current assets of RMB2,064,563,000 (2021:
RMB2,035,339,000), with cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with bank of RMB1,322,888,000 (2021:
RMB934,813,000) and total bank loans of RMB81,721,000
(2021: RMB73,879,000). As at 31 December 2022, the bank
loans bore interests at floating rates of 2% to 3.7% (2021:
1.4% to 4%). As at 31 December 2022, approximately
67% (2021: 61%) and 33% (2021: 39%) of bank loans
were denominated in RMB and NTD,
maturity profile of bank loans is set out in note 23 to the

respectively. The

accompanying financial statements. During the year under
review, there was no sign of significant changes in the
Group’s demand for loans in a particular quarter.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total debt amounted
to RMB81,721,000 (2021: RMB73,879,000). The net debt to
equity ratio of the Group was zero (2021: zero) (Net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes total interest-bearing
It established
a solid foundation for the further business expansion of the

borrowing) less cash and cash equivalents).
Group.

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in financial and
cash management, manages bank credit availability and
monitors risks of credit cost centrally in various ways. The
Group maintains a good partnership with a number of banks
which provide financing facilities, and reviews its funding

liquidity and financing needs regularly.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in HKD,
RMB and USD. Therefore, the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risks. During the year under review, the Group
has been actively monitoring its foreign exchange risk and
will adopt a foreign exchange hedging policy for significant
foreign exchange risks.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had land and buildings
equivalent to RMB187,885,000 (2021: RMB194,937,000)
pledged as security for bank loans.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2021: nil).

Current assets

As at 31 December 2022, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,339,060,000 (2021:
RMB2,254,781,000), comprising inventories of approximately
RMB237,768,000 (2021: RMB597,505,000), trade and
other receivables of approximately RMB703,627,000 (2021:
RMB632,749,000), loans to associates of approximately
RMB67,273,000 (2021: RMB77,951,000),
equivalents and deposits with banks of approximately
RMB1,322,888,000 (2021: RMB934,813,000).

cash and cash
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As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 25% (2021: 15%), 58% (2021: 67%) and 17%
(2021: 18%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other
currencies, respectively.

Current liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the current liabilities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB274,497,000
(2021: RMB219,442,000), comprising bank loans of
approximately RMB56,799,000 (2021: RMB46,925,000),
trade and other payables of approximately RMB201,935,000
(2021: RMB157,156,000), lease liabilities of approximately
RMB10,802,000 (2021: RMB11,774,000) and current taxation
of approximately RMB4,961,000 (2021: RMB3,587,000).

Capital structure

The Company’s capital structure is composed of issued
share capital, reserves and accumulated profits. As at 31
December 2022, the issued share capital of the Company
was 4,404,018,959 shares (2021: 4,464,806,959 shares),
with reserves and accumulated profits of RMB3,140,286,000
(2021: RMB3,183,082,000) in total.

Significant investment, material acquisition and
disposal

The Company has no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year under review, except as disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
the Company did not hold other significant investments
during the year under review.
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THE COMPANY

During the year, the Group’s business was primarily focused
on the manufacturing of high-end consuming accessories,
the construction of high-end consuming service platforms
and international commodity trading.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
which materially affect the results, assets and liabilities
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the accompanying
financial statements.

DISTRIBTABILITY OF RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount
of distributable reserves of the Company was
RMB1,180,497,000 (2021: RMB1,350,438,000), which is
set out in note 28 to the financial statements in this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on, the
Group’s current and future operations, liquidity position
and capital requirements. The payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to compliance with any restrictions
under the Laws of the Cayman Islands, the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board will review
the dividend policy from time to time and may exercise at
its absolute and sole discretion to update, amend, and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any specific period.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summary of the Group’s results and assets and
liabilities in the last five financial years (for the year ended
31 December) are set out on page 81 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REPURCHASE OF
SECURITIES

During the year under review, the Company repurchased a
total of 60,788,000 (2021: 197,860,000) listed shares on the
Stock Exchange by way of acquisition from the market. The
total consideration paid was approximately HKD19,202,000,
including related expenses. The details are as follows:
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Number of Approximate
Date of shares Highest price Lowest price aggregate
repurchase of shares repurchased per share paid per share paid consideration
BB E iR 1 B & BOROBE CSNERESER CEASRHEEER BRBRE
(HKD) (HKD) (HKD)
(E#)
(excluding
related expenses)
(%) (BE¥) (T E7EEHEEF)
26 May 2022
—E__FHA=+NH 23,584,000 0.315 0.300 7,410,540
27 May 2022
—E_FRAA=++H 26,080,000 0,815 0.310 8,212,920
30 May 2022
T _FAA=1H 11,124,000 0,315 0,315 3,504,060

All the above repurchased shares had been cancelled on 23
June 2022, respectively.

As of 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,404,018,959 shares (2021: 4,464,806,959
shares).
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share award scheme

On 25 March 2015, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company to recognize
the contributions of certain participants to the Company
and to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Company.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid for a term
of ten (10) years commencing on the adoption date. The
Board may select any participants, other than any excluded
participant, for participation in the Share Award Scheme
and determine the award amount for the purchase of the
awarded shares to be awarded to the selected participants.
The Board is entitled to impose any conditions (including a
period of continued service within the Group), as it deems
appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect to the
entitlement of the selected participants to the awarded
shares. No consideration for the awarded shares is needed
to be paid by the selected participants to the Company. The
Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant under the Share Award
Scheme in a 12-month period shall not exceed 0.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
or such number of shares as determined by the Board from
time to time.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of
the tenth anniversary date of the adoption date or such date
of early termination (whichever is earlier) as determined by
the Board.

During the year, the Company did not grant any awarded
shares to the employees of the Group (2021: nil).
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Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
15 May 2015, the share option scheme was adopted
conditionally. The share option scheme of the Company (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted to grant options to
selected participants including but not limited to directors
and employees of the Group as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group. Subject to any early
termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on the adoption date, with a remaining
life of approximately three years as of the date of this annual
report.

Under the Share Option Scheme, subject to the discretion
of the directors, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Each option
has a maximum valid period of ten years after which the
option shall lapse. The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options (including share
options exercised and outstanding) granted to the eligible
participants in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options to such
participant which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares issued by the Company,
must be subject to separate approval by shareholders,
with such participant and his or her close associates (or
associates (if such participant is a connected person))
abstaining from voting. The exercise price shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average of the closing
prices per shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the grantee shall accept
the option within ten days from the date of the offer to grant
the share option and pay HKD1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the option.

As of the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 478,437,095 shares, representing
10.86% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company, and there was no option outstanding (2021: nil).

DIRECTORS’ IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year

INTERESTS

under review and as of the date of this report, none of the
Directors were considered to have any interests in any
business which competed or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group required to
be disclosed under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each
of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three
years. The Company did not enter into service contracts
that cannot be terminated without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) within one year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director has

entered into any service agreement with any member of the
Group.
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REMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION AND
DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the
Directors, among others, shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or about the execution of their duty in their
offices.

A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is in place to
protect the Directors and officers of the Group against any
potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
ORCONTRACTS AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

During the year, save as disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual
report and related party transactions disclosed in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements, no Directors
or any entities connected with Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, subsisted during the year under review.

Save as described in this annual report, during the year
under review, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/
EMPLOYEES

Details of remuneration of the Directors made in accordance
with specific basis during the year under review are set out
in note 7 to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the five highest paid individuals
during the year under review are set out in note 8 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the senior management during
the year under review are set out in note 31(a) to the
accompanying financial statements.

The remuneration policies of the Group are as follows:

7 The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the
employees is determined according to their relevant
experience, responsibilities, workload and years of
service in the Group;

— The non-monetary benefits are determined by the
Board and are provided in the remuneration package
of the Directors or the employees;

— The Directors and the eligible employees shall
be granted with options or awarded shares of the
Company as determined by the Board to be part of
their remuneration package.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme are set out
in note 25 to the accompanying financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of
each of the Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO); and were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Approximate

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of shares Percentage
(Note 2)

BEEpA EmMtE RHEE KNEDLE
(Hiit2)

Mr. Zhang Yuping Interest of Controlled Corporation

and Beneficial Owner (Note 1)

R A SEHEBEE R EREEA (HiE1) 1,597,556,501 A% (L) 36.27%

Mr. Huang Yonghua Beneficial Owner

EmKELA EmEE A 56,172,8008%(L) 1.28%

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan Beneficial Owner

TR LE EnEEA 5,920,0000% (L) 0.13%

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the [LIRXBEAALTRROFHE TR °

Shares.
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Note 1:Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Growth International Limited (“Best
Growth”), which in turn held 1,505,832,901 shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2022. During the year
under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping held 91,723,600 shares
of the Company under his name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang
Yuping was interested in 1,597,556,501 shares of the
Company, representing 36.27% of the issued share
capital.

Note 2:Shareholding percentage is based on 4,404,018,959
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors and chief
executives of the Company were aware, as at 31 December
2022, none of the Directors and chief executives had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO);
and were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As far as the directors were aware, as at 31 December
2022, the interests or short positions of the persons in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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B RARARD  BERDREEETHES
RIEFE S M S 5 HI 553361588k © RARARIA
FHEEz2ERMAZRENABHALTAT

Approximate

Percentage

Name of Director Number of shares (Note 3)
KWEDH

RS RS (H1e#3)
Best Growth
(E3:5 1,505,832,901f%(L) 34.19%
Mr. Zhang Yuping (Note 1)
RWFEE (ffat1) 1,597,556,501 A% (L) 36.27%
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (Note 2)
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (#7z£2) 437,800,000/% (L) 9.94%
The Swatch Group Limited (Note 2)
The Swatch Group Limited (#/:£2) 437,800,000/% (L) 9.94%

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the
Shares.

Note 1:Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Growth, which in turn held 1,505,832,901
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2022. During the year under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping
held 91,723,600 shares of the Company under his
name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping was interested
in 1,597,556,501 shares of the Company, representing
36.27% of the issued share capital.

LI RREBALRBEOHEZHR °

BiaE1 - sRE T oe EER EIE100% M B BITIRA -
MEER_T_—_F+_A=+—HBHEFER
A §]1,505,832,9010% B 3 /T I {5 : R¥#F
EERBBEFERNNEARBEFEADGR
1991,723,6008% - #hif1 * "I FRERARQ

B 171,697,556 501k M HEE = - (HE
TR ANH36.27% °
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Note 2:These 437,800,000 shares were held in the name of and
registered in the capacity of The Swatch Group (Hong
Kong) Limited as a beneficial owner. The entire issued
share capital of The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited
was beneficially owned by The Swatch Group Limited.
The Swatch Group Limited was taken to be interested in
all the shares held by The Swatch Group (Hong Kong)
Limited under the SFO.

Note 3:Shareholding percentage is based on 4,404,018,959
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company had not been notified by any persons, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Equity-Linked
Agreements” above, at no time during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2022 was the Group, holding
company of the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements which enabled the Directors (including their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age) to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisting during the year
under review.
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SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OR ITS
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there had been
no contract or service contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of
corporate governance practices. Corporate governance
report of the Company is set out on pages 40 to 55 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence
and development. For many years, environmental
protection has been regarded as one of its top corporate
governance priorities by the Company. The Company
implements a series of mechanisms and measures relating
to environmental management and energy conservation
in its daily operations to strive to protect the environment
and conserve energy, with a view to promoting harmonious
development in terms of economic, social and ecological
benefits, which has achieved significant results.
Environment, social and governance report of the Company
is set out on pages 56 to 80 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group has always been committed to advocating
the “people-oriented” core culture and strives to practice
an entrepreneurial spirit of “mutual respect, shouldering
responsibility, close collaboration and ongoing innovations”.
We will continue to utilise this philosophy as the cornerstone
of both our corporate management and corporate social
responsibility policies. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had a total of 1,565 (31 December 2021: 1,597) employees
in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and
Malaysia.
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The Group has always been committed to developing and
adding value to human resources. The Group implements
a standard recruitment system and allocates resources
to various kinds of training for our managers, front-line
service staff and maintenance technicians, which covers,
among others, the art of management, sales skills, brand
knowledge and service awareness, with an aim of enhancing
knowledge, marketing skills and service capabilities of our
staff.

The Group offers a competitive remuneration package and
various incentives to all employees, as well as regularly
reviews the structure of relevant mechanisms to cope with
corporate development needs. Options and awarded shares
are granted to the general management staff and associates
of the Company in recognition of their contributions to
the Group and as an incentive for their greater future
commitment. Meanwhile, the Group also offers various
other benefits to its employees, including pension plans,
mandatory provident fund scheme, insurance scheme,
housing and meal allowances.

Under a solid human resource assurance system, the
Group is enabled to create a high level of harmony among
employees of different nationalities and cultural backgrounds
under one shared vision.

The Group has maintained good and well-coordinated
partnerships with brand suppliers and various retailers.
Backed by our partners’ wide and strong support, our
operations have been able to achieve mutually beneficial,
harmonious and win-win development. During the year
under review, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers and customers. For
further details of relationships between the Company and
its employees, suppliers and customers, please refer to the
Company’s environment, social and governance report set
out on pages 56 to 80 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS TEEZEFREED

The percentages of purchases and revenue for the year REBEEERN  KEAEETEHEFHEES

under review, attributable to the Group’s major suppliers’ JHEREEDREHBEEERMABTD LT :
purchases and customers’ sales respectively, are as follows:

Purchase ERii
— the largest supplier — AR ER 18%
— five largest suppliers combined — AAHEREET 47%
Sales HE
— the largest customer —mARF 33%
— five largest customers combined — AREFEF 67%

The Swatch Group Limited constituted one of the five largest The Swatch Group Limited:&BH Hf&E A A
suppliers through its subsidiary. Save as disclosed above, MKAAMERE 2HFR Z— o BRILHEEESI - 8
none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders fE&E%E « HEE A T EMKRRE (RESHER
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% AR RRAFRHEESRA EREE=E) N Ltz +
interest of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in ZHEFREFHHESEE °

the above major suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION BFEBRERS

During the year under review, the Company renewed a REEFE AAGEE-—FHEWRERS -
continuing connected transaction. On 29 April 2022 the RZ-ZZZZ—FMWA=+NH ARFA (KEXR
Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and & RAKXEMBAR]) HENEREBERO AR
Shengshi Watch and Clock Group Ltd. (for itself and on 2R (AEXHFERRXHEMEAR [BK]) =
behalf of its subsidiaries, “Shengshi’) entered into a renewal EERKEHZE -  BEEHARRERFRATE
agreement of the master services agreement. Shengshi is HREFEERERFEEZEEB AR ° R
an indirect and non-wholly owned company of Mr. Zhang &@RBEH=H  AEER_T-_—_F—H—H
Yuping, the chairman and an executive Director of the ZZZT-_—F+-A=+—HEHERXRKEE
Company. Pursuant to the master services agreement, the KR EME R ARG R REERE - LR
Group provided the shop design and decoration services to & AR®440087T  ERBLESHAARKE
Shengshi Group and its subsidiaries from 1 January 2022 1,178.6&7T °

to 31 December 2022 with a cap of RMB44 million while the

actual amount incurred was RMB11.786 million.

The above continuing connected transaction is renewed in EE LMFERERFEAEBBTIREMNE
consistent with the Group’s past business and operation BRZERE—H  A2F (REEAFERERE
and the Company (for itself and on behalf its subsidiaries) MIB2AR) ;T L&KM @ FTEAR R RRE
entered into the master services agreement, which is in the ZZ8EHlz= -

interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

FRAERA RAT R AR 33



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEREE

Such continuing connected transaction is subject to
announcement, annual review and annual reporting
requirements but exempts from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements and has been annually
reviewed by independent non-executive Directors. The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transaction. The independent non-executive Directors
confirm that the above continuing connected transaction
is: (a) entered into in the ordinary course of business of
the Group; (b) entered into on normal commercial terms
or more favorable terms; and (c) entered into according
to the agreement of the relevant transaction with fair
and reasonable terms, which is in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to
carry out a review of the continuing connected transaction
of the Group in accordance with Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, the auditor has confirmed that: (a) nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has not been approved
by the Board; (b) for transaction involving the provision
of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to
its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction was not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (c) nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transaction was not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transaction; and (d) with respect to the aggregate amount
of the continuing connected transaction, nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the charitable and other donations made by
the Group amounted to RMBO (2021: nil).

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as
at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG has resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 6 May 2020. ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“ZHONGHUI ANDA”) has been appointed as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 7 May 2020 to fill the casual
vacancy following KPMG's resignation as the auditor of the
Company. ZHONGHUI ANDA has since been appointed as
the auditor of the Company.

The financial statements of the Company for the year under
review have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA. ZHONGHUI
ANDA will retire and is willing and eligible to offer itself for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA as the
auditor of the Company. Save for the above, there were no
other changes in the Company’s auditor in the past three
years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the year under review, the Company
appointed an independent non-executive Director and
proposed to make some amendments to the articles of
association of the Company, details of which please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 21 March
2023 under the title of (1) Annual Results Announcement
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022; (2) Appointment
of Independent Non-executive Director; and (3) Proposed
Amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association. Save as above-mentioned, there is no important
events affecting the Group since the end of the year under
review.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 9 May
2023 to Friday, 12 May 2023 (both days inclusive) to confirm
the members on the register of members who are eligible to
attend and vote at the general meeting. In order to establish
entitlements to attending and voting at the general meeting,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 8 May 2023.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuping (alias Cheung Yu ping) (58%1°F), aged 62,
is the chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
He is the founder of the Group and is in charge of the
Group’s strategic development and overall management. He
has over 30 years of management experience in watches
and other high-end consuming accessories manufacturing
and international trade industries. Mr. Zhang is also the
director of Best Growth International Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company, and the father of Cheung Wing
Lun Tony, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Mr. Huang Yonghua (& 7k %), aged 52, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of the
Group’s operational supervision and customer service. Mr.
Huang has over 20 years of experience in watch accessories
services and management.

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan (24 8), aged 63, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible for
the Group’s business including accessories manufacturing.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree and has pursued
further studies in business administration. He has nearly 30
years of experience in watch accessories manufacturing and
distribution.

36 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

TENERRERECFE
AARR_ZE-_=FRANA (EH=) ==
T_=FRA+-_H(EHR)(EEmBERE
ER) EERERMDBEER - NEEL2K
RASRRELEREZRREM - BFEE2M
BREREERELBEZER  FTERMDBP
RIREREBERZEETER=ZE=_=FRAN
B(EH—) TTHEE=1TOAEIAARZK
NBEEREBBFRRBSFELARAAT @ i
IABRAEFE2EANERISIFHE A L7
1712-171655 43 ©

EENEREEEBEHE

HITES

REIFIEL 6258 AABEFERMITES -
BRAKEABA  AEAEERBHERRE
BEE - REANTFEERHHEERREL
E BEREZFFTERREOFZIEELR -
RELENBARBETEMREEZEEARERAF
MES  UEAKETTHRARRKBZX

BmOKERLE 525 MITEF - TR _FTF—
FMALXEE  AEAEEXBEENEPR
e mAENERLEERX MNEE TFRB205F

FRIBSEE 635 BITES  R-TTLF
MAXEE  AEAEERELESTER -2
FERBANEBE  BEXBELEM - 208
THEERESAELRE - FREBMOFER
REEMBER D HER



Non-executive Director

Mr. Shi Zhongyang (${#F%), aged 48, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Shi graduated from Nanjing University in the
PRC and University of Goetting in Germany with a Master’s
Degree in Law. Mr. Shi joined The Swatch Group Limited
in 2000 and joined the Group in 2006. He is currently a
legal counsel of the legal department of The Swatch Group
Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin (2 # R), aged 79, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from the industrial
accounting faculty (T % & 5 X) of Shanghai College of
Finance and Economics (/8B & E8E). Mr. Cai holds a
Certificate for Professional Accountants (€:xt{tEEIREE)
in the PRC. He was senior financial management for various
companies including Shanghai Hualian (Group) (_E/&%EH
(5£[)). Mr. Cai joined the Group in 2005. He is currently an
independent director of Jiangsu Guotai International Group
Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 002091).

Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William (& % #£), aged 63, is an
independent non-executive Director. He graduated from
University of Edinburgh, Scotland with a bachelor degree
and a doctorate degree in Electrical Engineering. Mr.
Wong is currently a council member of the seventh Hong
Kong Legislative Council, a professor in the Department of
Systems Engineering and Engineering Management in the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a member of the 14th
national committee of CPPCC. He obtained the qualification
as a Chartered Engineer (CEng) in 1991, and is now a
fellow of the Institution of Engineering and Technology and
a professional member of the Association for Computing
Machinery. Mr. Wong joined the Group in 2005.
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Mr. Liu Xueling (8 £ %),
non-executive Director. He graduated from East China

aged 65, is an independent

Normal University in Shanghai with a doctorate degree
in history. At present, he is a senior lawyer in Shanghai
Tongyan Law Firm (L/&8MEHFEMSESFT). He joined the
Group in 2007. He served as an independent director
of Shanghai Qiangsheng Holding Co., Ltd. (listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600662) from 2014
to 2020, and has retired from the position.

Ms. Qian Weiging (/& 5), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director. She graduated from Massey
University of New Zealand with a master degree in finance
management. Ms. Qian has been engaged in financial
investment for a long time and has rich experience in
commodity trading. She had hold positions in China
International Futures Co., Ltd. and COFCO Futures. Co.,
Ltd.. Ms. Qian has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 21 March
2023.

Senior Management

Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (5&KB), aged 33, is the Chief
Executive Officer and the president of high-end consuming
accessories business of the Group. He graduated from
Western Sydney University in Australia with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Applied Finance and Management Accounting. Mr
Cheung joined the Group in 2012, and successively served
as assistant to president of high-end consuming accessories
business, assistant to executive director and executive vice
president of high-end consuming accessories business of
the Group. Mr. Cheung is the son of Mr. Zhang Yuping, the
chairman and executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Tan Li (% RE), aged 58, is the vice president and
secretary to the Board and is in charge of the Board office
and human resources of the Group. Ms. Tan graduated from
Nanjing Normal University (F5mREM& AEZ) with a Master of
Arts degree. She joined the Group in 2001. Before joining
the Group, Ms. Tan taught at the branch colleges of Peking
University in China.
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Mr. Ng Man Wai (2 X {&), aged 52, is the company
secretary and financial controller. Mr. Ng graduated from the
University of Toronto with a bachelor degree in commerce.
He joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Ng is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA).

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON THE
WEBSITES OF THE COMPANY AND THE HONG
KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

An annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022
containing all the information required by Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules will be dispatched to the shareholders of
the Company and published on the website of the Company
and the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in due
course.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their
continuous support and to all our staff for their dedication
and contribution to the Group during the year under review.

GENERAL INFORMATION

During 2022 and as at the date of this report, the executive

directors are Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman), Mr. Huang
Yonghua and Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan; the non-executive
Shi Zhongyang, and the independent
non-executive directors are Mr.
Kam Fai, William, Mr. Liu Xueling and Ms. Qian Weiging

(Appointed on 21 March 2023).

director is Mr.

Cai Jianmin, Mr. Wong

By Order of the Board
Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INTRODUCTION

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed
to maintaining high-standard corporate governance practice
to ensure transparency of the Group’s management, so
that the long-term development of the Group as well as our
shareholders, customers, employees can be safeguarded.
The Group has established a board of directors, an audit
committee, a remuneration committee and a nomination
committee that are diligent, accountable and professional.
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA has been appointed as the Group’s
external auditor.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the Company
complied with the Corporate Governance Code during the
year under review.

Composition of the Board

To maintain high-level independence and objectivity in
decision-making, and supervise the management of the
Group in a comprehensive and equitable manner, the Board
of the Group comprises three executive Directors (Messrs.
Zhang Yuping (Chairman of the Group),
and Lee Shu Chung, Stan),
(Mr. Shi Zhongyang) and four independent non-executive

Huang Yonghua
one non-executive Director

Directors (Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and
Liu Xueling and Ms. Qian Weiqing).

To ensure that the Board operates in an independent and
the three executive Directors have
Zhang
is in charge of the Group’s overall

accountable manner,
been assigned with different responsibilities. Mr.
Yuping, the Chairman,
management and strategic development, while Mr. Lee Shu
Chung, Stan is in charge of the overall business operation
of the Group, and Mr. Huang Yonghua is responsible for

coordination and supervision.
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The four independent non-executive Directors have
extensive experience in the areas of accounting, economics,
law, information and commodities trading, respectively, and
can adequately act for the benefits of our shareholders.
Their terms of office are as follows:

Cai Jianmin: 26/9/2020-25/9/2023;

Wong Kam Fai, William: 26/9/2020-25/9/2023;
Liu Xueling: 01/6/2022-31/5/2025;

Qian Weiging: 21/3/2023-11/3/2026.

Mr. Shi Zhongyang, a non-executive Director of the
Company, has professional expertise and extensive
experience in the areas of law and business management.
He will supervise the Company’s daily operation, and
provide corresponding opinions and recommendations in
a timely manner, which is beneficial to the standardised
operation of the Company and safeguarding the interests of

our shareholders. His term of office is 15/2/2021-14/2/2024.

Duties of the Board

The Board of the Company is accountable to the general
meeting and performs the following major duties: reporting
duties to the general meetings; executing the resolutions
of the general meetings; determining investment and profit
distribution proposals of the Company; formulating plans
as to the increase or decrease of the registered capital of
the Company; preparing plans in respect of the split-up,
consolidation, alteration and dissolution of the Company;
appointing and dismissing the general manager of the
Company and determining his or her remuneration.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during
the year under review, the Board discharged corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference,
or to be specific, the following corporate governance duties
during the year under review:

° reviewing policies and practices on corporate
governance;
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° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;
o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

° reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to the Directors and employees; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate
and sufficient information in a timely manner for their
understanding of the latest developments of the Group,
which is helpful in the discharge of their duties.

The management of the Company is accountable to the
Board and performs the following major duties: reporting
to the Board, executing the resolutions of the Board, and

completing all the tasks assigned by the Board.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has established effective risk management and
internal control systems to provide reasonable (though
not absolute) assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage (rather than eliminate) risks of failing
to achieve business objectives. The Board is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness.
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In order to safeguard the interests of our shareholders,
the Group has established an enterprise risk management
framework to provide top-down and bottom-up approaches
to identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key risks in a
proactive and structured manner. The Group has established
departments dedicated to the supervision and control of
financial and operational risks, including an internal audit
department. Such departments formulate annual internal
audit plans and are responsible for performing daily and
special internal control procedures in aspects relating to
business operation, financial reporting and compliance
control and in accordance with the targets set by the
senior management, which includes conducting audits
and examination of all aspects and at all departments
once or twice a year, so as to enhance internal control
and ensure the sound development of the Company. Such
departments will report the audit and examination results to
the audit committee and the Board for them to assess the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
of the Company, any significant failures or weaknesses in
internal control, and to take necessary actions promptly to
remedy any significant failures or weaknesses. If necessary,
such departments will follow up regularly on remedial
actions in response to significant internal control failures or
weaknesses.

The Company has established a disclosure mechanism
regarding the procedures of proper information disclosure to
ensure that inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

The audit committee and the Board have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and completed the annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems (including their effectiveness).
Based on the reviews made by independent auditors and
the Group’s self-assessment of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, the Group believes
that, these systems are effective and adequate. However,
the Group will continue to review the effectiveness of these
systems as well as further improve the internal administration
and control systems of the Company if required.
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ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE
MEETINGS

In 2022, a total of five Board meetings and a general
meeting were held by the Company. The attendance of the
Directors at the meetings was as follows:

Frequency of

EEMNERHERR

RZE-—F > ARrLBHEAREEEESS
FBBHAT ABRRAZ REEHFEAE
R

Frequency of

attendance aftendance at
at the Board Rate of the general Rate of
Name ®E meetings  attendance  Remarks meeting  attendance  Remarks
EZE8ER BRRAE
HERE HEE AR HERE HEE B
Zhang Yuping KT 4 80%  Abstained 1 100%
Huang Yonghua BKE 5 100% 1 100%
Lee Shu Chung, Stan R 5 100% 1 100%
Cai Jianmin EER 5 100% 1 100%
Shi Zhongyang Bl 4 80% By proxy 1 time 0 0 By proxy
TREIR Lk
Wong Kam Fai, William e 4 80% Personal leave 1 100%
X
Liu Xueling £ 5 100% 1 100%
Qian Weiqing BIEE N/A* N/A*
NEA AR

*

Ms. Qian was appointed on 21 March 2023

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate
and sufficient information in a timely manner for their
understanding of the latest developments of the Group,
which is helpful in the discharge of their duties.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introductory
session so as to ensure that he/she will gain appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business development of
the Group. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance with
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are committed to complying with the
requirements under the Code C.1.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code on Directors’ training so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the year under review, the Directors of the
Company attended relevant training in accordance with the
Listing Rules and provided the relevant training records to
the Company. According to the records, details of Directors’
attendance at the training sessions during the year under
review are as follows:

Updates on corporate governance,
laws and regulations
EER  EBERERH

Seminar/training
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Accounting/financial/management
and other professional expertise
Bt MK EERHEMEERE

Seminar/training

Name HA Material reading attending Material reading attending
SEER BEER

ERBE 3 ERBE 3

Zhang Yuping of B0 < v v/ v/ 4
Huang Yonghua HKEE v v v v
Lee Shu Chung Stan & s 4 v/ v v
Shi Zhongyang 2 {5 v 7 v/ v/
Cai Jianmin £ER v v v v/
Wong Kam Fai,William &7 # v v v 7
Liu Xueling 22T v v/ v/ 7
Qian Weiqging RIET TEA* TEA* TEA* TERA*

Not applicable*

Not applicable*

Not applicable* Not applicable*

*

Ms. Qian was appointed on 21 March 2023
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CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received confirmation from all the
independent Directors regarding their independence made
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that all the incumbent independent Directors have
met the requirements of the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and remained independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhang Yuping serves as the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony serves as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The Chairman’s responsibility is to
oversee the functioning of the Board and the strategies
and policies of the Group and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility is to manage the Group’s business. Mr.
Cheung Wing Lun Tony is the son of Mr. Zhang Yuping.

MEETING BETWEEN CHAIRMAN AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, one meeting was held
between Chairman and independent non-executive directors
of the Company without the presence of other directors,
mainly to discuss the impact of the year’'s political and
economic situation on the Company’s operations and the
Company’s future direction and other related matters.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company had adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code for securities transactions by its Directors.
After making specific enquiries with all the Directors serving
during the year under review, the Company has confirmed
that during the year under review, all of them had complied
with the standard as required by the above code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial reports of the Group in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 82 to 88 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit fee payable to the auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 will be approximately
RMB1,612,000 (2021: approximately RMB1,652,000). During
the year under review, in addition to the auditing services,
the Company’s auditors also provided the Group with
services such as taxation planning and due diligence. The
total non-auditing service fees were RMB275,000 (2021:
RMB334,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Messrs. Cai Jianmin (Chairman), Wong Kam Fai,
William and Liu Xueling, who are responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as significant or unusual items, internal
controls, financial reporting, risk management and control
matters, which included a review on the audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
interim report for 2022. According to the terms of reference
of the audit committee adopted and implemented by the
Company, the audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as significant or unusual items, internal
controls, financial reporting matters and duties of risk
management and control.
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During the year, the audit committee of the Company held
meetings on 22 March and 30 August 2022 to review the
annual report and interim financial reports of the Group
respectively. All members of the committee, namely Messrs.
Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu Xueling,
attended the meetings.

The audit opinions from the audit committee in respect of
the Group’s financial report, risk management and control
for the year are summarised as follows:

The 2022 financial report of the Company is objective in
all material aspects, and gives a fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2022 and the
operating results and cash flow in 2022. During the reporting
period, despite the significant impact of the pandemic and
external circumstances on the Company, the Board and
the management achieved a positive result by actively
responding to market changes and making adjustments as
appropriate. The Company’s operating results and financial
position during the reporting period were stable and well-
controlled, in particular, achieving significant increase in net
cash flow from operating activities, which in turn reflected a
strong growth in the Company’s internal operations. During
the reporting period, the normal operation of the company
was ensured by standard and orderly risk control activities.
Given the uncertainties, factors beyond our control and the
evolving situation stemming resulting from the sophisticated
and changeable economic environment, the management
of the Company is still required to examine the situation,
actively respond to it, and make timely adjustments to
ensure the stable operation of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, the remuneration committee comprises three
Directors including Messrs. Liu Xueling (Chairman) and Cai
Jianmin, being independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Zhang Yuping, Chairman and executive Director of the
Group. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to
the Directors and senior management of the Group, and to
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes as
set out in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
year to review matters related to the remuneration structure
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. All
members of the committee, namely Messrs. Liu Xueling, Cai
Jianmin and Zhang Yuping, attended the meeting.

According to the terms of reference of the remuneration
committee adopted by the Company, the remuneration
committee acts as a consultant regarding the remuneration
matters of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, while the Board retains the ultimate power to
approve the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, the nomination committee comprises three
Directors, including Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman), executive
Director and Chairman of the Group, and Messrs. Cai
Jianmin and Liu Xueling, being independent non-executive
Directors. The Company has adopted and implemented
the terms of reference of the nomination committee. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and succession of the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopts the nomination and selection
policies for the Board members, including the criteria and
procedures for appointment, by-election and re-election of
Directors.
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Selection and Recommendation Criteria

In determining the suitability of the candidates for Directors,
the factors the nomination committee and the Board should
consider shall include integrity, professional ability, business
experience, independence and potential contribution to
the Company and the Board and diversity in terms of age,
culture, race, and gender, under the laws and regulations
of Cayman Islands, Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations. These criteria shall mainly include:

° candidates shall be persons of integrity, honesty,
good reputation and professional status;

° candidates should be able to meet the needs of the
current Board structure, size, diversity and talent mix;

° candidates’ business experience and professional
knowledge and ability in the operation of the Board;

o candidates can spare sufficient time to ensure the
proper performance of their duties as a Director;

° candidates for independent non-executive Directors
must meet the independence requirements of the
Listing Rules, possess independent character and
judgment, and be able to effectively handle the
Company’s affairs in a manner that is in line with and
represents the best interests of all shareholders of the
Company.

These criteria are not to be exhaustive or decisive. The
nomination committee and the Board will take into careful
consideration any other factors that are in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders when selecting
candidates for Directors.
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Nomination Procedure

When the Board determines that it is necessary to appoint
additional or replacement Directors, the nomination
committee shall adopt such methods and channels as it
deems appropriate to find suitable candidates for Directors,
including recommendations from the Directors, shareholders,
management and external headhunters. After working out
the list of potential candidates, the nomination committee
shall draw up a shortlist of candidates for discussion by
the Board based on the selection criteria and other factors
it deems appropriate. The nomination committee and the
Board will ensure that the composition of Directors complies
with laws and regulations of Cayman lIslands, Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations.

Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election, the Board may recommend such retiring Director
to stand for re-election at a general meeting. A circular
containing the requisite information on such retiring Director
shall be sent to the shareholders before the general meeting
under the Listing Rules.

The nomination committee and the Board shall review the
above nomination policy from time to time to ensure that the
Company remains compliant with the relevant regulatory
requirements and maintains a good corporate governance
standard.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the
year to review matters related to retirement by rotation and
re-election of Directors of the Company. All members of the
nomination committee (namely Messrs. Zhang Yuping, Cai
Jianmin, and Liu Xueling) attended the meeting.
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DIVERSITY

To improve the performance of the Company, the Board has
adopted policies on board diversity. The Board believes
that board diversity can be achieved by taking into account
various factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, term of services and other
talents. All the appointments have been made based on
the Company’s business models and specific needs from
time to time, and candidates have been assessed with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board on objective
business conditions. The nomination committee will be
mainly responsible for identifying suitable and competent
candidates for Board members and assessing such
candidates in light of objective conditions. As a part of the
annual performance review for the efficiency of the Board,
considerations of the nomination committee will be balanced
between skills and experience as required for accomplishing
the business targets of the Company and diversity factors.
To achieve board diversity, the nomination committee will
discuss and develop measurable objectives from time
to time, and propose the same to the Board for adoption
and implementation. Generally speaking, the selection of
candidates by the nomination committee shall be based on
a range of diverse perspectives including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
term of services. However, the final decision will depend
on the strengths of the candidates and their prospective
contributions to the Board. The Board may improve one
or more diversified perspectives from time to time, and
measure the progress on such basis. The nomination
committee will review the policy from time to time, including
conducting assessments on the effectiveness of the policy.
The nomination committee will also discuss any amendment
that may be necessary, and submit amendment proposals to
the Board for approval.

The Board appointed Ms. Qian Weiging as an independent
non-executive Director on 21 March 2023, thereby
increasing the diversity of the Board.

Please refer to the disclosure in page 75 of this annual

report for the gender ratio of the Company’s employees as
at 31 December 2022.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Man Wai was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company in 2004. His biographical details are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”. For the financial year ended 31 December
2022, Mr. Ng attended relevant professional training for
not less than 15 hours in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration payment of the Group’s Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2022
falls within the following bands:
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

How the Shareholders Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting and Make Recommendations at
General Meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company,
any shareholder holding at the date of filing the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right to vote at a general meeting
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the filing of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such filing the Board fails to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed by the Company.
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The letter demanding the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting mentioned above shall be sent to the
principal office of the Company indicating the Board or the
company secretary of the Company as the addressee.

How to Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send letters to the principal office of
the Company for any enquiries indicating the Board or the
company secretary of the Company as the addressee.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, there was no significant
change in the articles of association of the Company.

On 21 March 2023, the Board proposed to amend the
existing amended and restated memorandum and articles
of association of the Company (the “Memorandum and
Articles”) to, inter alia, (i) allow a general meeting to be held
as an electronic meeting (also referred to as virtual general
meeting) or a hybrid meeting; (i) bring the Memorandum
and Articles in line with the amendments made to Appendix
3 to the Listing Rules which became effective on 1 January
2022 and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands;
and (iii)) make certain housekeeping amendments to the
Memorandum and Articles (collectively, the “Proposed
Amendments”).

The adoption of the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association incorporating the Proposed
Amendments is subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company by way of a special resolution at the
upcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
become effective.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company firmly believes in the importance of effective
communication with the investors and the shareholders in
attaining high-level transparency in the Group. Since its
listing, the Group has maintained close communications
with the shareholders, media, analysts and fund
managers through various communication channels such
as one-on-one meetings, roadshows, seminars, press
conferences, press releases, telephone communications
and emails, in an attempt to provide accurate and timely
information to the investors, so as to enhance their
understanding of sales of exquisite watches and production
of exquisite watch accessories, as well as the development
strategy and direction of the Group.

During the year under review, due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Company communicated with
analysts, investors and prospective investors in various
countries and regions mainly via telephone conference
to help them grow a timely and in-depth understanding
of the Group. Accordingly, the Company considered its
shareholders’ communication policy are effective.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a close
relationship with its investors and constantly improve their
understanding of and confidence in the Group.
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GROUP PHILOSOPHY

Following Hengdeli’'s motto a hundred years ago and
believing that businesses exist as a part of society and
prosper along with it, the Group has been shouldering
social responsibility in terms of environmental protection,
environment quality management, use of resources, and
talent development, all of which are contributing to the
Group’s healthy development.

Hengdeli has always regarded social responsibility as
an essential part of corporate governance, and attached
great importance to the benefits and relationships that its
corporate social responsibility actions generate among its
customers, employees, local communities, shareholders,
business partners and supervisory authorities. We are fully
aware that strengthening social responsibility is not only
crucial for Hengdeli’s future development, but is also a
compelling obligation as a part of Hengdeli’s participation in
civil society.

Over the years, the Group has been concerning ourselves
with environmental protection and committed ourselves
to achieving an ecological balance as part of our efforts
towards becoming a green enterprise. We have been
maintaining integrity in our operations in providing quality
and safe products to customers, which has earned us social
credibility and made us a reliable company. We respect and
value talents, and aimed at creating an environment that
offers a win-win development objective for both employees
and the enterprise. The care of our employees’ working
conditions and career development has driven us to create
a welcoming, harmonious and mutually beneficial corporate
culture for employees, in which we share with them the
success brought by the company’'s growth and thus
integrate individual, corporate and social values. We have
also been getting more involved in public welfare activities,
actively participating in a range of social undertakings
such as education and social welfare activities, serving
the community with sincerity and bringing new hope to
those in need. Hengdeli has been striving to establish itself
as a responsible and reliable company that customers,
employees, shareholders and society can trust, and one that
is committed to sustainable development.
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In 2022,
responsibility activities at different levels as usual,

the Group enhanced its social corporate

and further integrated the concept of social corporate
responsibility into its daily operations. We continued to
provide quality and safe products and services to our
customers, while also ensured the mutual benefits and
common development of customers, employees and
the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic
(the “pandemic”) has continued to pose unprecedented

the society. However,

challenges and uncertainties to the society, which in turn
has inevitably caused significant impact to the Group’s
operation.

Governance structure

The Group’s Board is responsible for leading the overall
development and operation of the Group, which includes
monitoring the strategies and performance of environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) of the Company. Good ESG
performance is an essential element for long-term corporate
success and long-term operations. At the level of business
operation, the Group has established an ESG Committee
responsible for formulating the Group’s ESG development
strategies, assessing and monitoring environmental, social
and corporate governance related risks, overseeing and
reviewing the work progress of the ESG working groups, and
reporting regularly to the Board to ensure that the Board has
maintained high standards of management and compliance
with regulatory requirements. This report has also been
approved by the Board in March 2023 and set out in the

Company’s annual report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to close liaison and ongoing

interaction with key stakeholders including shareholders,

investors, customers,

employees,

suppliers and

the community to gather feedback through various

communication channels to identify and assess the

importance of ESG issues. The communication channels with

key stakeholders include, but are not limited to the following:

Stakeholders

Communication Channels

\

KhESH
AEBHIRETZRNERRRR  KE
E -FF BB HEBREENERTHEER
KELY BESERAREREREER
fem BRI M EESCGRBERENE R - HE
ERNENBRREIZEFBIRIMOT :

Concerns and Expectations

MEREEE BERE X RHAE
Shareholders and Investors o General meeting o Return of investment
° Regular reports and o Information disclosure and
announcements corporate transparency
o Investor relations activities o Rights and interests protection
of shareholders and investors
R R &= J BRRRE J & B3
. EHRERLE J EERBERBRERE
J KREEBIKED J RERIREEESRE
Customers o Website disclosure and o Quality and safety of products
corporate brochure o Integrity in operation
o Daily communications o Corporate transparency
° In-person visit
B J At 2 5B I = E A1 J EmBERTE
. HE &l J WML
o EEFE J PEFEAE
Employees o Trainings and team-building o Benefits protection of employees
activities, seminars o Working conditions
° Employees care activities ° Career development
° Telephone, email and meeting opportunities
° Internal communications ° Salaries and benefits
° In-person communication ° Health and safety
(== . B RERES - e J & 8 Mz iRE
o BETHEEH o TEIRIR
. B BEKEE J EXLRKS
o MEBE A o o B2 4 A
J EHER . EREZ S
58 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL,

Stakeholders
FRiEEE

Communication Channels
BIBRE

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Concerns and Expectations
FERHAE

Suppliers/Business Partners

HEm,AERH

Supervisory Authorities

Business meeting, email and
visit

Bidding process

Regular reviews and
assessments

¥es ESEHLFES
RIZMAZ

E e RAHEE %

Annual report

Information disclosure
Participate in trainings and
seminars

Ongoing dialogues by email and
telephone communication, etc.

Stable business relationships
Resource sharing
Growth together

I=E A 1ER R
BRAZE

HKRKE

Corporate governance and risk
management
Good cooperation

EEHIE o FERE J hEERERAREE
J =R EE J RiF&E
o 2B R E
o B BEAASHEHE
Local Communities ° Media consultancy ° Environmental protection
° Annual report o Contribute to society
o Website disclosure
o Participate in charity and social
activities
Zinl J B J IRIBIRE
. FERE . ElEEtt &

. A 1 5R
. RENMLEEYLHE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In accordance with the “Guidelines of Environmental,
Social and Governance” set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules, the Group has, based on communication
with key stakeholders and its actual situation, assessed
environmental, social and governance issues that are
relevant with and material to its business from two
perspectives, namely the materiality of issue to stakeholders
and the materiality of issue to environment and society, so
as to clarify the overall materiality of each sustainability
issues and hence a prioritised list as the basis for the
Group’s ESG focus and disclosure.

EERMMG
SEKELETRAME-+LIRE HER
ERIERES ] HHEERE HERELE
B EREIZRHENERMEENERS
N BEENEAETNERENEEYIR
BNt eNEEMMEEELE  DRIHES
EXBGHAAEZMNRE e hERAFEE
TaHE  FHBRAREERIZENERER
HKF - femEHER R - (EREBEESGE
ERBBEHKE
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The ESG materiality matrix of the Group during the year [EIEEERN @ NEEESGEANZEBMEIT -
under review was as follow:

ubiH
it

siapjoysyels syl 0} soueliodw|
TR M 5 S o DK 2

Low Importance to the Company High
& HAQNBRHEEH =
Importance Issues
EEMHF B3]
Highly material issues mEZMERE 1 Products Quality and Safe Production
EmEEHAERS
2 Operational Compliance
BEARER
3 Pollutant Emission Control
VEE SUkz el
4 Fight the Epidemic Together
HREHE
5 Energy Saving and Consumption Reduction
HiREFEFE
6 Sustainable Profitability
AIHE R T
Moderately material issues FEEMEE 7 Fair Employment
NFEE
8 Employee Care
ETRAE
9 Avoid child and Forced Labour
B E T RS T
10 Anti-corruption
R&EF
1 Training and Development
I B B R
12 Technological Innovation
BRI
13 Supply Chain Management
HEEEE
14 Intellectual Property Rights Protection
FRE RS
Less material issues BREZMHHEB 5 Community Development
tEER
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We have identified potential issues of importance to the
Group through materiality assessment, and continued to
focus on material issues for monitoring and reporting by
disclosing relevant key performance indicators and setting
targets and plans, establishing appropriate and effective
management policies and internal control systems.

A summary of the Group’s 2022 social corporate
responsibility performance relative to various quantitative
KPls, with comparison to previous years, are disclosed in
the section headed “Scope of Reporting”. Information of the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
references, and sources of key conversion factors used
on these KPls are stated wherever appropriate. As far
as reasonably practicable, consistent methodologies are
adopted when calculating these KPIs or any changes that
affect a meaningful comparison would be stated.

Scope of Reporting

The report covers the operations of the Group and each
of its high-end consumable manufacturing subsidiaries.
There are no significant changes in the scope of reporting
compared with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” under the 2021 Annual Report of the Group dated 4
April 2022.

ENVIRONMENT

For many years, Hengdeli has made environmental
protection one of its top corporate governance priorities.
The Group implements a series of mechanisms and
measures relating to environmental management and energy
conservation in its daily operations aimed at protecting
the environment and conserving energy, with a view to
promoting harmonious balance and sustainable development
in terms of economic, social and ecological benefits.

BREE - g KBRS

BB BEEENG BEEEEENEER
B WEAKERBEERERER AILER
Nat8l BYBERBERNEERR R AMBE
BEEG HEMIEZRENREDER -

SE2022FH RS AE(CEREDIBRENDE
HEREERALEBEFOHRLE  HEHE
X [HREBRE] —£1 - BRELBRERER
BRE - 750K BREHEFENZE - UK
TERERZONR  HAEEEHINHA - £E
BATNERAT  BREMERHN-BUTA
AENEEAREEELEBRARNNE 1
ST RIEER -

P& ¥R 6 &
AFEREEBNENBSSmBEERELE
ELFNER  ERSELE2022F4H48 T
BEHEE021FHAMN [FRE  HEREA
= | e E L EE NE o

B
ZER THEN-—BEBAREREERLEERE
WEHZ— EREELETPRN—RIIREE
BRENE RS MNE - BT RRR
EMERDL  BMOARILBNE 8=
AR R MM S TR A I B ER o
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Emissions

Most of the Group’s emissions are produced from the
industrial production processes of high-end consumable
manufacturing subsidiaries located in Mainland China.
The branches and subsidiaries of the industrial group
are all in strict compliance with national and local
regulations regarding emissions of pollutant gas, sewage
and greenhouse gas and disposal of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste produced in the production process,
including but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law
of the PRC, the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, the Water Pollution Prevention
Law, the Air Pollution Prevention Law, the Environmental
Protection Tax Law, the Administrative Measures for Pollutant
Discharge Licensing (for Trial Implementation) and the
Environmental Impact Assessment Law, and has formulated
internal management systems such as the “Pollutant
Emission Management System” and the “Environmental
Monitoring Management Measures”. The Group is committed
to sustainable development goals in a responsible manner
with aims to effectively reduce various emissions in the
course of growing production scale and increase in sales. To
this end, the Group launched the internal self-development
and testing of the “water-based paint replacing oil-based
paint” solution in respect of industrial coatings with the aim
of replacing oil-based paint currently in use gradually by
water-based paint so as to effectively reduce the emission
of formaldehyde in industrial coatings. By adding industrial
sodium carbonate and other treatment agents, the Group
filtered, purified and recycled the industrial wastewater
to reduce the overall sewage discharge. Moreover, with
absorbent carbon adsorption and the installation of central
vacuum system, the Group also effectively reduced the
dust contamination in the production rooms. The Group is
inspected regularly by the Environmental Protection Bureau.
During the year, the monitored results of all polluting
emissions (including sewage and gas) for each of the
relevant factories passed the annual inspection and met
national standards, with no incident of non-compliance. In
the future, the Group will continually revise and improve
various environmental protection rules and regulations,
set scientific and reasonable emission reduction targets,
thoroughly implement pollutant emission monitoring and
upgrade production process, so as to achieve emission

reduction.
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In 2022, the emission of pollutant gas
follows:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

of the Group was as

BREE - g KBRS

—E - —F FEBERKENESENT

2021 2022

Type of emissions BEr I iESE 20214 20224
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (g) REALP(NOx) (72) 277,554 482,891
Sulfur oxides (SOx) (g) REAEY(SOx) (=) 1,180 1,416
Note: The calculation of emissions and energy consumption i HHERERBEENGTERE THRIMIRE

was based on Reporting Guide of Environmental Key BASREBUEZEERIES|FH (TR) °

Performance Indicators of the Stock Exchange (the same

below).
In 2022, the main sources of the Group’s greenhouse —ZE=-—F SEMAEREHNEEZZER ?E
gas emissions were the industrial production, electricity TLX¥4E @ &S HARMK  AREHE 4
consumption, office paper use, and company vehicles. The  HERZAT :

total emissions were as follows:

Volume (tonnes CO2-eq)

Density (tonnes CO2-eq/HKD
one million revenue)

ZE (ZEtREEM
Type of emissions e E (CEthEEm) BE-EHEATKR)
2021 2022 2021 2022
20214 20224 20214 20224
Direct greenhouse gas emissions  HEBZEREHNE 301 334 0.30 0.27
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions B AEREHNE 5,645 6,720 5.68 5.33
The total emissions of hazardous and non-hazardous waste HBEEEVMMNEEZEZEY —FT - — FAHHRN
in 2022 were as follows: 153
Volume (tonnes) Density*
Type of emissions HEHESE £ () BE*
2021 2022 2021 2022
20214 20224 20214 20224
Hazardous industrial waste TEEZEREEY 248 245 0.25 0.19
Non-hazardous industrial waste TEEZREEY) 223 222 0.22 0.18
Note: FE -
. Waste generated per HKD one million revenue 3 BEEBTWGETEEREEY
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To facilitate the effective implementation of 1SO14001
environmental management system, the Group entered
into contracts with relevant professional industrial waste
treatment companies, and hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes generated in the production process were
recycled by nationally recognised professional companies.
Furthermore, in order to achieve the goal of effectively
reducing waste emissions while expanding production
scale, the Group collaborated with a well-known university
in the UK since 2017 on a project to explore the feasibility
of transforming the existing sawdust waste from wood into
usable materials by mixing these waste with other materials.
After development and internal testing, we have made a
partial success in the trial, demonstrating that the blended
material achieved satisfactory performance in effectively
reducing the Group’s industrial waste emissions. In recent
years, the Group and the university carried out a new
experiment to explore the feasibility of using a new kind of
steel that advances the production level of automation. The
success of the experiment is expected to improve production
efficiency, reduce consumption and effectively reduce waste
emissions. In the future, the Group will continuously put
more efforts on its research and development to find suitable
ways, striving to reduce total waste emissions by 10% per
unit of output value within the next three years.

Use of Resources

The Group conducts operation and production in a
responsible manner and aims to save energy and reduce
consumption while developing business. Specifically, the
Group actively promotes the concept of environmental
protection and to this end, implements various policies
to optimise its working environment, which emphasises
green operations and green initiatives in the workplace.
The Group has adopted an eco-friendly approach to
the interior design of its office. Our open space designs
maximise the use of outdoor natural light and shared light.
Original furniture is retained, remodelled or reinstated as
much as possible during renovation to make rational use
of existing resources and reduce waste; and the traditional
high-energy-consuming incandescent light bulbs have
gradually replaced with energy-saving LED light bulbs that
enjoy higher efficiency and longer life cycle.
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The Group thoroughly implements a number of measures
designed to reduce emissions and cut down its consumption
of energy and natural resources, for example, printing
office paper on both sides and reusing waste paper, used
envelopes and kraft envelopes. Waste paper recycling
bins are placed in office to regularly recycle used paper
and old newspapers and magazines, and employees are
encouraged to read and send files electronically to reduce
printing. The Group actively embraces the concept of a
“paperless” office and puts it into practice, in which most
office documents are digitalised to save space and reduce
paper use. For documents after classification and archiving,
it is more efficient to search and use, while human errors
in the process can be avoided effectively. This not only
protects the environment, but also reduces the administrative
burden and the daily operating costs. The Group uses an
online office automation system to improve its administrative
functions, such as the filing and approval processes for
applications for business trips and expenses reimbursement.
It also uses an online platform to publish the Group’s
notices, policies and regulations to share information, which
not only improves work efficiency but also significantly
conserves energy. Meanwhile, the upgrade and integration
of internal ERP system and the use of innovative cloud
technology facilitates have enabled the sharing of data and
seamless collaboration among different departments within
the Group and the enhancement of corporate resources,
which maintains the business continuity of the Group and
improves its resource efficiency and competitiveness.

In addition, the Group encourages and implements remote
conference system, while also advises employees to use
public transport for business trips, and constantly reviews
and makes adjustments on the goods delivery process, so
as to reduce energy consumption and carbon emission.
A Group-wide campaign that promotes turning off lights
when leaving has been launched to integrate environmental
awareness into the everyday work life of employees.
Moreover, smart finger print attendance machines have
gradually replaced traditional paper attendance cards. Our
Hong Kong office regularly sends the coffee capsules used in
the pantry to brand suppliers for recycling, and encourages
employees to recycle and reuse red packets. The Group has
also formulated internal operational guidelines containing

BREE - g KBRS
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detailed requirements regarding water and electricity
consumption and the operating hours and temperature setting
of air-conditioners. In particular, the Group adheres to the
energy-saving policy throughout every production process
during manufacturing, continuously upgrades high-efficiency
and energy-saving equipment to phase out energy-intensive
production equipment gradually. Besides, the Group improves
production process, production environment and service
efficiency of equipment on an on-going basis to reduce
energy consumption during the process.

The water consumption of the Group is mainly attributable
to the industrial production of high-end consumable
manufacturing subsidiaries, and the water is sourced from
the water supply system of local government. However,
the water consumption during the production process is
not significant. The Group is committed to environmental
protection and sustainable development although it has
not encountered any issues in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose. At present, the Group has recycled water by using
water curtain booth which effectively saves water resources
for industrial use. By adding industrial sodium carbonate
and other treatment agents, the Group has filtered, purified
and recycled the industrial wastewater to effectively reduce
the overall sewage discharge.

An overview of resource consumption:

AFRE - KRETHIE T AERERES - HA
K AEARZEFAMBARERREEEFHAR
EoBHRERBTIRLAET  HMABRKLELH
RETHEFREENEERES - TEHTRSH
figERiE  BE o AABRELERE T
EELTE BELAERE  RARBEAR
o ARETZERETMEEREE -

SERKEIZRERNSHHEREELELRN
TRAEE  KEREREMEFHHKRL -
BAEBREHKNEREL TEKN - AEBEH
RRA RIS E AR L BB HRE - B
AUNRRRERAIFBEERACE - BATEHE
BERAEMRKEEMKBRBN  BUEHET
ITXRMAKERER - WRBRIMITEAREE
MEBEN AR B TELEERKERBESF
e ETRERMA - ARORE T 8IS KHEN

= °

BREREBAME

Total volume Density*

2021 2022 2021 2022
ltem Eog 20214 20224 20214 20224
Electricity consumption (kWh)  #&E (F ) 9,271,612 11,030,478 9,336.97 8,757.13
Office paper used (kg) MARME (F52) 247 347 0.25 0.28
Vehicle fuel (L) BHEDRNE (AF) 78,055 93,978 171.54 74.61
LPG (kg) KR (F7) 29,047 26,392 29.25 20.95
Water consumption (m?) FEK (LK) 107,959 105,121 108.72 83.46
Packaging materials for

finished goods (tonnes) RURK on B AR (IE) 364 349 0.37 0.28

Note: iE
* Emissions per million Hong Kong Dollars of revenue * BEEETWENHRE
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Environment and Natural Resources

Most of the Group’s emissions and use of resources are
produced from the industrial production processes of
high-end consumable manufacturing subsidiaries located
in Mainland China. The Group has been committed
to environment protection, energy conservation and
consumption reduction. In order to raise awareness of the
environmental impact from us and our activities at all levels
of the Group, we are constantly working to reduce carbon
footprint by various policies, measures and actions (for
details, please refer to the sections headed “Emissions” and
“Use of Resources” as set out above).

The Group aims for sustainable development by constantly
monitoring the environmental impact of its operations and
implementing appropriate measures to minimise harm to the
environment, while at the same time integrating the concepts
of conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the
corporate culture.

Taking Action on Climate Change

Prolonged climate change may induce rising sea levels,
reduced water sources and loss of biodiversity. The extreme
events arising from climate change such as storms, floods,
fires and epidemics may have a potential impact on the
operation of the Group. In the event of such risks occurring,
production facilities may be damaged and supply chain
would be disrupted, which will pose a risk to the Group’s
assets, damage our operation capacity and reputation and
cause direct business losses.
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Although such risks are hard to predict, the Group is
committed to continuously monitoring and reducing its
direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions in order
to reduce the potential impact of climate change on the
Group. Therefore, the Group has established Carbon
Inventory Accounting Procedures based on international
standards such as the GHG Protocol and local guidelines.
The Group also acknowledges the urgency of addressing
climate change and is taking every possible step to manage
and reduce climate risks. Furthermore, we closely monitor
international efforts towards decarbonisation, including
carbon neutrality target of Hong Kong and Mainland China,
to guide our low-carbon roadmap. The Group aims for
sustainable development by constantly monitoring the
environmental impact of its operations and implementing
appropriate measures to minimise harm to the environment,
while at the same time integrating the concepts of
conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the
corporate culture.

SOCIETY

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group has always regarded its employees as critically
valuable assets of corporate operation and development.
Under its “people-oriented” core culture, the Group strictly
complies with all local labour standards and relevant
employment regulations such as the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group has actively
implemented its Personnel Management System and
adopted a standardised recruitment system, in a bid to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and welcoming
working environment, protect employees’ rights to rest
days, statutory holidays, paid annual leaves and maternity
leaves according to laws, and build a fair, just and
transparent working platform, therefore to create a promising
development prospect for employees.
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Employment

The Group places great emphasis on upholding the basic rights
of its employees. It respects diversity in its employees and
adheres to the principle of equal opportunities in employment,
recruiting and cultivating talents regardless of race, religion,
color, nationality, gender or age. The Group also reviews its
mechanism and structure in different aspects from time to time
in order to adapt to the development of the enterprise and, at
the same time, to benefit the employees’ development. The
Group held professional seminars and job fairs from time to time
in order to recruit outstanding talents to join the Company.

The Group has adopted a comprehensive work assessment
management system, under which it regularly reviews its
recruitment system and its internal policy for grooming talents so
as to ensure transparency and to maintain fairness and equality.

The Group implements scientific remuneration management and
various other incentives, and regularly reviews its remuneration
packages and promotion opportunities for different positions to
guarantee their market competitiveness. To attract talents, the
Group also offers various welfare incentives to its employees,
including pension plans, MPF plans, medical insurance
schemes, and housing and meal allowances.

Further, the Group grants awarded shares and share options
to the senior management staff (including but not limited to
directors, executives and manager-level employees) and
relevant persons of the Company in recognition of their
contributions to the Group, and as an incentive encouraging
initiative and good performance in the workplace.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 1,565
employees (2021: 1,597) in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
other places shown as follows:
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No. of staff
EIgH

2021 2022
20214 20224
Mainland China ==l lVNpis) 1,555 1,525
Hong Kong &5 40 38
Taiwan/Malaysia - - Gkt 2 2
Total FEE 1,597 1,565
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No. of staff
BTHH
2021 2022
20214 20224
Aged 18-25 18-257% 118 93
Aged 26-55 26-555% 1,423 1,409
Aged 56 or above 56B% A £ 56 63
Total et 1,597 1,565
No. of staff
BTEH
2021 2022
20214 20224
Male 2 871 867
Female Log 726 698
Total Bt 1,597 1,565
No. of staff
BT¥H
2021 2022
20214 20224
Full-time 2 1,596 1,553
Part-time B 1 12
Total BET 1,597 1,565
Employee turnover rate %
ETRREY%
2021 2022
20214 20224
Mainland China ==liilvNpis) 27.0 30.3
Hong Kong and Macau 7R 3.1 15.8
Taiwan/Malaysia &8 BRI E 0 0
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Employee turnover rate %

BTRAEY%
2021 2022
20214 20224
Aged 18-25 18-2555% 59.2 89.2
Aged 26-55 26-555% 23.8 35.5
Aged 56 or above 56B% A £ 19.2 20.6

Employee turnover rate %

BTRAEY%
2021 2022
20214 2022%F
Male Es 241 34.1
Female f7g 28.2 42.7

The Group places emphasis on employees’ sense of
belonging to the Company, and is committed to providing
them with a pleasant and harmonious working environment.
In addition, the Group actively launches and implements
work that is favourable for building a harmonious relationship
between the enterprise and the employees as well as
facilitating the enterprise’s sound development, so as to
care for employees and strengthen their sense of belonging
and their solidarity with the Group.

The Group’s labour unions at different levels have the
tradition of organizing activities for employees, such as
holding birthday parties for employees and holiday dinner
parties, and arranging employees’ participation in social
sports events. These activities enhanced employees’
physical and psychological well-being and strengthened
their sense of belonging and overall team spirit. During the
year under review, due to the impact of the pandemic, the
Group temporarily cancelled most of the previous employee
activities in order to avoid gathering of personnel, but
will consider resuming in due course depending on the
development of the pandemic.

SEERETIZRARNEER  EHREE
ARG R TERE © I KEBEERFR
RMEESHEBNNBRERMASBRE
RECKERERNTIE AEET - ERE
ITHSRBRMEENERT

SESERTSAMABE TEDNEL - Hla
RETHERLRS HAFE MABET2H
HEEHERE - EIRMREATEIZHOR
e T ERBRLEFEENEE - B
BFEEAR ARBEHOFE REXABRE
SENBETEHARRLS  BEEERRBER
MBERE BERIKE o
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Health and Safety

The Group is deeply committed to its employees’ well-being
and organises regular health check-ups for them, as well as
providing various medical insurance schemes.

The Group maintains high manufacturing safety standards.
To provide its employees with a safe and comfortable
working environment, the Group ensures it is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and the
relevant laws of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and Malaysia, such as the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Fire Prevention Law of
the People’s Republic of China. It also implements internal
guidelines and policies on occupational health and safety
for different working conditions and positions to ensure the
health and safety of its employees. The Group purchases
labour insurance for its employees, equips each workplace
with first aid kit with basic first aid supplies, arranges
employees for regular participation in courses on first-aid
skills, provides employees with training courses and drills on
manufacturing safety, fire and disaster prevention awareness
at the Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries, equips
employees in the position exposing to occupational hazards
with protective gears in line with national and industry
standards, and checks whether they wear the gears on an
irregular basis. The Group arranges regular occupational
disease checkups and maintains health surveillance archives
for its employees. The employee handbook also provides
clear and comprehensive guidelines on handling hurricane
and rainstorm warnings, as well as accidents and work
injuries. The Group’s industrial group also conducts regular
assessments of occupational hazards in the workplace, and,
based on the assessment reports by third parties, improves
the environment of workplace through the transformation
of system engineering facilities. Guangzhou Artdeco
even installed dust collection alarm system to provide a
safer working environment for employees. All production
subsidiaries established dual prevention mechanism of risk
control by ranking and elimination and handling of hidden
dangers. The Group’s safety production situation continues
to improve. During the year under review, the Group had a
very low rate of work-related injuries, while the lost days due
to work-related injuries were 417.5 days (2021: 332.5 days),
and there were no cases of work-related deaths (the last
three years: nil).
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Lucky draw activity of the Group’s subsidiary,
Dongguan Born Talent
SETBR=EARAEIHELY

Materials management training of Award for outstanding staff of the Group’s
the Group’s subsidiary, subsidiary, Guangzhou Artdeco
Suzhou Henge SETEEMNFHEARLEE TR

SETEH/MNFER R EEE
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During the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
has immediately taken a number of pandemic prevention
and anti-pandemic measures, including allowing employees
to work at flexible time and place, granting vaccination leave
to employees, distributing personal protective and testing
materials such as masks and virus test kits to employees,
regular disinfection in offices and production sites and
adding body temperature detection devices, to make every
effort to protect the health and safety of employees.

Development and Training

Employee development drives the progress of a company.
The Group encourages employees at all levels to engage
in advanced studies or participate in training to achieve
their personal growth and professional development. While
developing its business and safeguarding the basic rights
of its employees, the Group also provides a platform for
employees to develop their careers, which includes offering
a comprehensive learning and training system that helps
them grow quickly and strengthens their sense of belonging.
The Group formulates suitable training courses according
to the needs of its different departments and businesses.
It also implements an internal recruitment system, in which
employees can choose their career path based on their
interests and strengths.

Every year, the Group offers comprehensive induction
training covering an overview of the Group's business,
information about business partners, product knowledge,
corporate culture and core values and business-related
policies and regulations to new recruits as well as
pre-service safety training for new recruits of factories to
help them integrate into the Hengdeli family.

The Group also provides its directors and senior
management with regular trainings, so as to maintain
continuing professional development and enhance their
knowledge and skills. The training includes regular updates
on rules for listed companies, and information about
relevant laws and regulations, corporate governance,
inside information, anti-corruption and bribery, internet
risk and international accounting standards as well as risk
management accountability for directors.
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During the year under review, the average training hours per
person provided by the Group were as follows:

Training by type (average training hours per person and
percentage of employees who received training)

BREE - g KBRS

CEFEEAR  SEFHEIFHENT

REBERIB D (FHEIFELEZZINE
THML)

2021 2022

20216 20226

Middle to senior management HEEEEAE  Average hours per person AR 17.1 7.8
Percentage EEa 78% 68%

Frontline staff —#RET Average hours per person NS 25.8 8.6
Percentage Bt 81% 100%

Other employees Hin s Average hours per person A& 233 10.2
Percentage Aot 88% 96%

Training by gender (average training hours per person and
percentage of employees who received training)

RIERE S CFEBIIRBREREINETH
L)

2021 2022

202146 20226

Male 3 Average hours per person NZ[EE 25.7 10.1
Percentage EEa 80% 99%

Female X Average hours per person ABRE 28.8 7.4
Percentage Bt 86% 96%

Labour Standards

The Group has employees in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia. The Group is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and all
relevant local labour and employment laws and regulations.
All of its employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.

The Group adopts a comprehensive work assessment
management system, and revises its recruitment system
and internal training standards on a regular basis to ensure
transparency and to maintain fairness and impartiality.

BT XA|
SENEESHERE AN BR AERSE
REGEEFM - RERBETHEES TIREMS
IHEEEL S RERERER  FTEESR
HBURBABZAFERERNTEFE -
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During the year under review, the Group was not involved
in any issues relating to child labour or forced labour. The
Group will continue to comply with the strict recruitment
process and internal management system and verify the
identities of job applicants to ensure that they are of legal
age, so as to deter child labour and forced labour.

Operation Practices

The Group, as always, cooperates closely with
manufacturers and suppliers to deliver quality and safe
products to customers, and is dedicated to maintaining a
high level of industrial production transparency and product
responsibility. Throughout its operations, the Group ensures
that it maintains and carries forward a good social reputation
by complying with all national and regional anti-corruption

and anti-bribery policies.

Supply Chain Management

The Group implements an efficient supply chain management
system that optimises links from suppliers, product production to
after-sales, so as to optimise the allocation of social resources.
Meanwhile, the Group realizes an effective link between
production and sales as well as a reasonable flow of logistics,
information and capital through an efficient information network,
and delivers quality products and considerate services to
consumers in a timely manner at reasonable prices.

The Group’s subsidiaries engaged in high-end product
accessories manufacturing have each formulated
corresponding code and management measures for raw
material suppliers, such as Supplier Development and
Management Procedures, Guidelines for Supplier Evaluation
Work and Environmental Substance Management Standards,
to set up entry standards for qualified suppliers. The Group
also adjusts the assessment criteria based on the continuous
development and changes of market environment and
requirements, and thoroughly screens and evaluates suppliers
to ensure that the materials purchased feature good quality,
reasonable price and timely service. Each factory of the Group
has a detailed supplier survey, assessment sheet, as well as a
standardised supplier management process and procurement
control procedure, and incorporates the suppliers’ sustainable
development, environmental protection and production safety
performance into the assessment criteria by signing a social
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responsibility commitment letter with them. When selecting
a supplier for raw materials, an assessment on products of
suppliers will be carried out by the examination and approval
department of each factory according to various criteria
including relevant national certifications (such as the ISO
quality management system) for the Group’s final approval. The
Group also regularly verifies, gives feedback on and evaluates
each supplier’s products in areas such as quality, pricing and
environmental protection. Those suppliers which do not meet
the Group’s standards will be disqualified.

During the year under review, the Group’s subsidiaries
engaged in high-end product accessories manufacturing
have a total of 152 suppliers, including 3 suppliers in
Europe, 3 suppliers in Hong Kong, 2 suppliers in other parts
of Asia, and the remaining of which are in Mainland China.
The Group was not aware of any major non-compliance
incidents or potential significant adverse effects of any
major suppliers in the aspects of environmental protection,
business ethics, employment and labour practices.

Product Responsibility

The Group has a relatively mature industrial chain for
watch accessories manufacturing, mainly covering from
the manufacturing of watch accessories and packaging
products to commercial space design, production and
decoration. Companies are mainly located in Suzhou,
Guangzhou and Dongguan. The Group believes that
providing quality products and excellent after-sales service
is a crucial part of its successful corporate presence.

The Group’s subsidiaries engaged in high-end product
accessories manufacturing carry out strict quality
management in line with national quality standards. The
watch boxes and other packaging products manufactured
by factories of Artdeco Group Co. Ltd. have all achieved
national FSC and 1S0O9001:2008 or ISO9001:2015 and
SA8000 certifications, and have also complied with EU
Regulation (EC) No. 1907/2006 (REACH). During the year
under review, none of the products sold or delivered by the
Group was recalled on safety and health grounds. However,
customers may submit complaints, and the Group will
conduct an independent investigation and deal with it in
accordance with the internal guidelines.
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During the year under review, the Group received 15
customer complaints (2021: 4) over product quality. Upon
timely communication with and explanation offered to the
customers pursuant to the Group’s customer complaint
handling procedures, they were satisfied with our
clarification and arrangements.

The Group attaches great importance to respecting and
safeguarding the rights of consumers. It is in strict compliance
with “Law of the PRC on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests” and other regulations and laws relating to sale
of products to safeguard the interests of consumers. The
Group also fully complies with the provisions of the “Supply
of Services (Implied Terms) Ordinance” and other relevant
laws and regulations in collecting consumer information
and privacy protection. In order to ensure that the privacy
protection measures are implemented more effectively and
comply with relevant laws and regulations, the Group also
reviews and amends its measures on safeguarding customer
data privacy from time to time. During the year under review,
the Group had no incidents of breach of customer privacy or
loss of customer information, nor did it receive any confirmed
complaints in connection therewith.

The Group has established and protected its intellectual
properties, including its trademarks and domain names.
Trademarks “Hengdeli” and “Elegant” have been applied
for registration or registered in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan,
Malaysia, Thailand and other overseas jurisdictions in
respect of a number of categories. In addition, the Group’s
domain names are subject to continuous monitoring and
renewal upon expiry.

To protect intellectual property, the Group also follows the
guidance including that of the “Copyright Ordinance” and
requires employees not to use or illegally download and
install pirated computer software. The Group’s IT department
is responsible for monitoring relevant matters.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any
violations of the regulations governing the provision and use
of the Group’s products and services and had material effect
on the Group, including product and service information and
labels, marketing communications (advertising, marketing and
sponsorship) and intellectual property.
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Anti-Corruption

The Hengdeli Group is dedicated to establishing itself as a
trustworthy, law-abiding enterprise. The Group abides by
applicable laws and regulations on bribery, fraud and money
laundering in all regions where it operates, including but not
limited to the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance, the China Anti-Unfair Competition Law and the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery. The
Group advocates a work ethic that insists on compliance
with law, integrity, honesty and professional dedication,
and bans any form of acceptance of advantages or acts of
bribery. Explicit rules concerning employees’ professional
integrity are communicated through the employees’
guidebook, training courses as well as guidelines, for
example, on conflict of interest, while the efficiency of the
Group’s entire internal management system is reviewed
regularly. Channels are also available for employees to
report on internal misconduct. The daily operations of the
Group strictly comply with established procedures; the
internal audit department audits each branch and subsidiary
regularly and timely reports to the audit committee while
implementing appropriate measures to ensure all regulations
are complied with. Further, the Group also commissions
external auditors to carry out independent audits. All
these measures effectively promoted the implementation
and the improvement of the Group’s regulatory system.
During the year under review, the Group participated in
an online seminar on combating money laundering and
terrorist financing organized by Companies Registry (Money
Lenders Section) of Hong Kong. During the year under
review, the Group was not aware of any violations of laws
and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that had a significant impact on the Group, and
not involved in any litigation on corruption relating to the
Group or its employees.
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Investment in Community

Hengdeli has always been actively involved in community
and public welfare activities, serving the community,
undertaking corporate social responsibilities proactively and
contributing to society through a variety of welfare platforms
with its own strength.

During the year under review, the Group suspended various
charity activities in which it had participated over past years
due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In the year ahead, the
Group will resume such activities as and when appropriate.

OUTLOOK

Come rain or shine, we have been moving ahead through
ups and downs. In an environment full of challenges
and uncertainties, we would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude to the Board of the Group for their continuous
care and leadership and the full support of stakeholders. In
the future, we will continue to uphold the principle of being
responsible for our customers, employees, shareholders and
the society, and will seek and capture opportunities to strive
for a harmonious and sustainable development between
the Company and the society, the Company and the
environment, as well as the Company and all related parties
to make our due contributions for the society.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PG5 R

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=1t—HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
RESULTS E —E-C T  ZEZTF  E-NEF 2 \F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IR ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR
Note (ii) Note (i)
Bz (i) Bz (i)

Revenue WA 1,259,579 992,962 1,219,856 2,417,181 2,687,248
(Loss)/profit before taxation AT (B1R),/ w5 (87,981) 18,701 (354,200) (337,042) 103,681
Income tax (expense)/credit  FiEH (B%),/

Eeinsa) (158) 1,509 (32,324) 12,925 (24,432)

(Loss)/profit for the year EE (B1) /5 (88,139) 20,210 (386,524)  (324,117) 79,249

Attributable to: FE{S

Equity shareholders /NGl
of the Company BEA (80,022) 26,282 (383,076) (332,520) 68,746
Non-controlling interests I e (8,117) (6,072) (3,448) 8,403 10,503
(Loss)/profit for the year E5 (F1R) /%A CEREL) 20,210 (386,524) (324,117) 79,249
As at 31 December
Wt=A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAE ey T B2 —BNF —BN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IS ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRH

Total assets BERRE 3,525,795 3,531,392 3,628,461 4,641,068 4,920,029

Total liabilities BfEEE 305,961 258,929 188,651 659,481 472,340

Net assets BEFSE 3,219,834 3,272,463 3,439,810 3,981,587 4,447,689

Total equity attributable ARARRAD

to equity shareholders A AR
of the Company gyt 3,161,540 3,204,598 3,366,694 3,894,615 4,369,451

Non-controlling interests R = 58,294 67,865 73,116 86,972 78,238

Total equity BmA 3,219,834 3,272,463 3,439,810 3,981,587 4,447 689

Note: FTEE -

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 (i) AX%@EJ‘E’%:%—)\E—H—\E EpNiYE
on 1 January 2018. Under the transition method chosen, BEMBEMEEAR 155 M EEMHRE
comparative information is not restated, hence the %E'J%Q%ﬁ o IRIBFTERAIBE 750K - L
Summary has not been prepared on a consistent basis. BRNEEY - Bt - AEB W ARIE B

B EAERE o

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 on 1 January (i) ~ AKEER=F—N%— 7 —HERMMEE
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under ET%E??E?%E)Z%FH E\;ﬁﬂﬁf%i&%ﬁﬂ'J%16
this approach, comparative information is not restated. 5 o ML AR T - LERER I EET -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HENGDELI HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 89 to 221, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”),
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe

and we have fulfilled our other ethical

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

i Goodwill and Property, Plant and Equipment

Refer to Notes 11 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group is required to test the amount of goodwill
for impairment. The Group is also required to test
the amount of property, plant and equipment for
impairment when there is an indication that the
assets may be impaired. These impairment tests
are significant to our audit because the balances
of goodwill and property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB52,014,000 and RMB512,032,000
as at 31 December 2022, respectively, are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment tests involve application
of judgement and are based on assumptions and
estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the identification of the related cash
generating units;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash
flow projections;

- In respect of properties located in Taiwan,
obtaining the external valuation report,
discussing with external valuer and challenging
the valuation process, methodologies used
and market evidence to support significant
judgements and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations and valuation model;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions; and

- Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment tests for
goodwill and property, plant and equipment are
supported by the available evidence.

Trade receivables

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our
audit because the balance of trade receivables of
RMB342,832,000 as at 31 December 2022 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and
transaction history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Checking the computation of the amounts of
expected credit loss allowances;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade
receivables is supported by the available evidence.

Other receivables

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the advance to third parties for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance on advance to third
parties of RMB104,570,000 with interest receivables
of RMB5,227,000 as at 31 December 2022 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on
granting loans limits and repayment periods to
borrowers;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and
transaction history with the borrowers;

- Assessing the value of the collateral;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
borrowers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the loans;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the borrowers;
and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for other
receivables is supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in
the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does

not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’ S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description 1of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA’s website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P07268

Hong Kong
21 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

N RS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE —Z——F+ - F=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#Z51)

2021
—T-—F
(Restated)
(#&=51)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat ARBT T ARETTT

Continuing operations SEREER
Revenue A 5] 1,039,286 877,994
Cost of sales SHE KA (915,693) (740,079)
Gross profit EF 123,593 137,915
Other revenue H A 4 32,033 35,822
Other net loss Hfth B 18 58 4 (71,691) (1,377)
Distribution costs 7 SER AN (55,481) (52,532)
Administrative expenses THER (133,323) (118,238)
(Loss)/profit from operations g (&) R8T (104,869) 1,590
Share of profits of associates JE (R B AS N T A 76,457 50,997
Finance costs B TS B AN 5(a) (3,288) (2,909)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiAl (BE),aF 5 (31,700) 49,678
Income tax expense FriSFim X 6 (2,970) (392)
(Loss)/profit for the year from REFELCEEBHN

continuing operations FE (F58) &5 49,286
Discontinued operations BRI R 30
Loss for the year from RE BRI EFEBR

discontinued operations FEEE (53,469) (29,076)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (F1B),/=F (CEREKL)) 20,210
The notes on pages 99 to 221 form part of these financial $F99E 2218 M FEBUL S /K — 5 - fE

statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the
year are set out in note 28(b).

NARRB D EE AEBEFEEHN 2R EFE
K EE28(b) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

FEAE :
Zlﬂﬂﬁ}?ﬁﬁ)\
. %«M%ﬁ%
- E%%JH‘“%%W

Attributable to:
Non-controlling interests
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

FEfh -
IR
-~ REREREK
- ERIERER

(Loss)/profit for the year

FE (BR) %A

Basic and diluted (loss)/
earnings per share

— Continuing operations

— Discontinued operations

BREAREE
(&#'),/ B

— HEREER

The notes on pages 99 to 221 form part of these financial

statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity

shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 28(b).
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2021
ol T 1=
(Restated)
(&&&E75)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ik ARET T ARBETIT
55,358
(29,076)
26,282
(6,072)
(8,117) (6,072)
(88,139) 20,210

10
RMB (0.006) RMBO0.012
AR #(0.006)7T AR#0.0127C
RMB (0.012) RMB(0.006)
AR#(0.012)7t NEEI(ON)Yw
RMB (0.018) RMB0.006
AK#(0.018) T AR¥0.0067T
FIOE221 B Z MBI ET MK —HD ° &
NARRBIROFHE ABIEFE &R 2R EFE

R EE28(b) °



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ar e SO T AR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE —Z——F+ - F=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARBZ27)

2021
= = =
(Restated)
(F&E5)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiF ARET T AREFTT
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8) &7 (88,139) 20,210
Other comprehensive income for FEHEM2ERA (BER
the year (after tax and reclassification BN ERER)
adjustments) 9(a)
ltems that may be reclassified BERAIReEM D BEEBR
subsequently to profit or loss: BA :
Release of exchange differences on HENBRRZIELEZS
disposal of subsidiaries iR 30
Exchange differences on translation BRE TGN B A BB R
of overseas subsidiaries’ financial RIMEEZEL =5
statements 109,319 (39,325)
Share of associates exchange BEGINETS R E(EB &
differences on translating foreign N AE =R
operations 7,163 (747)
116,482 (40,042)

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation
of equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Exchange differences on translation
of equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Exchange differences on translation of
the Company'’s financial statements

BErlteEsHEBAns
IHE :

BEEMEERAEAA
B E2ZBRARE -2
REFBZEHFE (T
A AER) (195,425) (60,485)

BREBBEMEEBAR
ARBEFEZBRARE
FTE4 ZE X =25

41,156 (9,516)

BRE AR AR B FTE

A2 BE =R 89,889 (28,876)

(64,380) (98,877)

Total comprehensive income for the year

FEZHBALE (36,037) (118,709)

The notes on pages 99 to 221 form part of these financial £99Z 2218 2 B It EHEHME—HH o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ak o 1R S A 2 T A SR

Attributable to: Feth
Owners of the Company RARHEB A
— continuing operations —RBBREER
— discontinued operations — BRIEREER
Attributable to: AL
Non-controlling interests FERER
— continuing operations —RBRBLEER
— discontinued operations — BRIEEEER
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEUAEZE

The notes on pages 99 to 221 form part of these financial

statements.
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RMB’000
ARBT T

(8,307)

(8,307)

(36,037)

2021
.
(Restated)

(F2&E7))
RMB’000
AREFTT

(78,363)
(33,895)

(112,258)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR e B IR L3

As at 31 December 2022 A—Z - —#F+_-H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#Z51)

2022 2021
=== e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T ARBEFIT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment properties KREWMZ 11 126,694 130,376
Property, plant and equipment Y12 - M= Mk iE 11 512,032 515,745
638,726 646,121
Intangible assets | AE 12 3,415 2,861
Goodwill EE= 13 52,014 49,237
Interests in associates REEE N T 2w 15 132,780 51,407
Other investments HMigE 16 355,331 525,064
Prepayment and deposits TBNRIBERIES 18 1,748 1,598
Deferred tax assets BLEFIREE 27(b)(i) 2,721 323
1,186,735 1,276,611
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 17 237,768 597,505
Trade and other receivables FEUR B 5 BR 3k N EL A e g 718 18 703,627 632,749
Loans to associates REBES N2 ER 19 67,273 77,951
Other investments Hitnig & 16 7,336 11,585
Current tax recoverable 7N ER A] Y (3] £ 38 27(a) 168 178
Deposits with banks IRITIFER 20 272,701 273,796
Cash and cash equivalents HeERIFSEEY 21 1,050,187 661,017
2,339,060 2,254,781
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables and  FE{3 5 B8R 3% % B fib JE <t
contract liabilities REAREHEE 22 201,935 157,156
Bank loans IRITER 23 56,799 46,925
Lease liabilities HERE 24 10,802 11,774
Current taxation R Ef FE S AR TR 27(a) 4,961 3,587
274,497 219,442
Net current assets REEEFE 2,064,563 2,035,339
Total assets less current liabilities #2&ERABEE 3,251,298 3,311,950
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Aok 1 B B IR L A

Note
Kt
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank loans RITEXR 23
Lease liabilities HEEE 24
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIEEE 27(b)(ii)
NET ASSETS EEFE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARK#E
Share capital N 28(c)
Reserves ]

Total equity attributable to equity N2 B R EFE AEGER

shareholders of the Company Hz
Non-controlling interests TR R

2022

-
RMB’000

ARBT T

24,922
6,542

31,464

3,219,834

21,254
3,140,286

3,161,540

58,294

3,219,834

2021

RMB’000
ARETT

26,954
12,079
454

39,487

3,272,463

21,516
3,183,082

3,204,598

67,865

3,272,463

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-ZB-_=%F=A -+ BESESH £ NF

on 21 March 2023. REFIED o
Zhang Yuping Huang Yonghua RIS
Executive Director Executive Director BITEE

BKE
HITEE

The notes on pages 99 to 221 form part of these financial  99ZE 2218 ¥ W B IH SR &K — 5 o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/N

Gxi

»\/ﬁ

s B R

(Expressed in Renminbi) (&/\Eﬁ%%ﬂ)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARGHFE AL
Capital PRC  Fairvalue Fairvalue Non-
; ; reserve ‘ ;
Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Exchange  statutory ~ reserve (1on- Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve  (recycling)  recycling) profits Total  interests equity
MrEEE DhERR
A& hE (FEA  (FAEA FHER
BE BRARE FEERE AARE  BXRER ARG ) Bg)  REE it Bs  EnEE
Note RMBO00O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB000O  RWMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB000
fi#E AREBTT ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARETR AR¥TT ARBTT ARETI
Balance at 31 December 2020~ M=B=-Ef
+ZA=1-H
LB 2337 2620409 761 1328 (304828 31023 - 04622 891042 3,366,694 73116 3439810
Changes in equity for 2021 W_Z2--%&
38
Profit for the year EEEH = - - - - - - - 26282 %622 (6072 20210
Other comprehensive income ~ Eft2E4A 9 = - - - (78,05) - - (60489 - (188540) (379)  (138919)
Total comprehensive income PERAEE - - - - (780%) - - (60485) 26282  (112.258) (6.451)  (118,709)
Shares repurchase EEkh (821)  (49,839) 821 - - - - - - (49:8%) - (49838)
Transfer between reserves [ HEYR - - - - - 981 = = (981) - - -
Capital injection from FARERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 1,200 1,200
Amounts transferred from fair HERBEEAL
value reserve (non-recycling) to (B (RATEA
retained profits upon disposal  1B%) BAZRR
of investments #Hz74% - - - - - - - (147000 14700 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 ~ WZE=-F
t=R=t-A
ki3 21516 2570571 1,682 1328 (382883) 32,004 - 2437 931043 3204598 67,865 3272463

FRAERA RAT R AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

i P RS I

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAARHHEARE

Capital PRC  Fairvalue Fairvalue Non-

reserve
(non-
capital  premium  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  (recycling)  recycling) profits Total interests

DMilEte
e a (WEA . FER
s BRHEE HORRE ERBE  ERRR  AERR ) B REER 5t Bt B
;M RMBO000  RMB000  RMBO000  RMBOO0O  RMB000  RMBO0O0  RMBO00  RMB0O0  RMBO0O  RMBI000  RMBO00  RMB'000
il \EHTn ARRTR ARMTR ARETT ARBTR AR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange  statutory reserve Retained controlling

Balance at 31 December 2021 A=E=—f
TZR=1-A

e 21516 2570571 (382,889) 931043 3204598 67865 3272463

Changes inequityfor2022 ~ WZBZZF

ER%E
Loss for the year FEFE - - 002 (B0 (8117)
Other comprehensive income - M ZEUA 9 u7717 (195,425) ) (190)
Total comprehensive income SARAEE 241117 (195425)  (80,022)  (27730) (8,307)
Shares repurchase BiEE (62 (1659 (165%2)

Transfer between resenves Gl L B - = .

Acquisition of additional equity i ENGE
interest in a subsidiary G

Amounts transfered from fair - (HEREEE AR

value reserve (non-recycling) Bk (Rme

{o retained profts upon ANE&) BEF
disposal of investments RERH 2R (11872

Balance at 31 December 2022 M=E="F
t=A=1-A
Z%EE% 21,254 2,553,979 1,844 2592 (135,166) 32,263 (154,116) 838,890 3,161,540 58294 3219834

The notes on pages 99 to 221 form part of these financial  $99%F 2218 » W sE B It Z 8 Rk —2p5 o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE —Z——F+ - F=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#Z51)

2022 2021
—E=-= =R = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT
Operating activities KRS
Cash generated from/(used in) BIEMB (BT Be
operations 239,057 (75,006)
Tax refund R 38 758
Tax paid BERIHIE (1,709) (3,378)
Net cash generated from/(used in) LeESEB TS (FTEE)
operating activities B&FE (77,626)
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of BAME - BEREE
property, plant and equipment 3R (78,054)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEYE  BE - &
plant, equipment and intangible MIER & EFRS R
assets 44 89
Payment for the purchase of BARTEEMNK
intangible assets (1,447) (838)
Decrease/(Increase) in deposits RITFERORA /(38 0)
with banks 25,821 (53,958)
Payment for advances to third parties SZftt& =778 (51,297) (68,561)
Proceeds from repayment of BEFE=FEFRMER
advances to third parties | 96,288 119,443
Payment for acquisition of associates — Ug B 2 X ) 3¢ (3) (2,956)
Payment for advances to associates sz f-HEs & A A1 B K (86,694) (79,169)
Proceeds from repayment of BB E N RBREE
advances to associates | 104,024 M
Payment for purchase of other BB A B I 8 K
investments (13,427) (263,038)
Proceeds from sale of other & H 3% & AT 1S 5018
investments 28,891 167,830
Interest received B & 15,400 15,008
Dividends received from equity B U AR iE ERR S
investments 9,298 14,294
Net cash proceeds from disposal BB A RIRERTS
of equity interests in subsidiaries R IR FEE 2,857
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEMEB(FTEE)
investing activities HEFE 68,593 (227,053)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

maBlaiig®R

Note
HtaE

Financing activities RIEEED
Proceeds from new bank loans FIBIRITERAGBRIE  21(c)
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER 21(c)
Capital element of lease rentals Eﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ EofEWwNT

paid b 21(c)
Interest element of lease rentals EfRHEERHH S

paid %) 21(c)
Other borrowing costs paid BT E A& &R
Capital injection from FEFERR R E

non-controlling interests
Share repurchased 8 B 3% 19
Net cash used in from financing RS EB TR €55

activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BHERBRESEEYIE

cash equivalents m/GRd) F48
Cash and cash equivalents at RENzREREE

the beginning of the year ZEY
Effect of foreign exchange rate IMEERBEISE

changes
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZBERES

the end of the year ZEY 21(a)

The notes on pages 99 to 221 form part of these financial

statements.

98 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

F9FE221 B 2 MBIt S shk —

2022

—==-=
RMB’000

ARBT T

54,900
(46,665)

(12,736)

(656)
(2,708)

(16,592)

(24,457)

281,522

661,017

107,648

1,050,187

2021
—EE — =
RMB’'000
ARET T

45,000
(857)

(9,974)

(872)
(2,237)

1,200
(49,838)

(17,578)

(322,257)

1,014,983

(31,709)

661,017

B e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 i R T R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& ZEEAS) « BEEUARE27)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Exchange”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 comprise Hengdeli Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

1 EESHHEX

(a) BHIZEHH
WERBRRIVBBEEEEAMAE ([FEE
AEIAR ) BOEMAAER(EENBREE
AN ((BEWBRELER] > ZFcERRME
EROEREEM GRS ER (BEGE
AD(TEEEER]) k)  BEAREG
FREAMRE RCEBRAGI) NEERER
B WERBRERNMTEEEHREXIMER
RE (R EFx EHRUNEREER
o AREMFEANERZSTRREENT -

BEGMARERME TRAKELAS
BB R AR A IR AT IR M A ¥ AT R G ERT &
B EMEER - EE1(c) PR UL F R R
R 2 TR Ko B 1E & 51 B H R BR M % F B R
S E RN ST E R PTER ) T € 5T BERE
HER -

(b) BABHMERNEHRHELE
BHEZZT-_—_F+-A=+—HILFEMLK
B mEBREFEMNERBBR AR ([ARF)
REWB AR (5iE [ ~EE]) -

AN
=]

MEMBBRAAIGAEEEREL KA
HETXAESFTBRREAZAERAAEIRZ
BERIN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

- equity investments (see note 1(g))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

o Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

° Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment; Proceeds before Intended Use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(p) or 1(q) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)),
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

unless the investment is classified

classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for

impairment (see note 1(1)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f)  Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial

ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested for
impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus
the fair value of any investment retained in that associate
and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of that associate
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply
the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note
32(f). These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(i) Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 1(v)(vi)).

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) (recycling), if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(iif) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained profits. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(v)(v).

(h)  Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(k)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(l)(ii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
property less its estimated residual value using the straight
line method over its estimated useful life. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1(v)(iv).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Investment properties (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1((i1).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful life, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements 1 -5 years

- Motor vehicles 5-10 years

= Office equipment and other fixed assets 3 — 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
1(x)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(1)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 1()(ii)).
and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill

which it is incurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

- Software licenses 5-10 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

(k) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are primarily
properties leased for own use which expiry within one year.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(i) and 1(l)

(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16 Leases. In such cases, the group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if it were not
a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group. Leases which did not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group were classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property was classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, was accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which could not be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, was accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building was
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease was the time that
the lease was first entered into by the group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets were recognised as property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was provided at rates which
wrote off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it was likely the Group would
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(i). Impairment losses were accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(I). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments were
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals were charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they were incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

Where the Group had the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases were charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis was more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they were incurred.

(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is

not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with note 1(v)(iv).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in note 1(k)(i), then

the Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note

1(n)).

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
units in bond funds, equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)
and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the

measurement of the lease receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

= lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 180 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continuead)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(v)
(vi) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Wirite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

(1)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case

of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

investment property;

property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

intangible assets;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount

is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that

are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have

indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated

annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

122

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’'s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iiiy  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 1(l)(i) and 1(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Inventories and other contract costs

(m)
(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value as follows:

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(m) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(i) Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business
combination is determined based on their estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the
effort required to complete and sell the inventories.

(ii) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil
a contract with a customer which are not capitalised as
inventory (see note 1(m)(i)), property, plant and equipment
(see note 1(i)) or intangible assets (see note 1(j)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred
if the costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a
future reporting period and the costs are expected to be
recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed
when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(m)
(i) Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance resources that will
be used to provide goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to
the customer and other costs that are incurred only because
the group entered into the contract (for example, payments
to sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a contract,
which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds the
net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the group
expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services to
which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not yet been
recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to
profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is
recognised. The accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in note 1(v).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(v)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(1)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 1(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(v)(vi)).

(o) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(n)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

1)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

(g) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(N(0).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) ~ Share award scheme

The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of shares is recognised as staff costs
in profit or loss with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve, which is measured based on the grant date share
price of the Company.

(iv)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(t) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution

of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)y Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(ii) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. Provisions for
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 1(u)(i). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

1(u)(i).

(v) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and

is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of watches, jewellery and related accessories

Revenue is recognised when goods are handed over to
individual customers at retail outlets or delivered at the
warehouse or corporate customers’ premises which is taken
to be the point in time when the customer has obtained the
control over the goods. Revenue excludes value-added tax
or other sales taxes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(ii) Provision of shop design and decoration service

Revenue is recognised progressively over time using cost-
to-cost method, i.e., based on the proportion of actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The contract
asset (either partially or in full) is reclassified to receivables
when the entitlement to payment for that amount has
become unconditional.

(iiiy  Sale of commodities

Revenue from the sale of commodities is recognised at
a point of time when the control of the goods has been
transferred to the customers, being when the commodities
has been delivered to the agreed location. Revenue
excludes value added tax and is after deduction of any
trade discounts

(iv)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(v) Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

- Dividend listed
recognised when the share price of the investment

income from investments is

goes ex-dividend.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(vi)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 1(1)(i)).

(vii)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar, while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). The directors consider that
choosing RMB as the presentation currency best suits the
needs of the shareholders and investors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi
(“RMB”) at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 BESEE 2

(x) fEERE

B ZRIEEFTERERFET AJ UK
AEREAENHENEEARBBNBENX
Ko BERMEBZEERAZ — 8D - HittE
ERAARELENHRARBEANERRL -

BRABREERA MO ZBEXRETNE
ECHAXELE BERAELRARAREER
ARBEREKIHEMT 2 EB TEETTHRH
WMERE - WA BEEREREERAERTHN
BRHEMT M EEES AN L RTK
B AIEERELEEERAERNE

FRAERA RAT R AR 139



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss, which
comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a Group of which the other entity
is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a company of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 183,
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment of

18, and 32 contain information about the

goodwill, impairment of trade and other receivables and fair
value of financial instruments. Other key source of estimation
uncertainty is as follows:

(i) Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a non-
current asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of non-
current assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable,
except for goodwill which is tested on an annual basis.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount.

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain of the Group’s assets which include property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
goodwill, recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate fair value less costs of disposal because
quoted market prices for the Group’s assets are not readily
available. In determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to items
such as level of sale volume, selling price and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as sales volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the
assets and could result in additional impairment charge or,
except for goodwill, reversal of impairment in future periods.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(ii)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions. The Group will reassess the

estimates by the end of each reporting period.

(iii)  Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor.

circumstances indicate that the balances may not be

Impairments arise where events or changes in

collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are trading of watches
and jewellery with comprehensive related customer services
and maintenance, manufacturing of watch accessories,
provision of shop design and decoration service and trading
of iron ore and coal.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net of value added tax and deduction of any
sales discounts and returns.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and at the end
of reporting period 33% and 67% of the Group’s revenue
come from the largest customer and top five customers
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(Continued)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are

disclosed in note 3(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products or service lines is as follows:

(a)

WARDEBRE ()

WA (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15

Disaggregated by major products or
service lines

Continuing operations
— Revenue from manufacturing of
watches accessories
— Revenue from provision of shop
design and decoration service
— Revenue from commodity trading

REE T RE 2 — PRHIFNH T3 (D) E -

Discontinued operations
— Revenue from sales of watches and
jewellery

Revenue from other sources
Gross rentals from investment properties

Representing:
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

(i) LN
BEBERIRBRE D 2B EHWAHED
s
2022 2021
—s=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETIT
REFZFAH WA
(BB HHRELER
E1SSREBEA)
BE B E MRS RE D
— REREERRE
EmZ WA 358,952 320,940
— R B R EE G &
SR Z WA 271,378 229,993
—REATERES
Z A 408,956 327,061
1,039,286 877,994
DRI EE RS
— REHEERK
RE 2 WA 220,293 114,968
1,259,579 992,962
=S PN
REEEMFE 2 BB W
A 1,484 2,474
1,261,063 995,436
Hep:
— BT 1,040,770 880,468
— BRI EER 220,293 114,968
1,261,063 995,436
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

All inventory of watches have been disposed and the Group
ceased trading of watches and jewellery business starting
from 31 October 2022.

Revenue from provision of shop design and decoration
service is recognised progressively over time.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
geographic markets is disclosed in note 3(b)(iii).

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence at
the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for shop design and
decoration service as the remaining performance obligations
of the contracts had an original expected duration of one
year or less.
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(@) WA &)

(i) WA#D (&)
FrEEREFEHERAESRE S - _F+
A=T—HRBRERIEZRERIKEEZFE °

KB RS R AT MRS IR TS 2 U A BB B ]
BRER -

BB MG E D 2 RE A LW A4 DR =
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AERBMBMEEFE15HRE121ROAIITEERE
T BERANZHBTRAOEENRERS
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and

services) and geography (mainly in Mainland China and
Hong Kong).

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

— High-end consuming — Manufacturing of watch
accessories accessories and shop
design and decoration
services business;

— Commodity trading — Trading of iron ore and coal,

— Watches trading — Trading of watches and
jewellery business

During the year, in line with the established strategy, the
Group liquidated its remaining watch stocks and completely
cease its renowned watch operations. This segment is
separately reported with the comparative figures restated
accordingly.
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3 WARDEHE @)

(b) ZEBERE
AEBEBLEER (EmKRE) MgimE (£
EMRTBEAM - FE) KLz BPEEER

REBEBRIATE2RDED -

—-=ImHERE - EBREEEMBEEAR
JE SR REAE RS
EZ

—RREmE S —HBEORRRES
—BEREH —ERNAEE P EE
RAFE - RIBBEE B  NEBEY R E

REFETTIRE  2EHAR T REEBHE
& o FIL A ER 2 itk D MR EH 25 BB

=

F o
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group’s businesses
are separated into the two reportable segments on a
geographical and products and services basis, as the
divisional managers for each of these regions report directly
to the senior executive team. All segments primarily derive
their retail and trading revenue through their own network.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
reportable segments.

(i) Segment results and assets

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
However, other than reporting inter-segment sales,
assistance provided by one segment to another, including

sharing of assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “gross
profit”.

Segment assets represent inventories only, without
eliminating the unrealised inter-segment profits.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Segment results and assets (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 is set out below.
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3 WARDEHE @)

(b) DH|E (&)

(i) DPEEBEREE (&)
BHE-_ZT-_—_FR-T=-_—F+=ZA=+—H
EFERERIEESBRRIGHRAEER
SETREBASREZASEZH D HLER
I o

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RELEEY REJIR-E S
High-end consuming
accessories Commodity trading Watches trading Total
BRHERE KFBRES EHES -h
PRC PRC Hong Kong
hEl hE (3

2022 2021 2022

ZECC

RMB'000
ARRTR

ZECC

“E--F
RMB'000
ARETTL

Revenue from external customers  RESMNFZE 2 WA 630,330 550,933

Inter-segment revenue DEHERA 150,597 110,063

Reportable segment revenue ~ 2HAHUA 780,927 408,956

Reportable segment gross SRAPER/(28)

profit/(loss) 98,548 87,064 25,045

Reportable segment assets ERHHEE 131,027 106,741

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the high-end
consuming accessories segment in PRC is mainly engaged
in the manufacturing of watch accessories and shop design
and decoration services business in PRC, no impairment
loss (2021: RMB12,855,000) was recognized to provide
against of the goodwill allocated to this segment.

RVB'000
ARBTT

408,956

327,061
327,061

50,851

2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

bt —F b T i
RMB'000 WGITGHOWM  RMB'000 WIVEROIM  RMB'000
ARETT BNEEAO ARETT WNGEAD ARETTL

1,269,579
150,597

992,962
110,063

220,293 114,968
220,293 114,968

(20419) EEINIEN 94174

- 304,040 237,768

BEZ-_—_F+-_A=1+—HIEFE +H
WEmEBRESBEELRRARLEFHREE
RIS ARIERT N EERBER - WERER
MEBRE (ZT=-—% : AR%12,855,0007T)
AR SE S BL E bt 5 BRI REE o

1,410,176

597,500
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit  (jj)
or loss and assets

WARDEHRE (@)

(b) DEPERE (&)
E/RIBBA - BEREREEZHIR

Revenue O

Total revenue for reportable 2|/ A HPAWA
segments

Elimination of inter-segment ~ ##49 BEKA
revenue

Consolidated revenue FEBA

Profit/(loss) wFl/ (E8)

Total gross profit/(loss) for ERPBEH/(E8)
reportable segments ek

Other revenue Hie A

Other net loss Hi @858

Distribution costs DA

Administrative expenses T ER

Share of profits of associates D {HEES 2 FH

Finance costs IHAA

Consolidated (loss)/profit
before taxation

SABRHA (BR)/E7

150

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
HRELERK ERILEEERY #st

2021 2021
“E-—F “E-—F
(Restated) (Restated)

(fE51) (feE=51)
RMB'000 BRVIEReN RMB'000

ARETL Rl A X% T T

988,057 220,293 114,968
(110,063) = o (150,597)

220,293 114,968 ERIAEYE]

8,762
(2,384)
(1,708)

(11,136)

RMB'000
ARBTTL

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARBTT

1,189,883 IRARVOE 1,103,025

150,597) (110,063)

(
1,039,286

123,593 137,915

32,033
(71,691)
(55,481)

(133,323)

76,457

(3,288)

877,994 992,962

94,174 113,867

35,822
(1,377)
(52,532)
(118,238)
50,997
(2,909)

39,362
(84,347)
(67,329)

(142,491)

76,457

(3,807)

44,584
(3,761)
(54,240)
(129,374)

50,997

(463) (3,372)

(31,700)

(30,977)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (Continued)

(b)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit  (jj)

or loss and assets (Continued)

S 785 i A B ik

WARDEBRE ()

D ERERE (#)

EHRDHBA - BEREEZHR (&)

2022

B
RMB’000

ARBT T

Assets

Assets for reportable segments
(inventories)

Trade, other receivables, prepayment
and deposits

Loans to associates

&E
EROMWEE (FH)
JEIE Z IR - EAt BN

PR - EAFREREE
RftHE AR 2B

237,768

705,375
67,273
168
1,050,187
272,701
126,694
512,032
3,415
52,014
132,780
362,667
2,721

Current tax recoverable 7N B AT U5 B 55 18
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEY
Deposits with banks RITER
Investment properties WEMZE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KRB
Intangible assets EEE
Gooduwill [EES

Interests in associates RN e
Other investments HAinig &
Deferred tax assets RLETIBEE
Consolidated total assets IREBAE

3,525,795

2021
e =
RMB’000
ARET T

597,505

634,347
77,951
178
661,017
273,796
130,376
515,745
2,861
49,237
51,407
536,649
323

3,531,392
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii)  Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
goodwill, interests in associates, prepayment and deposits
and other investments (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical locations of customers are based on the
locations at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical locations of the specified non-
current assets are based on the physical locations of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
locations of operations to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwill, and the locations
of operations, in the case of prepayment and deposits and
other investments.

The Group’s businesses are mainly managed in three
principal economic environments, Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Taiwan/Malaysia.

3 WARDEHEE @)

(b) SEHE (&)

(i) HEER
TEREINBHAGNAEERBINBES Z WA K
(VAEENREYME V¥ BERRE &
MEE B8 REERARER  ERMNKIEA
RIREAREMZRE ([BEFRDEE] FE
HENER BFFAEHEEZRERREXER
NEMEE D - HAYWE - BERRLKEMNS @ #
ERBEENMERIZEEBRATE S
En MEFEERMEMS  RESRENE
BMEE D REMRBEREEAREMKRE
mE @ REEMEHMEES -

AEETEE=-FEIELEHWE FER
- BERGEHRADETER -

2021
=55 — —%E
(Restated)
(#&=75)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTIT

Revenue from external customers REIMDEFE ZWA
Mainland China R R A 778,273 791,046
Hong Kong B 261,013 86,948
Hong Kong (discontinued operations) BB (BRIEEZET) 220,293 114,968
Total FEE 1,259,579 992,962

Specified non-current assets EBEFRBEE

Mainland China H Y A3, 511,004 512,712
Hong Kong B 577,026 665,705
Taiwan/Malaysia ag / BRAD 95,984 97,871
Total #Et 1,184,014 1,276,288
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4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS

(a) Other revenue

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

4 HWARBEFE
(a) EMUWA

2021
— T —F
(Restated)
(gE7)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Continuing operations: SESE T

Interest income B WA 14,982
Dividend income from other investments KRB E MR E R ERA 14,294

Rental income from investment REBREME2HSBA
properties 2,474

Rental income from operating leases, KEMEEZHSIA -

other than those relating to BRI E Y5 A& BRI
investment properties 929
Government grants R I #68 B 2,303
Others HAh 840
35,822

Discontinued operations: BRI EEK
Interest income FEBA 26
Rental income from operating leases, BEMEEZHSWA -

other than those relating to IS B E B AR IN
investment properties =
Others At 8,736
8,762

In 2022, the Group successfully applied for government
grants that mainly relate to funding support and wage
subsidy set up by the Mainland China Government and
the Hong Kong SAR Government respectively. Under the
conditions of the funding support and wage subsidy, the
Group is required to retain its local employees even if
business is affected by the COVID-19 outbreak.

R-B_—F AKERDHBFRAMEE - £
2 8l B BT & BB BT R BT
MRIMEBHEBMTEMBEAR - RIZED
HEMIEMBMGE  EEBXIMAER
BRENTE  AEETEREBELMWES -
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4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS 4 HMKWAREEFHE#)

(Continued)
(b)  Other net loss (b)
2021
—FE — =4
(Restated)
(s&E:%))
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Continuing operations: FEREET
Impairment of goodwill (note 13) EERE (HiZ13) (12,855)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNE Rz (B518),/
Weas F 58 (57,842) 11,252
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, LEWE - BERH
plant and equipment (B18),/ W Fae (8,711) 41
Net realised gain on financial assets held BER e MEE
for trading B E R F R 4,829
Fair value loss on financial assets HERSEEMEE
held for trading ZRARERE (CREL)) (4,644)
(71,691) (1,377)
Discontinued operations: BRI R
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain SNEH B (B518),
Wz F5E (12,656) 1,579
Net gain on disposal of property, HEME - BER&E
plant and equipment W5 F 58 20
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARBETHE (3,983)
(12,656) (2,384)
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5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

S 785 i A B ik

BRBLAT (BE518), % F

BRBiAT (B18),a M EMBR A TIRB RS

2021
=g = s
(Restated)
(& E3)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
(@)  Finance costs (@)  BIEERRAS
Continuing operations: FHERE R -
Interest on bank loans RITEF B 1,805
Interest on lease liabilities HEBER S 842
Bank charges RITER 262
2,909
Discontinued operations: EARIERE T
Interest on bank loans IRITERFE 432
Interest on lease liabilities HEBER S 30
Bank charges IRITER 1
463
(b)  Staff costs (b) BIRAK
Continuing operations: FEREHER
Salaries, wages and other benefits e s TERHEMFZE 66,459
Contributions to defined contribution TEREEFGR GBI R
retirement plans 12,570
79,029
Discontinued operations: BRI T
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe  TEREMFZE 846
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FGR ARG T R R
retirement plans 31
877

FRABEBRARATR R AR 155



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 785 i B

BRELET (B8), 8R (&)

RMB’000
AREBT T

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5
(Continued)
(c)  Otheritems (c) HfhEH
Continuing operations: SERE R
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 12) EE I (KaF12)
Depreciation e
— Investment properties and property, — REMERYE BE
plant and equipment (note 11) N5t (Hfa11)
— Right-of-use assets (note 11) — [FREEE (K711)
Impairment losses of WIEEE
— Goodwill —
— Trade receivables — JEWE SR
Expenses relating to short-term leases ARG AHEREEE
and leases of low-value assets BEHENHX
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A &
Cost of inventories* TFEKA
Discontinued operations: BRI R T
Depreciation e
— Investment properties and property, —BEMEEYME - BE
plant and equipment (note 11) K&t (Brat11)
— Right-of-use assets (note 11) — (EREEE (Hat11)
Impairment losses of BB ETE
— Trade receivables — BN E SRR
Expenses relating to short-term leases R BAHEERMEER
and leases of low-value assets BEEMENRSZ
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A &
Cost of inventories* FERA

156

Cost of inventories includes RMB119,187,000 (2021: *
RMB103,674,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation expenses and operating lease charges,
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for
each type of expenses.
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1,889

1,740

1,515
915,693

2021
—od = s
(Restated)

(& =75)
RMB’000
ARBTTT

749

29,135
10,608

12,855

980

1,561
740,079

2,050

217

4,701

125

91l
139,016

GFERABEEE TRA - Te R#H
AXURKLEHEEAAENARE
119,187,000 (= T = — F: AR %
103,674,0007T) * ZE BT AR S EREZ
R EX SIS (b) BB BN S B SR
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5 i 2 B R E
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #HEERXRZFER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Continuing operations (a) HEREHEK
(i) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss  (j) SEABERRANZHIES !

represents:
2021
=ER Tk
(Restated)
(e&E3)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AEABIE — BB FEH
Provision for the year REE RS =
Over provision in respect of prior years BAEFEBEERE (374)
(374)
Current tax — Overseas REABEIE — /b
Provision for PRC Corporate Income RKEERBRTEMEH
Tax for the year B 2,103
Under/(over) provision in respect of BEFEBRERR
prior years (HBRERE) (920)
1,183
Deferred tax IEFEB IR
Origination and reversal of temporary iy =R 2 EA KM
differences (note 27) (Me27) (417)
Total @t 392
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

GEBRRZIEHR @)

(Continued)
(a) Continuing operations (Continued) (a) FEREEK (&)
(i)~ Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (i) FIERXERBEABRRIFEZSE (&
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: 8),/ wFIEEE
2021
— 5 — =
(Restated)
(gE5)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT

(Loss)/profit before taxation BRFAT (B518), w7 (31,700) 49,678
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation, BFipT (E18), %Az L%

calculated at the rates applicable to THIB - IREEAERR 2

profits in the jurisdictions concerned EAERTERAE 7,185
Tax effect of non-taxable income BABBIMA 2 HIEZ 2 (15,654)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A AT 2 RIBETE 221
Under/(over) provision in respect of BAEFEREBETRE

prior years (FBRERME) (1,294)
Effect of tax losses not recognised WARERZ MIBEE & 9,934
Actual tax expense ERFIEMAY 392

158
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

S 785 i A B ik

GREBRRZIEH @)

(b) Discontinued operations (b) BRIEKEXEL
(i) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss  (j) SEERRAZHIES :
represents:
2021
— T —F
(Restated)
(&=E7)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AEAFIE — BB FEHR
Provision for the year PSR T 53
Over provision in respect of prior years  iB{F 4 S HBEE R (230)
(177)
Deferred tax IEFER IR
Origination and reversal of temporary ERF R 2 EAE R
differences (note 27) (Kiet27) (2,812) (1,724)
Total RET (2,812) (1,901)
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Discontinued operations (Continued)

(iif) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting loss (i)

at applicable tax rates:

(b)

GEBRRZIEHR @)

CRIEEERR (8)
BREREREARRTE 2 ETEE
HR -

2021
— T —F
(Restated)
(£=5)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR%T T
Loss before taxation BREiRIE R (56,281) (30,977)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BRIIAIEE 2 3=
calculated at the rates applicable to THIB - IREEAERR 2
profits in the jurisdictions concerned mAEAR R (9,844) (5,529)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAMBRBAZHIBTE (178) (460)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A AT 2 RIETE 3,857 1,508
Over-provision in respect of prior years B FERRERE = (230)
Effect of tax losses not recognised WARERZ RIBBEFE 3,353 2,810
Actual tax credit EREBIEER (2,812) (1,901)
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) Discontinued operations (Continued)

(iif) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting loss
at applicable tax rates: (Continued)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is exempt from income tax in the Cayman
Islands. In addition, subsidiaries located in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Malaysia
are not subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HKD2 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision of the Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
basis in 2021.

The applicable income tax rate of the Group’s Mainland
China subsidiaries is 25% (2021: 25%) for the year.

The provision for Taiwan Income Tax is calculated at 20%
(2021: 20%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

The provision for Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24%
(2021: 24%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6 HLKEBEZRZIMEBH &

(b) ERILEEEXH @)

(i) BEEREZBEARERIEZEHER
iR (&)

REFSHESHRA AR - AARER %MW

MEBREMBH - N UREE - FEA

-~ B R ERFE AN BDERE R K E A A

INBABINZ S B AR EA SR -

EBFERBENEEANZ G ERERERN 2
16.5% (ZZE=—4F : 16.5%) =t & ' EXREH
—MEANEFRMAHEERDEZHE QR
BRAh o

FUMBARIME @ B28 878 TR % A
8.25% M T K BEL - MER T IEARTRFILA16.5%
MR EREAR - WMIB AR ZBEFSHEED
REZT - —FHRMNEEANE -

A &2 B Fh B A 3 B B A B R R BT S R R
B25% (ZE=—4F : 25%) o

BB HEBEFENIRER Z T ERHEN 2
20% (ZE—_—%F : 20%) T & -

Bk TSR B IR E N 2 (st P sR Bl 0
F224% (ZE=—4 : 24%) 5H& o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 785 i B

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RBiF(F B QA TEH) FE383(NER AT (HE

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the &E=EF|IFEE) B0 FE2BHETE 2 EEP S 0
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022 -
+-A=+—RALEE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Yuping R AE

Mr. Huang Yonghua EKERAE

Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan SRR L

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Shi Zhongyang FHETE

Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHITES

Mr. Cai Jianmin BERR%E

Mr. Wong Kam Fai,William ERIBA A

Mr. Liu Xueling G

Total e
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7 EEME

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’ and other to retirement

fee benefits  benefit plans Total
e 28 BIREA
E5H0E  REMANRE AR Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®Trn ARET:R
(note 25)
(Hit25)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 i Mk

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 7 EEME @
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’ and other to retirement
fee benefits  benefit plans Total
e o 2 BIRER
EEHE  REMFIE FTEMER fBEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEATTE - BRI ARSI L NS
(note 25)
(fiat25)
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z_-F
+tZA=+—HILEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zhang Yuping SRET LA 61 1,081 5 1,147
Mr. Huang Yonghua BAKELE 149 2,341 - 2,490
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan THALE 149 3,304 15 3,468
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang PIHEEE 83 - - 83
Independent Non-executive Directors BN FHTES
Mr. Cai Jianmin BERSE 83 = - 83
Mr. Wong Kam Fai,William miRELE L 83 = = 83
Mr. Liu Xueling ZBE L 83 - - 83
Total Bt 691 6,726 20 7,437
Save as disclosed above, no directors’ remuneration KB EXFIEBEEN  BE_T-_—_FR_F—

has been paid or is payable by the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed

There was no

to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

—F+ZA=1T—BLEFE AEBLETM
ENSENEZHE - ESVEREXRER
BB E T - —_FF T —F+ A=
T—BLEFEZMETH -

BHE_ZT_—_#R-_FT-_—9+-_A=+—H
IEFE  AEEVEE BN FESSKAEM
REEmF AT (R TXHTES) BFRIE - 1
RIMAREE 2 BENSERBER 18 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fob 5 R B RE
8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8 ‘BEHFAL
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two FEZZSHFATHBIERZ (T ——F: i
(2021: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed %) &% @ HEMHMAFHEF7THEE - B T=%4
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the —E-—F =) ATHEFRAEN T
other three (2021: three) individuals are as follows:

2022 2021

—=s=-= =ER = =

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARETTT

Salaries and other emoluments Se& REMENS 6,138 5,167
Contributions to retirement benefit plans RIREFIFT B K 46 45

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL — =

5,212

The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals, other #EZEMEZ =% (ZT=_—F : =%&) AL
than directors, with the highest emoluments are within the (ZFERIN) 2SN T T7IEE :
following bands:

2022 2021

=== —E=—F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

Hong Kong Dollars ( “HKD” ) B (MExl) AH
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 2
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2,500,001 — 3,000,000 =
3,000,001 — 3,500,000 3,000,001 — 3,500,000 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9 HttZEWA

(a) Tax effect relating to other comprehensive (a) HEEMEEWRANHRETE
income

No tax effect is credited to other comprehensive income for #HE-—"ST-—"—"F#JK-—"FT-——F+-H=+—H

the year ended in December 2022 and 2021.

(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b)
including reclassification adjustments

7 EAR)
2022
RMB’000
ARBETT

Equity investments at FVOCI:

BEEMEEBARAAE

FTEZRARE

Changes in fair value recognised FARRZ AR EEH

during the year (note 16) (Bt 16) (195,425)
Amounts transferred from fair value B AR ERE (T8 A

reserve (non-recycling) to retained Bz) EEREERE R

profits |
Net movement in the fair value reserve ~ REME2EWRAERZ FR

(non-recycling) during the year N EFEEEFE

recognised in other comprehensive (AT AER)

income

(183,553)

HEE  SEHREFEFARMEEKA -

Hib2HWAERED (BEEH

2021
—F — ==
RMB’000
ARBTIT

(60,485)

(14,700)

(75,185)

FRABEBRARATR R AR 165



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 785 i B

10 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB80,022,000 (2021: profit of RMB26,282,000)
and the weighted average of 4,428,360,975 ordinary shares
(2021: 4,488,419,156 ordinary shares) in issue during the
year, calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

10 ER (BER) 27

(a) EREX (BB BF

BERERN(BR) BANDHREEARGKRGF
B ARERER ARKS80,022,000T (ZF=—
F SR A R #26,282,0007T) RFERND LT
hNAE G P 84, 428,360,975 EmR (2 =

—4F 1 4,488,419, 156/ L@W) 5T & © srEW
T
(i) EERINAEE I RE
2021
= ==t

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January

Effect of shares repurchased BRI &

R—A—BZERTEAER

4,464,806,959

4,662,666,959

(36,445,984) (174,247,803)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

itz B alive 4

RTZA=1t—HEBK

4,428,360,975 4,488,419,156

(iif) Consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company

(i) AARNZERBRREMLGS (BB) &
A
2021
===
(Restated)
(#&=75)
RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB’000
ARBT T

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity

RRRIBRD B ARG

(B18), /&
— REREEK
- ERUERERH

shareholders of the Company
— continuing operations 55,855

— discontinued operations (29,076)

26,282
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10 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (Continued)

(iii)  (Loss)/earnings per share

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

10 SR (FEB) B @

(a) BREX (BB BR &)
iy =K (FHER) BRI

Basic (loss)/earnings per share
— continuing operations

— discontinued operations

FREX (BR), 8%

— BEREES

- BERIEERD

2021
e

(Restated)

(#=75)

RMB (0.006) RMB 0.012
AR#®(0.006)7T AR#0.0127T
RMB (0.012) RMB (0.006)
AR#¥(0.012)7c NNy
RMB (0.018) RMB 0.006
AR#(0.018) 7T AR%0.0067T

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, and therefore,
diluted (loss)/earnings per share are the same as basic
(loss)/earnings per share.

(b) HBREE (&HE) ER

BHE—_ - #k"ZT—_—F+-_H=+—H
IEFE - TEEHESEELTRAR  RERES (5
1B),/ BAEGRER (FE),/ BFHER -
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, 11 REYX  Y* - BERRE
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
equipment
landand  Right-of-use Leaseold Motor andother  Construction Investment
buildings assels  improvements vehicles ~fired assels  in progress Sub-fotal properties Total
HATRER
kT  RREEE ELED RE EfEEEE ERIR ey RANZ &t

RWBOOD  RMBODD  RMBOOO  RWBOO  RMBOOD  RMBON  RMBOD  RVBOO  RMBOD
ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTZ  ARETR  ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

Cost: AR

Balance ot 1 January 2021 e R 300448 62,301 15314 12486 %631 0% 69208 . 839,465
Exchange adjusiments Eifg (2,304) (19) (308) (1,045) (1,828 () (5,685) - (5,685)
Addtors iz : 3961 368 215 8032 4,182 805 = 8205
Transfer from construction inprogress ~ BERTHREA 16,200 - 1002 - 8,662 (34884) - -

Decreass from disposal of subsidiaries Bt ENEATES - (7.808) (1,120) - (310) - (9,238) - (9,238)
Disposal e 2 (10561) : (21) (610) - (1142 - (11,422)
Balance at 31 December 2021 REB-ETCA=t-AzE8 304344 47698 57,593 13325 109577 9,351 747888 147,047 895,135
Balance at 1 January 2022 Ro3ooE-A-RUEH 304,344 4769 109577 %%t 888 17247 95,135
Exchange adustments Eife 3459 1,79 6,186 3 16,007 16,007
Addiors iz = 6,608 I 7781 725 64913 84913
Transfer from construction inprogress ~ EERTHREA 21897 - - 7 (30372) - -
Disgosel e - (15,164) (1) (144 (008)  (69%9) (46,915)
Balance at 31 December 2022 REE-Ft-A=f-HzE# 425,700 40938 63941 47048 12,132 82,134 781,893 929,140
Accumulated depreciation: it

Balance ai 1 January 2021 RZF=-F-A-Azkh (7de8) (00 (78 (1% (45031) S (gl () (2510)
Exchange adjustments ExdE 54 605 %0 8% 8 - 3047 - 3047
Decrease from disposal of a subsidiary B & ~FHRARIMA . 4554 5 - % ) 53% . 53%
Charge for the year RSl 0 (108%) (5,560) (2.409) (9.357) - (38,329) (B68)  (200)
Witen back on disposals LERE x 9908 . 2% 573 - 10719 - 10719
Balance at 31 December 2021 ACES-ELCECL-RIEE (B6) (638 (1% (8608 (274) SR (eeT) (014
Balance at 1 January 2022 KB —E-f-RIEs 667 (2632 (G779 (8e0E  (5724) 36T (804
Exchange adjustments Exfe (147) (1328) (%32) (2.456) (3:301) (0.456) = (0.456)
Charge for the year EERH (10,355) (11,773) (6472) (259) (12,705) (43,897) (3682 (47579)
Writen back on disposals HERHA - 1428 - 136 1,264 15,635 - 15,635
Balance at 31 December 2022 SRRl (%479) 0514 (520 (3352) (67466) (269861) (05 (90414)
Net book value: RHFE:

AL 31 December 2022 a3 b e 27201 54,666 512,032 16604 63872
At 31 December 2021 RoB-E-f=1-R 07857 2130 19797 i 56853 %31 515,745 036 66
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
(including leasehold right of use assets)

(i) The land owned by the Group is located in Taiwan,
which has an indefinite useful life and therefore is
not depreciated. The carrying amount of the land
as at 31 December 2022 is RMB72,492,000 (2021:
RMB73,489,000).

(i) The buildings owned by the Group are located in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.

(i)  As at 31 December 2022, land and buildings
in Mainland China with carrying amount of
RMB91,901,000 (2021: RMB97,069,000) and Taiwan
with carrying amounts of RMB95,984,000 (2021:
RMB97,868,000) were pledged to banks as security
for certain loan facilities (see note 23).
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11 REYXE W% BERRE
(#)

M - BERXE (BFEHEFCHEE

E) WBEEE

(i) NEBBEA 2 LN EE A ER
FERAFH ARTERE RZT=-—
F+-_A=+—8 %t zEEES
AR ®72,492,000L (ZZE=Z—F : A
R #73,489,0007T) °

(i) AEEBEEZEFMNRAFRBEAM HF
AN =3

iy R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H uRF

A BR E E & A K %91,901,0007T

== —9F: AR¥97,069,0007T) &

e ZREEAARKI5984,0007T

—ZT - —9F: AR¥97,868,0007T) Z

THREFEEAETERRE ZER
ERFRT (BLREWF23) -
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

(including leasehold right of use assets) (Continued)

(iv)  Investment properties

11 REYRE W% BERRHE
(&)

ME- - BELEREG (BEHEEERREE

E) WRERRE (&)

(v) REWME

Net book value of investment properties

REWMFE 2 REFE

Fair value of investment properties
(level 3 fair value measurement using

significant unobservable inputs) WAEERE)

BREWMERZAARE (F=4&
NARERAEATABRE

2022 2021
—==-= =ER = —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
126,694 130,376
186,889

As at 31 December 2022, the investment properties located
in Shanghai, Mainland China, were rented out under terms
of operating leases or held for capital appreciation. As at 31
December 2022, the fair value of the investment properties
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
is estimated at approximately RMB197,603,000 on an open
market, existing use basis, by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties using market data which
are publicly available and made adjustments to reflect the
differences in the characteristics between the investment
properties and the comparable properties. The fair value
of the investment properties has not been evaluated by an
independent firm of surveyors. The Group has adopted the
cost model under HKAS 40, Investment property, to account
for its investment properties, and accordingly, the carrying
amounts of the investment properties were not adjusted to
the revalued amount at the end of the reporting period.
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R-ZE-—F+-A=+—H UuRFER
EENREYERBCERAEGRERRIFIE
EAEEHE RZT__F+-_H=+—H"
BREAABESATERBREBERGE B
MEAENREMENAABREFHAARE
197,603,0007T * 5% A 7 B TR A 7 1 5 53 s A
BREEVLRERATARESTELHARNUR
BREEYERITELBMEZANBEEEEN
MZHBEMEHOUELRYERTREEE
mEH - REMENA A BEAREE LA AT
o AEBEEHABRB S ERFI05 - B#E
Y AR AREREYE - At
R ERRBREYXEEEAEARESHERE -



11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

(including leasehold right of use assets) (Continued)

(v) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11 REYXE W% BERRE
(#)

ME- - BELZE (BRHEEERREE

E) WRERRE (&)

(v) EREAE

A ES R ERREEEEREL
T :

31 December 1 January
2022 2022
—=-= —F-—
+t=A=+-A —A—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

i3 ARBETT ARBET T

Properties leased for own use, carried at FA{EE AW @ KIFER

depreciated and impaired cost WEKAGHE

(i) 21,370
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

(including leasehold right of use assets) (Continued)

(v) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

11 REYRE W% BERRHE
()

ME- - BELEREG (BEHEEERREE

E) WRERRE (&)

) ERREE (&)

BRNBETHEANHEHE ZFAXHE T

2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T NREESSETE
Depreciation charge of right-of-use LANRRA & E R 5 Y
assets by class of underlying asset: FHREEENERS :
Other properties leased for own use HIEB M EMTE 10,825
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEaENE (Hits0a)) 872
Expenses relating to short-term leases ARG HHEE MEEER
and leases of low-value assets BEMAEMRX 1,105

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB6,608,000. This amount primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities are set out in notes 21(d) and 24,
respectively.

i Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as

its warehouses and offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years.
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REERN - EEFHAEEE A ARYE,608,000
Lo e RITZEFTHERZE THNEARLHE
ENZAER -

HERS AL R HEARGIHHELSTH
1B 755 BIE G A M E21(d) K24 °

HIEE BeVE Y%
FBiBHE R ARECEREREBYERE

RERBERBRENEN - ZFEMEZNFIE
EHR-—BA—ERF -



12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Software
licences
R IE
RMB’000
ARBTT

Cost:
Balance at 1 January 2021
Additions

CES
RoF=—G—A—A2KH
#E

8,001
838

Balance at 31 December 2021

RZBE-_—F+_-_A=+—"Bz&&

Balance at 1 January 2022
Additions

R-BE-_—_F—A—HZ#&&%
e

Balance at 31 December 2022

RZBE_—_F+_A=+—RHZ2&%

Accumulated amortisation:
Balance at 1 January 2021
Charge for the year

Z5ties -
R —F—HA—BHZ&E8
FEIH

(2,805)
(749)

Balance at 31 December 2021

R-ZBE-—F+-A=+—Rz&H

(3,554)

Balance at 1 January 2022
Charge for the year

RZBE_—_F—A—HZ&%
FEXH

(3,554)
(893)

Balance at 31 December 2022

R-E-_—Ft+-A=+—HzZ&%

(4,447)

Net book value:
At 31 December 2022

BRMEFE :
R-_ZE_—_F+_A=+—H

At 31 December 2021

REE === f ==

2,861

The amortisation charges for the year are included in

“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

FEHBHBEAGAGSBERR [TTRER] T -
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13 GOODWILL 13 EE
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: R
At 1 January 2021 A= =% = F| =g 224,340
Exchange adjustments e 5 S (5,602)

At 31 December 2021

R—E—_—F+=-_A=+—8

At 1 January 2022
Exchange adjustments

RZE-—F—H—H
FE 5 A%

At 31 December 2022

R-E-—F+=—A=+—8

Accumulated impairment losses:

At 1 January 2021
Exchange adjustments
Impairment loss for the year

ZEHREESE :
=214 —E
b X T
FERBEERE

At 31 December 2021

R_E-_—F+=_A=+—8

At 1 January 2022
Exchange adjustments

RZE-—F—HA—H
FE 3 A

At 31 December 2022

RZBE_—_F+-_A=+—H

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2022

BRMEIE :
e et = el ] et [

At 31 December 2021

RZZE——F+=—A=+—H

218,738

218,738
18,705

237,443

(160,793)
4,147
(12,855)

(169,501)

(169,501)
(15,928)

(185,429)

52,014

49,237
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13 GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to places of operations and reportable
segments as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13 B8 (&)
EEBEBZRSELENZRER

High-end consuming accessories =i HEBRE

BESRTFAEERBETIEEMIE R ERD
EBETTETE 2 B & EEE AL

2022 2021

—Eg — —dE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

52,014 49,237

High-end consuming accessories

At 31 December 2022, before impairment testing, goodwill
of RMB32,328,000 (2021: RMB42,406,000), RMB 18,000,000
(2021: RMB18,000,000) and RMB1,686,000 (2021:
RMB1,686,000) were allocated to Born Talent Limited,
Shanghai Hengguan Decoration Engineering Management
Co., Lid* (EB=SEMIEEEERAA) and Artdeco
Group Co., Ltd. (BMN=HEZFEEEFRAR]) (formerly known
as Artdeco Decorating & Packaging Co., Ltd. (BN ffhiE
#i BB R /A F)) within the high-end consuming accessories
segment respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are the
discount rate and revenue/gross profit growth rate. The
Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the two
years financial budgets and extrapolates cash flows for the
following three years based on estimated annual average
growth rates in sales ranging from 10% to 35% (2021: (10%)
to 30%), growth rates in gross profit ratio ranging from 1% to
5% (2021: (1%) to 8%), at a discount rate of 13.3% to 14.3%
(2021: 11.1% to 12.5%). Cash flows beyond five years
period are projected using 3% (2021: 3%) growth rate. This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant market. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments. The
growth rates are determined by management based on the
performance of the relevant cash-generating units and their
estimated future development.

* For identification purpose only

AR
R=ZZT-_—F+=-A=+—H8 " &T7REIR
B BB AR#32328000T (Z T = —4F:
A R #42,406,0007T) + A & #18,000,0007T
—ZT——4F: ARK¥18,000,0007t) K AR
168600075(_”**$ A K #1,686,000
7T) ES RIS S BEERESHNNES B
FRAA - Li?ﬁa%ﬁ’rﬁﬂ“”ii*ﬁﬁﬁ A & E
MEHEEFXSEGRA R (BITEEN T A0
HBERAA) °

ReELEBMZAIWE &8 EFEREER
HET FHEEMECEEZERIAMBAX
RBEA/EFEER - KEEBREN F10%
BB BHFEFHHEERLRER (ZTZ—
F: (10%)E30%) * M F1%EE%Z F F| E 1
ER(ZTE=-—F: (1%)&28%) &N F13.3%
F143%2 R X (ZF Z — F: 111%E
12.5%) iREVLEMEI IRTEE 2 I8 & i T8 8 K HE
R =—F RSN AFHENRSREKA
3% (ZZEZ—%F : 3%) WREFEA - ZHMED
BREEMSHFHREEER - FTARRIEX
ATATAE R WREEABAS BEBA ST
B - ZFREREXTHEEERBHEBARSE
EBMZRARGTRRERMET o
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RHBATRIZ#ER

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TXREZHIEREFELE  BEXKBEEEKX
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities &2 yHWEB AT ZH1E - BIEZHIEH @ i
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless & %aERI#9 AL m@A% o

otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

gAML
Place of Group's Held Particulars of
incorporation effective by the Held by issued and paid
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries up capital  Principal activity
r5Ey @Rl EHERR BETRAR
L AMRERNE  BRES i i ERGE IRER
Elegant Jewellery Holding Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% 5,000,000 shares  Investment holding
of HKD1 each
—EREEEERATA A 100% - 100% 5,000,000%&% REEK
HEETZRA
Alpha Key Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
SEREEEERAT ABRAES 100% 100% - RIETZRG  RERR
Hengdeli Giant Dragon Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
FEHNERARAR AERAES 100% 100% - RIETZRG  RERR
Xinyu Hengdeli Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
HTTEHREERAT AERAES 100% 100% - RIETZRG  RERR
Hengdeli International Company Limited ~ Hong Kong 100% - 100% 1 share of HKD1  Trading and management
service
FENERERAR &R 100% - 100% RiBTZRG EHRERRE
Hengdeli Group Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
ZENERARAA ABRIES 100% 100% - RIxTz Rl REER

The directors are of the view that the Group has no HE-ZT-_—FK-_FT-_—F+-A=+—H
individually material non-controlling interest for the years |tFE @ EEZERAAEETEMERMEBEKR
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. M FEER R A o
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15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
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S 785 i A B ik

15 REERT 2R

Unlisted corporate entities FEHEAEE
Share of net assets JEIEEEFE

2022 2021
—E=-= e B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
51,407

The following table shows information of associates that are
material to the Group. These associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates.

Name Hengdeli Deyesion

International Shipping Limited
£ FEHERHERSERRAR
Principal place of business/country of incorporation Hong Kong
B33k g B £

Principal activities Engaged in provision

of shipping services.

IERH S REAER
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by the Group 46%
AREREEERE / REEAAL 46%

2022
—E__F
RMB’000
ARBTR

2021
===l

RMB’000
ARETT

At 31 December: R = Sr= ¢

Non-current assets FnEEE = >
Current assets mEEE 300,029 218,887
Non-current liabilities EREBE (35,362) (63,737)
Current liabilities mEaE (87,972) (68,720)
Net assets BESE

Group's share of net assets AEEEEEEFE

THRIREACHEBES Y HERATEHN -

ZEMERRREE M BHRERRANERIEA

BRI BENBMEBNERBE AR ZEE
RS E M REK -

Mark Ocean Limited  Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited

SHEERAT
Hong Kong
&R

Engaged in vessel holding

Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited
Hong Kong

Engaged in vessel holding

3 i3k
46% 35%
46% 35%

2022 2021 2022 2021
—ECCF Eekdablll T et
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT NS ARETT NS

91,933 100,147 146,208 X

57,028 16,075 64,977 £

5 (105,662) - -
(61,090) SR  (186,341)

176,695 96,430 87,871 10,450 24,844

81,280 44,358 40,421 4,807 8,695

SEAMAIRAT B AR
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15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15 REBE QT Z2MEzE (2)

Name Hengdeli Deyesion Mark Ocean Limited  Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited
International Shipping Limited

4 SENEZHER G EEBR AT #5855 A" Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C TECF TECF [t —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETE WNEP AR%TT EUNSLSOME ARETT NS

Year ended 31 December: #HZE+=F=+—-H

FFE:
Revenue WA 1,496,282 1,253,289 232,521 101,332
Profit after tax T mAl 68,951 94,737 73,788 24,015 -
Other comprehensive income EAZ2E KA 11,278 (1,461) 3,670 820

Total comprehensive income 2 E4 A 258 80,229 93,276 77,458 10,405 24,835

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share TRUUEAHAIRAEBEFRAEREAEREZ
of the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that FTAERIFEE KBS A GIATIHSFE -
are accounted for using the equity method.

2022 2021
—E__ e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
At 31 December: KR+=—HA=+—H8:

Carrying amounts of interests EE=REE 2,242

Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=1+—HILFE:
Profit for the year FEmF 2,557
Other comprehensive income H2mElA =
Total comprehensive income FHEWA LR 2,557
Dividends received from associates B E A RIRE -

During the year, an associate has declared dividends #HERKR X —BEL Q70 =K SENKMBAN
but not yet paid to the Group of RMB2,250,000 (2021: ££=EX% it AR2 250,000 (ZZE=—4F : A
RMB1,800,000). K #1,800,0007T) °

178 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

16 OTHER INVESTMENTS 16 HftikE
(@) Equity investments at fair value through other (a) EBHMEZEWARAIABITEZ
comprehensive income RARRE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—_E__ TEE ——E
Rl —A=1+—8
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AREET T ARBFIT
Equity securities designated EERBBHEMEEUA
at FVOCI (non-recycling) BARER=E (FHEA
Bi&) ZRAFES
— Listed securities — FmFEE (i) 207,176 355,750
— Unlisted fund investments —EEMELSKE 148,155 169,314
355,331 525,064
Notes: Kist -

(i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive (i) BAEMEERKRARAREFENEREE

income (FVOCI) comprise equity securities which the BIEREE R EER B MORAES - A
Group intends to hold for strategic purposes, and which 5 B B R 1) A5 B SR B B 12 1 1] UEH Mt
the Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to RZDBERER - FABXFREKINKE
recognise in this category. RMB9,298,000 of dividends AR¥9,298,000c (ZE=Z—F: ARK
were received on these investments during the year (2021: 13,550,0007T) °

RMB13,550,000).
(ii) The value of the above investments was individually (i) FHEEBELETEAN (ERDRAE

insignificant (individually less than 5% of the Group’s EBEEMNS%) °
total assets).
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16 OTHER INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Equity investments at fair value through profit

HiRE @)

(b) BBEZBRAAEFEZRARE

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—_E__ —EE =

eV ER =l -~ A=+—F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LiE=3 ARBET T ARBETT

11,585

or loss
Equity securities, at fair value BRAEZS  BARE
— Listed securities — Lm#ES ()
Note: Hiat
(i) During the year, no dividends were received on the (i)

equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL) (2021: RMB744,000).

17 INVENTORIES

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

Raw materials B R
Work in progress fE & m
Finished goods BURK
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RAFETHERIBEBEBRELAABEFNE
BRI ENRE (B —F: AR
744,0007T) °

2T
RESHBRRKRZEFEEHRE

2022 2021
== =5 = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETIT

20,090 17,225
32,443 37,200
185,235 543,080

237,768 597,505
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17 INVENTORIES (Continued) 17 #E&#®)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) WREBEXWFTABZZEFEHE
recognised as an expense and included in DU :

profit or loss is as follows:

2021
=g = =
(Restated)
(se&E5)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETIT
Continuing operations: FEEE
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEREE 915,693 740,079
Discontinued operations: HIEEE
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFEREE 565,566 197,745
Write down of inventories T E MR - 32,238
Reversal of write-down of inventories EASE bk E (315,854) (90,967)
249,712 139,016
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 BWE SRR HMEWKIE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—=2=-= =B =
+TZHE=1—H [BaY;i=aal=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T NERSETE
Current assets RENEE
Trade receivables, net of loss U E 5 R FOR BB
allowance 342,832 339,971
Other receivables, net of loss L & U SR IE R B 18
allowance (i) 178,106 175,734
PRC value added tax receivables FE g rh B 32 (E B 20,584 25,098
Receivables from government BT 48 e M R TR
authority (if) 21,573 =
Interest receivables FEURFI B, 8,111 3,725
Dividends receivable from an FEUH & N R IR B
associate 4,050 1,800
575,256 546,328
Prepayment and deposits FENFRIBERIZE 128,371 86,421
703,627 632,749
Non-current assets FRBEE
Prepayment and deposits TERTFIE Rike 1,598
634,347

All of the trade and other receivables in current assets are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Note:

(i) Other receivables include advances to third parties of
RMB104,570,000 (2021: RMB158,310,000), which are
interest bearing at 6% per annum as at 31 December
2022 and are recoverable within one year. The advances
to third parties are fully secured by collaterals obtained
by the Group as at 31 December 2022.

(i) The balance mainly represented a receivable in respect
of return of land use right to the Chenzhou Government.
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss

allowance) at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 785 i A B ik

18 FEWE S RAKH M EWRRE
()
BRI DM

RN E SRR (EHBRERRE) RREHREZ
LEAHE ZRESITAT

2022 2021

—==-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Within 3 months 3fE A A 197,975 271,248
Over 3 months but less than 12 months HBiE3ME A B LR 121E A 140,723 65,791
Over 12 months BiE121E A 4,134 2,932
342,832 339,971

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 360 days from the
date of billing. Further details regarding the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 32(a).

19 LOANS TO ASSOCIATES

FEWE 5 R AR A B ET30£360 H & o
ERAREECEERRNE - THBHNM T
32(a) °

19 REHBEQTZEMR

Loans to associates

2022 2021
—s=-= =EE = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
67,273 77,951

e

R E AR B

The loans to associates are unsecured, interest-free and are  REBE AT 2 ER A EE

repayable on demand. SKIEE o
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20 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

20 RITEX

Deposits with original maturities

over three months T

REHABE=EAZ

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS

2022 2021
—=E-— =EE — =t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
272,701 273,796
21 HRERREEEY
(a) BRERRSZEYERE
2022 2021
—E== ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETIT
1,050,187 661,017

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 25% (2021: 15%), 58% (2021: 67%) and 17%
(2021: 18%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other
currencies, respectively.
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BERBESEEY &)

BR i AT (Eﬁﬁ)/}iﬁﬂ&“‘ JTIEES
REHEER

RMB’000
ARBT T

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to  (b)
cash generated from operations:
Note
Hfat
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREAT (B518), &5
— Continuing operations — FEEE
- Discontinued operations — R EEE
Adjustments for: AEIER -
Depreciation of investment properties KEMERDE  BEX
and property, plant and equipment FEITE 5(c)
Amortisation of intangible assets T A G 5(c)
Finance costs BA RS R AR 5(a)
Interest income F 2 WA 4(a)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 13
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEMZE « BEKEE
property, plant and equipment B8 /(M) B 4(b)

Net realised and unrealised gain on

BBIRmE ’Afﬁfﬁ:ﬁrgz

(31,700)
(56,281)

47,579
893
3,364
(15,400)

investments at fair value through BB 2 BB N ARE
profit or loss Wiz 58
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARERE
Share of profits of associates FEAG S & A B A
Dividend income from other investments 3 5 H 3% & &9 I 2 U0 A
Operating (loss)/profit before EEETEBHINKEE
changes in working capital (E518), &Rl
Decrease in inventories FER>
Increase in trade and other FEU B SRR R EoAtb
receivables FEWRIEIE AN
Increase in trade and other B E 5 BRI E fb e
payables SRIEIE AN

(123,451)

379,119

(64,962)

48,351

Cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

REERRE (FTFE)
Be

239,057

T
¥

2021
TEE — =
(Restated)

(i &%)
RMB’000
ARBTTT

49,678
(30,977)

42,010
749
3,109
(15,008)
12,855
(61)
(185)
3,983

(50,997)
(14,294)

862

31,192

(170,925)

63,865

(75,006)
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BERBEZEEY &)
(Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (¢c) BMETBEECEBYHIR
financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities THRAKREEME ZHEL T BEEIHEFE -
from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing @& EFHELZBEIABRE S REE KK KL
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future REREERAARNEB GRS RERNEA
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated & EHHEEREZAE °

cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
RITEM HE8E #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T AR¥T R
(note 23) (note 24)
(KfzE23) (FffzE24)
At 1 January 2022 IN=EE = == F =g 73,879 23,853 97,732
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRELE !
Proceeds from new bank loans L RITE RS TR
Repayment of bank loans EERRITER
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERENERTH
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEERENFEILD
Interest paid BERFE
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR
Other changes: Hiti2 g :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering P HIRET #7170 & M3 fné)
into new leases during the period HEEE
Decrease in lease liabilities from HEREEBEEANEE
disposal of lease liabilities BERD
Interest charged SHRFE
At 31 December 2022 R-B__F
+-—A=+—H
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERBRLEZEEY @)
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (¢) ®BMEZHELEZEEYER (&)
financing activities (Continued):
Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
RITER HEBRE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBF T ARET T
(note 23) (note 24)
(Kiz#23) (Kizt24)
At 1 January 2021 RZZ=Z—F—HA—H 29,918 33,666 63,584
Changes from financing cash flows: MERESREL
Proceeds from new bank loans LRI E NG A 45,000 = 45,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (857) = (857)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERSHEART S = (9,974) (9,974)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERSOHFERS - (872) (872)
Interest paid BAFIE (2,237) = (2,237)
_ OIE0E E LOCEDI S0
Exchange adjustments b 5 2 (182) 357 175
Other changes: Hith g :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering PR ET S5 AE & T 38 h0
into new leases during the period OEN==R - 3,961 3,961
Decrease in lease liabilities from disposal ~ HEHEABELNAE
of lease liabilities BERD = (675) (675)
Decrease in lease liabilities from disposal ~ HEWEARELNAE
of subsidiaries BERD = (3,482) (3,482)
Interest charged FHRFI B 2,237 872 3,109
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, A e e T T N
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—F
TF=H=Er=H 73,879 23,853 97,732
FRFIEERARAT R AR 187
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases

comprise the following:

21 BERBEZEEY &)

(d) HERSRHALEE
HREEHARSRERZSEBENTEEA

2022 2021
- =ER T =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Within operating cash flows KEBEMET (1,823) (1,105)
Within financing cash flows BERSRESP (13,392) (10,846)
(15,215) (11,951)
These amounts relate to the following: ZECRHENTIEE B :
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Lease rentals paid BENHEERS 15,215 11,951
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
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22 ENEZRIAREMENRE
UREHEE

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

—E-_= — =
+=A=+-n5 [RECEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT

Trade payables FERTE 5 R 119,366 99,981
Contract liabilities BHEME 16,861 3,282
Other payables and accrued expenses HEMEARERERER 65,708 53,893

201,935 157,156

Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

BRER D AT
RBEBRR  REZEHFAEAESHERZER
BT

2022 2021
—_E_— g

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AREETT

Within 1 month 1@ AR 56,995 48,049
Over 1 month but less than 3 months BB 18 A8 L R3EA 54,926 43,585
Over 3 months but less than 12 months BiBE3E A B L1218 A 7,426 8,199
Over 12 months HBiE1218 A 19 148

119,366 99,981

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

When the Group receives a deposit before the shop design
and decoration service commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the project exceeds the amount of the deposit.
The amount of the deposit is negotiated on a case by case
basis with customers.

ERENABESENIENTETBEOTEE

B AR B R A R RS BR TS 5 46 AT U B R
i IRTEARNRKBELANAE &
EHEEANBUABEESNEE  TENE
BERRBEABBRAETSHA
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 22 EFNEZERRKHEMENFE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) UREHNER &)

Movements in contract liabilities EHBEE
2022 2021
—E__ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AEBTT

Balance at 1 January R—A—R & 3,282 10,222

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result ~ FRERWAFTEHR A EN 2
of recognising revenue during the year GHAEERD
that was included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the year (8,127)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of FERWEIEEELFER 2 A K

receiving sales deposits during the year =Ree il 1,187
Balance at 31 December Rt A=+—Hz&% 3,282

No sales deposits received are expected to be recognised MEEWHETSTERBNBA —FRERS

as income after more than one year. WA o
=R
23 BANK LOANS 23 SRITEW
As at 31 December 2022, the bank loans were repayable as RZZE_—F+-_HA=+—H EEERTE
follows: AT ¢
2022 2021
=== T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTT
Within 1 year or on demand 1F AR IR ESK 56,799 R 46,925
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEBER2FER 4,545 4,606
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FRIENSFNR 13,631 13,819
After 5 years 5% 1% 6,746 8,529

24,922 26,954

81,721 73,879
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23 BANK LOANS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the bank loans were secured as
follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 SR1ITER (&)

R-ZB-—F+-A=+—8 " RITEZHK
AT

2022 2021
—E__ —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT

Bank loans within one year or on demand  —FERSIREREZEHNIRITER
Secured AR 56,799 46,925

Bank loans after one year —FRERNRITENR

Secured HHE A 24,922 26,954
81,721 73,879

Certain secured bank loans are all drawn down under certain
bank facilities secured by certain land and buildings of the
Group with aggregate carrying values of RMB187,885,000
(2021: RMB194,937,000).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the banking facilities
were not subject to the fulfilment of the covenants based on
the lending arrangements with financial institutions. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set
out in note 32(b).

24 LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as

UAREEHEREEG A AR®187,885,000
T(ZZE=-—4F: AR¥194,937,0007T) K&
F L REFHIRIBERFENE TRITERR
THHE TEEMBITERE 2 2R ©

KRB _—_FR_F_—Ft_H=1+—H"
RITEEBAXBRRETRERSREBII L
ZERLZBHELN R - FRAAEERPES
[ B PR A3 — P RHE N M RES2(b) o

24 FHEAE
NZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H EEEHEER
BaR :

follows:
2022 2021
—E_— =g =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEET T ARETTT
Within 1 year 1FER 10,802 11,774
After 1 year but within 2 years 1B BER2ER 3,272 9,308
After 2 years but within 5 years 2ERBNEER 3,270 2,560
After 5 years 5% 1% - 211
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, lelore
23,853
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25 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at rates ranging from 14% to 16% of the
eligible employees’ salaries for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: from 14% to 16%).

Pursuant to the labour regulations of Malaysia and Taiwan,
the Group joined defined contribution retirement plans for
its employees. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at the applicable rates ranging from
2% to 15% based on the eligible employees’ salaries (2021:
from 2% to 15%).

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 (2021:
HKD30,000). Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of its

employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits
other than the contributions described above.
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

(a) The 2015 share option scheme

On 19 May 2015, a share option scheme was established
which will be used to grant option to selected participants
including but not limited to directors and employees of the
Group in order to provide incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. As at 31 December 2022, no
option was granted under the 2015 share option scheme.

(b) Share award scheme

Pursuant to a share award scheme approved by the Board
in 2015, the Company may purchase its own shares and
grant such shares to certain employees or consultants of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no share has been granted to the Group’s employees and
directors under the share award scheme (see note 7).

The consideration paid for the purchase of the Company’s
shares is reflected as a decrease in the capital reserve
of the Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of shares is recognised
as staff costs in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve, which is measured based on the grant
date share price of the Company.
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 HZEHMBEMRRRZAEHR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) #x& Bf Ak R R = Z< 2 & 4% %1 18

of financial position represents: ig .
2022 2021
—=E=-= = = =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ANEABIIE — BB FEH
Provision for the year ANEE RS 53
Tax refund BT 143
Tax paid BEAHIE (40)
Exchange adjustments bE H 3H 69
225
Balance of Profits Tax provision BEFE 2 NS REER
relating to prior years 3,804
o B029
Current tax — Overseas INERFIIE — MgHh
Provision for the year REEEE 2,103
Tax refund B 615
Tax paid BRI (3,338)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (620)
3,409
Represented: 15
2022 2021
—E__ —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Current tax recoverable ZRER AT Y B % 18 (168) (178)
Current tax liabilities REAFI IR B & 4,961 3,587

4,793 3,409
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(i) Deferred tax assets recognised

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the years ended 31 December 2022 and

2021 are as follows:
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27 HMEMBMRRRZFAEH @)

(b) ERIAELEHEBEEERERS

() CEIEEHEESE
RBE_T__FR-_ZF_—F+-A=+—
HIEFERAEGEMBRARAER ZIELER
BEEZHEKED REBEF| AT

Tax losses

not utilised

KA AR EREE

RMB’ 000

AR¥TT

Balance at 1 January 2021 KRB —F—A—Hz#&#H 52
Credited to profit or loss FFAEZ= 277
Exchange adjustments HE 5 8 B (6)

Balance at 31 December 2021

R-ZE_—F+_A=+—Bz#&%

Balance at 1 January 2022
Credited to profit or loss
Exchange adjustments

RZE_—_F—A—HZ&&

st
A

Balance at 31 December 2022

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—Hz#&%
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 HZEMBRARZAEH &)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) ERFVELERBEERERS (&)

(Continued)
(i)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised (i) CRIELHEBEEE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in Rz T - —FF T - —F+ - F=+—
the consolidated statement of financial position and the B | IEERNELGEESFBRIENER ZIRER
movements during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 1B& & Z4BKZH REEHH|WOT -
2021 are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances in
excess of related
depreciation

ERE

BRERITE

RMB’000

AR® T

Balance at 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—F—HZ&EH 2,325
Credited to profit or loss FFAEZ= (1,864)
Exchange adjustments PE 57 (7)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZF-—F+ZA=1+—BZ&R 454

Balance at 1 January 2022
Credited to profit or loss
Exchange adjustments

KRB —_F—A—HZ&&
sF A
[ X g

Balance at 31 December 2022

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HBz&%
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB120,171,000 (2021: RMB106,674,000) in respect
of cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. The
tax losses for subsidiaries in Mainland China and Taiwan
will expire during the periods from 2022 to 2026 and from
2022 to 2031, respectively. The tax losses for subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and Malaysia do not expire under current tax
legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the tax laws in Mainland China, 10% withholding
tax is levied on foreign investors (5% for foreign investors
who are registered in Hong Kong provided they meet certain
criteria) in respect of profit distributions arising from a
foreign investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
RMB103,479,000 (2021: RMB105,391,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of RMB5,174,000 (2021: RMB5,269,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries in Mainland
China and it has been determined that it is probable that
these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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27 HZEMBERRRZFEHR &)

(c) RERAZELEMBEE

RIEMIEE 1 (s)FTE & 5T R - AR A AR alE
EERERETAA NG AR ERHEERD
RIRMERTE = F - AR BN 5t R TR IEE
BRERELERIEEEARK120,171,0007T (=
T —4F: AR¥106,674,0007T) ° i AR B
A & & &R M E A RR R IEEES S RIR =
T CFE T RFRIFIFEF=
—FRY - BEBERBBHLBER  URBERS
R HIE R B TIEEIB T &R -

(d) REIZELEHIREE
RIFFEAMTE - INEREEBRIEARE
EER-_TTNF—A—BARREUZERN M
EE MY KRBT EI10%HN AL - RE
AR ZIINEREERTEE TEEARHR K
5% TR

R-BE-_—F+_A=+—H8 ' A@HERF
RAOBEEN 2 ERERE R/ ARK103,479,0007T
—T——F: AR¥105,391,0007T) ° BAA
AREHIM NP ERM 2 ZERB AR ZRE
BOR  MEBEETARATERTRRRDIRE
B Al - AR R B A D R % B R B ) B S e
XN IERERIELETIES EAKS5,174,000
T (ZZEZ—%F : AR%5,269,0007T) °
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EX - FHEERKRE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) MERFRERED 2 &5

The reconciliation between the opening and closing kemea AR~ EV)REKRLEHL
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HWERNEAEXEEGE - ARATRENRE
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in k> RS AR AR S BB R T
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual

components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the year are set out below:

The Company AR
Fair Value
Capital reserve
Share Share  redemption  Capital (non- Exchange  Accumulated
capital  premium reserve  reserve  recycling)  reserve losses Total
MERE
e (FTEA

Bx kel REEE ERER Fi) ERRE KRR it
Note ~ RMBOOD RMBO0D ~ RMBOO) RMBOOO  RMBOOO RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO)
fiE  ARBTn ARRTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2021 R-B--E-A-Re&s 20337 2,620,409 761 - 80530  (317.850) (1274.480) 1,131,707
Changes in equity for 2021: WoB--FREEE:
Profitfor the year ERAT - - - - - - 8372 8372
Other comprehensive income EREHR2ERA

for the year - - - - (34)555)  (28,876) - (63,431)
Total comprehensive income 2ENAEE - - - - (34555)  (28876) 8372 (55,059)
Shares repurchase RirGE (821)  (49,838) 821 - - - - (49,838)

Amounts transferred from fair value  HERERERLEHE
reserve (non-recycling) toretained ~ (RATEAER) BEZ

profits upon disposal of investments ~~ RBEF|Z 28 - - - - 1421 - (1421) =

Balance at 31 December 2021 W-B=-F+ZB=t-8
8 21516 2570571 (346,726)  (1,267529) 1,026,810

Balance at 1 January 2022 R-B-ZE-B-ReEh 21516 2,570,571 (346,726)  (1,267529) 1,026,810
Changes in equity for 2022: WoB-ZERRED:
Profi for the year EREEH - 7,991 7,991
Other comprehensive income for EFEOETTN

the year (161,340) (71,451)
Total comprehensive income 2ENNEE - (161,340) (63,460)
Shares repurchase BORA (262)  (16,592) - (16,592)

Amounts transferred from fairvalue ~ HERERENLERE
reserve (nonrecycling) toretained  (FAIEAER) BEZ
profits upon disposal of investments ~~ RBEF| 228 12,789 (12,789)

Balance at 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+ZB=1-H
&8

21,054 2553979 (101,155) (2568%7) (127227) 946,758
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Dividends

The directors do not recommend or declare the payment of

any dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

(c) Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital
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28 EBXFX - #ERRE @)

(b) KE
EETERIERBE_T_—_FR-_T_—
FHt-A=1t—HULEFENERMRE -

() MB=&
AT LB BT

2022 2021
—E-C e
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares HKD shares HKD
8 £
RHEE BT Bingg BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.005 each ~ &RE{E0.005/ T 2 Lk 10,000,000,000 GO  10,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 January R—A—H 4,464,806,959 22,324,034 4,662,666,959 23,313,334
Share repurchased EERRG (60,788,000) (EORECEON  (197,860,000) (989,300)
At 31 December R+ZA=1—H 4,404,018,959 PPXPINEIS 4 464,806,959 22,324,034

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of
60,788,000 (2021: 197,860,000) listed shares on the Stock
Exchange by way of acquisition from the market at the price
between HKDO0.3 to HKDO0.315. The total consideration paid
was approximately HKD19,202,000.

equivalent equivalent
ik} i
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR ARETT

21,254 21,516

TERF[AABRRBIFERZRE - F
BE—BBROARARRBRRAG LR —F -
BEBBREARANBREE N BHZERFE

2
S o

BX

RAFEE - AR ATIS W E A = B R AT
0.38BTE0NSEITHERERLE EWRMDE
#60,788,0000% (= & = — £ : 197,860,000
i2) - ZTBREL RHE19,202,0007T °
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

- The excess of the consideration paid by the Company
over the aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the Group’s
reorganisation;

- The difference between the consideration paid by
the Group to non-controlling interest holders and the
carrying amount of the respective non-controlling
interests; and

- The consideration paid for the purchase of the
Company’s shares under the share award scheme.

(iiiy  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the entities within the Group whose functional
currency is other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(v).

(iv)  Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period (see note 1(f)).

(v) PRC statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were approved by
the respective boards of directors.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) PRC statutory reserve (Continued)

PRC statutory reserves include general reserve, enterprise
expansion fund, and statutory surplus reserve.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, which are wholly foreign-
owned enterprises in the PRC, are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of
a dividend to shareholders. Moreover, they are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profit after taxation, as
determined under PRC GAAP, to the enterprise expansion
fund.

The general reserve fund can only be used to make good
previous years' losses upon approval by the relevant
authority. The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase the entity’s capital or to expand its production
operations upon approval by the relevant authority.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up
capital, provided that the balance of the reserve after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of
the subsidiaries.

(vi)  Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 was RMB1,180,497,000
(2021: RMB1,350,438,000).
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(d) fEBERVEERBRY (&)

(v) HEDEERE (&)

TEAERBERE —RER  CXBREER
EERBATE -

RIFEBEFBEDARER > AEENFENER
A (BREMIIEBEELE) ARRSFRRS
B2 R EEE 2 10%H 1% 6 N E & E —RRF
BES BEERBEGEHRESNREZMERZ
50% ° B E I RHE S AR D KBS T BIRA
T o WS REAEBRBREPELIREER
ABE A TEOLREENECRERES -

—REEESRVTERSIEREIEE BRI ER
RIERAEEFERE CERRESRAHA
BREERIEERMERSBIFENERZER
SIREAER -

AEBRBABABERBEEFEESR (11E)
RAlE® AR B - EBBRRE 2 REEHT
BLORMBRARZEMERZ25%

(viy AIEDIRREE

RIEFSHSRRDE  NARRERRNDEE
BNBRRZDIRSERS - HEARR BN EREZE
Aok E B BRI AI N EEEBBE
REEIHEH AR -

RZB-_—_FE+=-A=+—H ' XAFAHED
K (b 4858 A AR #51,180,497,0007T (—ZF =
—4 : AR#1,350,438,0007T) °
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to the finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of a net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes total interest-bearing
borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks. Capital comprises all components of equity.
The net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31 December 2022 is
(89)% (2021: (26)%). During 2022, the Group’s strategy was
unchanged from 2021.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

29 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2022
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

28 EBXFX - @HERRE @)

(e) BEAEE

AEBEREAZETRBRNREARENR
BREED KMEBRRREBKFHEEZE
mERBEEBARESAERANRE - &&
RBCREERIR - BEMN AR EEIENS

AEEEGREPRRTREEREARE - A
ERERREBENR A EHEZ RS EEK
R 4 B9 B AR K Y 4 BT S AR IR 2 R ER
B¥eE YREEERENBICHERNRENE
A%

AEBIRFEEEALKRERHEEARNEE - 5b
s CARFEEETERBERE (2
B EBERSE) RRSRESEEYRIET
TR - BEABEMERSAKSD -RZF=
“F+ZA=+—H8 FABEALEREI%
(ZEB=Z—F : (26)%) - R—ZT—_—F - X5 E
ZREGE — T — —F AR o

of A

LINGEE G201 PN RPN 6w
ERZRH -
29 Rif
BAEIE

R-B-__F+-_A=t—BHABITERR
MR AEHER B 2 BARERIIINT

Contracted for SEES)

2022 2021
—Z==-= et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
64,792 54,274
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30 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year, in line with the established strategy, the
Group ligquidated its remaining watch stocks and completely
cease its renowned watch operations. This segment is
separately reported with the comparative figures restated
accordingly.

The results of the discontinued operations for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which have been included in
consolidated profit or loss, are as follows:
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30 CRIERKERK

FEAR - REBEAEEE - AEEEFIHOEE
VTLTTT/aIE PHEHAERT BEXBKHNE
- WA E R 2 WUt D HE R ABEEF 25 L E

%(%°

RE-F-—F+-A=1—
I 575 2 SRR T AR 183 - I

HIEFEZER

wmr

2022 2021
—E==-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBETT ARET T

Revenue WA 220,293 114,968
Cost of sales SHER A (249,712) (139,016)
Gross loss E8 (29,419) (24,048)
Other revenue HAb A 7,329 8,762
Other net loss E’r@&ﬂaﬁa%’ﬁ (12,656) (2,384)
Distribution costs 2 SHRC AN (11,848) (1,708)
Administrative expenses THER (9,168) (11,136)
Loss from operations KR (55,762) (30,514)
Finance costs EUE I (519) (463)
Loss before taxation FRFE AT ES 18 (56,281) (30,977)
Income tax credit Frigfiik e 2,812 1,901

Loss for the year FEEHE (53,469) (29,076)

T
¥

AR ABRA R B AR
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXRBAEIRS
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management personnel compensation and (a) FEEE A SR REBBEENGT
post-employment benefit plans 2|

Remuneration for key management personnel of the XREFFTEESBAEEFMEENTFAATES
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors (R 7HE) RETERaSEMES (LK s
as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid 1#5) 24%8 - &HBEW | :

employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETIT

Short-term employee benefits i E B2 A 10,441 10,812
Post-employment benefits BB 2 18 A 60 60

10,872

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note FHERBEERERIEIRA] A (FLREWE
5(b)). 5(b)) °
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Recurring transactions
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31 EXBEEIRS (&)

The Group REE
2022 2021
—E_—_— —E_——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Shop design and decoration services [ A% B &R B R4 2 SR SRR BT IR B
provided to Primetime Group AR 75 23,951
Goods purchased from Primetime Group  BEKEBEEE 2 &0 288
Payment made on behalf of the subsidiaries 2% £ Bt 5 it B A 7 2 2 718
by Primetime Group 113
Receipt on behalf of Primetime Group BB R Bl R AR SR B UE 2 B
by the subsidiaries 1,167
Goods and services purchased from Bt AREE 2 m kRS
associates 57,787
Rental and electricity income from REHERARZHE RENRA
associates 1,326

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above transactions with related parties were conducted
in the ordinary course of business, on normal commercial
terms and in accordance with the agreements governing
such transactions.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the directors’
remuneration and shop design and decoration services
provided to Primetime Group constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, and the Company confirms that it has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the relevant
transactions.

ARBEERRNLBETRGNEBREER
PR -RARGTET AERKEERARS
Z T

(c) FEBEEXZzLmRABERMKE

EREZFMERARKEBEREZEHR R
RERBK <HEST RSB LETRUF14ASF
EENRKEBEBERS  AAREICHEER
ZEFETRANE AT TER ZKERTE

s,
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks is limited because the counterparties are
major banks and financial institutions, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 360 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than
1 month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.
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32 HEBEEBREERARE
AEBAEEBBEFSREE  RBES
MEREERR - AEETAZERAMES
ZRAISA 2 B -

AEEREHZ LSRR RAEEAESE L

FRkz FEREREERR R BN T -

(a) fFEEMR

EERRBEEFTERANEAMERAEE
EEMBERZAR AKRENEERRIE
IR B EIE 5 R e B R R IR o NERE AT
mH2RERE LR EFBYMRRITERNE
SERBRAR - Iﬂ?ﬁﬁ$%lﬁﬁﬁgﬂ
RENTERTREEEE BEEECHER

ERE  UREHMAAZNEERRETE
LW E ZRF R EMEEFREMS » HEX

HBA—EEESENME TP ETHENEERT
o ZEFEDHERFEHER 2 AR
NERICERET Uit kEF 2 HBEEMN R
EZRBEPIKEMEZKLERE - BINE FHERN
MAZEASEE80E360H 2 H - & H A H —
BAREERBZEBARNERETRBIMEE
Al EBEFAREERIE - A&EE—RKRITE
MR P YEER R ©

o

JE U E 5 Rk
AEBREERBEAFENRACEEREE S
B (ARREETR) tERKEZRIBER
B AXAKEMNBEEEERERABRTTR

BEEDBMBEREERZBEIZE  SUZB RN
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:
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32 H¥EEREERAAE &

(a) EERE #&)
FEW B 5 8RR (42

TRINTEBAREREYNE ZEREERAE
R MIRREEBRER

2022
—ZE__—
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHRIB K IREARE EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Elasd AREET T ARET T
Current (not past due) BNHEA (R#1E7) 0.01% 293,520 29
Less than 3 months past due B HA A RA31E A 0.1% — 2% 10,164
More than 3 months but less than B B A 3(E A A
12 months past due L 121E A 1% — 20% 40,245
More than 12 months past due # B A 1218 A 25% — 100% 11,366
355,295
2021
== =%
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHRIE K = ARE (A EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Btk AREFIT AREET T
Current (not past due) BRER (R ER) 0.01% 314,812 31
Less than 3 months past due B 8 D3 1E A 0.1% — 2% 15,509 155
More than 3 months but less than  #EEAFA:E31E A
12 months past due BALR12ME A 1% — 20% 8,020 890
More than 12 months past due 10 HA R B 1 21E A 25% — 100% 8,210 5,504
346,551 6,580
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past three years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

32 HMEKERMEERAAMEE)

(a) EERK &)

EWE SRR (&)

TR BARIZAE=ZFNERBIEEHTE -
ZEF R LAFEN R ERE L SUE R 2
FOBEAR & ATARR A R AN 52 [ 3 fE R SR IB TR
HIFH 2 CERANBEAZENEZR -

FRNEHERKE ZERNERBER 2 Z 0
e

2022 2021

—E—_— —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥ETTT

Balance at 1 January R—A—R 2z 6,580 6,689
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRAE ERBEEIE 5,883 4,701
Amounts written off M58 - (4,810)
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—Bz&#% 6,580
The following significant changes in the gross carrying U TEKESRREEHE EAEFHEH—

amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase in
the loss allowance during 2022:

- increase in days past due over than 3 months but
less than 12 months resulted in an increase of loss
allowance of RMB4,168,000; and

- increase in days past due more than 12 months
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
RMB1,728,000.

Other receivables

Impairment of other receivables are measured as either
12-month ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition.
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5

= 150 BB 1B 1 21 B By K BRI 0 i B ks 18 B
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants,
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate

to ensure
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32

(b) REEEEE

committed lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

Trade and other payables excluding BT BB R fEf FE
contract liabilities (PRERIAR)
Secured interest-bearing loans FERRER

Within 1
year or on
demand
10 R
RMB'000

ARETR

185,074
59,264

244,338

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Within 2
years but
over 1 year
2L
EREEENES
RMB'000
AR#T R

5,042

5,042

BECECCETCACH-ALER
Within 5 Undiscounted
years but Over5  contractual
over 2 years years cash flow
GEDL ABREH
BBoE BB5E Reng
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR

= = 185,074
14,581 6,925 85,812

14,581 6,925 270,886

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z--E1-A=+-ALLER

HBEREERAALE ®)

ﬁ@ﬁ@@@%$%@ﬁ%@%@ﬁ%%ﬁ&
BER  AEENBRRECHERERDER
FREEBEBTIEERH Mﬁﬁﬁﬁrmﬁ
CRERORITRSNAREERE
NREBNRBESTERK -

& LA

Carrying
amount

REE
RMB'000

ARBTR

185,074
81,721

266,795

Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or on years but years but Over5  contractual Carrying
demand  over 1year over 2 years years cash flow amount

1L LAV SELA AEREH
GEER EERIF  EEE EiB5F Reng BHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARETT  ARBTR ARETRE  ARETR

Trade and other payables excluding BT E B R L fEf FE
contract liabilities (TefEanak) 153,874 - - - 153,874 153,874
Secured interest-bearing loans RERBER 49,130 4,984 14,564 8,703 77,381 73,879
203,004 4,984 14,564 8,703 231,255 221,753
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from interest-bearing loans.

Borrowings issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The interest rates and maturity
information of the interest-bearing bank loans disclosed in
note 32(c)(i) and note 23 respectively.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant interest
rate movements and rates are relatively fixed. The Group
does not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

(i) Interest rate profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments was:

2022 2021
—E-C =T —tE
Effective Effective
interest rate RMB’000 interest rate RMB’000
L YilEs ARBT T BRAIX ARBTT
%
1.40% - 4.00% 73,879

%

Variable rate instruments AEFETA
Secured interest-bearing loans EEBAEBER 2.00% - 3.70%
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AMEmEBA—EBESHRTIENAAERRKES
RERMSNESEHMEBNER - AEB 2
MERREZREFTEERK °

NATEREREFEMNEELNEESCRER
BRI 2 E F R R R K& @/‘E@f]$ﬂ?
AERITERZ M = R EIHE K9 B K &
32(c)(i) R MIFE23 K B °

AEE 2 R AT EE N R E R ARERHBE
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit/(loss) after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB680,000 (2021: RMB626,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would not be
affected in response to a general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s interest expense that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
floating rate instruments which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk at that date. The analysis does not take
into account exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising
from fixed rate instruments as the Group does not hold any
fixed rate instruments which are measured at fair value in
the financial statements. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as 2021.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through
sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily RMB and HKD. In respect of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group’s policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
PBOC rates.
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32 HMXEREERAAE £

(c) F=EEF (&)

(i) SHRBEDN
R-B-—F+_-A=+—8 " fHHxxgg
A THRI00EEZ MAEHEM T ETRES
BIE s AEENBRRT (EE) K
m/ R RARER & F 49 A R #680,0007T (=T
——%F: AR¥626,0007T) ° SR ERHEAM
BRI BT SEAF RO EFH TR

|| B2 48R
B E

NEBRESHMET  BRENBEHRLEN
g WERNZAHRERAEASEEHRES
MEBANXERF S TAR  NEBENFEH
XAREHBENFLEE AR ARELEFE
EARMBEREANRAABFENEEN KT
B oMY ESAREENERTAELENAR
BENXER - SME_Z_—FHRE-—EEHE
BB

d) HE¥EB

REBAZHEERREER S EBERE
BIEEE AN S ENBE - BERE
BoBAHAROEEIBAARBRET -
RUNEHEN S S EERBENS A%E
REZSEERRMMAREEING - WUER
55 ER A0 K18 - TR S BT AR M 4 1 T4 K

ARETBEHRLBKRING - FIELRARE
HINE R 5 B RE R B AR IRTT S H A R 42
BEEIMNENBBET - INEXZAHRMRZIE
RHPBRARRITERE °
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d)  Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.

32 BIBEREERAAE®)

(d) E¥mRE &)

(i) EREREKO
TRALAKENRREPREEREERARE
(AFRERDEEEANINERTE) EENH
SRERBKO -

As at 31 December 2022
(expressed in RMB)
R-EB-_—_%#+-_HA=+—H

(UAAR®Z5)
RMB’000 HKD’000
ARET T FE T
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEY 278 28
Overall net exposure R b SRR 278 28
As at 31 December 2021
(expressed in RMB)
i e g e =
(AARKZ3)
RMB’000 HKD’000
ARET T FHIT
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESEFEY 1,599 155
Overall net exposure R R [ ) H AR 1,599 155
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d)  Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit/(loss) after tax and retained profits for the
year that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between Group companies where the
balances are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower.
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32 BIBEREERAAE#)

(d) E¥RM &)

(i) SHRBEDN
TREAMMEBFABRESN (EB) RRE
S ) B 7S 5 (B BT 7 52 2R K [ B Y B SR A R 5
ANEE (REBEMAEMRARFEEERFTE) A58
LIRMENRE 28 - FRESTEREEE QM
R MASERTIANERASERAGE
BB AN EHEETHE -

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Increase/ Increase/

(CEEERE)] Effect on profit (decrease) Effect on loss
in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and
exchange rates retained profits exchange rates retained profits
E* HBHREENR fE & 1R A Jo

tH(TR) REZHNTE RH/(TR) RKRBEMNHTZE

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AR®ETT

HKD BT 5% 8
-5% (8)

RMB AR 5% 80
-5% (80)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency
risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
The stated changes represent management’s

remain
constant.
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate over the period until the end of next annual
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2021.
would not be affected in response to a general increase/
decrease in exchange rates.

Other components of consolidated equity

A EHBREDMERRNRE ARE X LR E
B YOERANESEEERZAFEZERT
EMEBER  AEABEEMGEH (LEEHN
R)RFTEMET - MIZSHEEREEHESR

RENEE T~ BERREHASRAELY
E’JEWE *ﬁ?ﬁ—g:—fﬁﬁl\]ﬁ—gﬁijo

e EMARE D
LR TRMRITE -

R SRR E
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments held for strategic purposes (see note 16).

The Group’s major equity investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and are included in the Hang Seng Index.
Listed investments held in the equity securities designated
as FVOCI portfolio have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

At 31 December 2022,
decrease of 10% (2021:
have increased/decreased the Group’s fair value reserve by
approximately RMB21,451,000 (2021: RMB36,734,000).

it is estimated that an increase/
10%) in the share price would

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change on the Group’s fair value reserve that would arise
assuming that the changes in the share price had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments which expose the
Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

(f)  Fair value measurement
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the

measurement date.
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(e) MRERMRK
NEBEEHEBRBENZBRARERELY
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i)

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

32

S 785 i A B ik

HBEREERAALE ®)

J
AREFEZEREERAE (&)

RAEEREE (B)

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2  —

inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data

are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using —

significant unobservable inputs.

The Group REH

Other investments (note 16):  HibI%E (AfF16) :
Listed investments EmEE

Unlisted fund investments FEMESEHE

Fair value at

31 December

2022
RN-TE=-——

+=A=+-H

ZDRE
RMB’000
ARET

214,512
148,155

362,667

FE_MHE: PAERAE_REBAR
BFtE ARBENEE—R2AEBERE
AERB  RTERBEXNTAEEGA
RHE - TABRHAERSEERGEM
SHIEZBARR -

E=HEE: AAERABEATTRE
BAEAHE

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2022 categorised into
RZBZZF+ZRB=+—H
RTIDEZDAEFE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

£ F-H F=/
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARBTR  ARETR

214,512

214,512
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 32 HXEREERAARE #)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) (fy DREFE #E)

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

BAREBZEREERERE (&)

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2021 categorised into
N_ZE_—F+_A=+—H
hzTﬁIJ“* ZRfERE

Fair value at
31 December

2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-ZZE-—F
+=-A=+—H
ZARE E—1 -3 E=ZR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBF T ARBT T ARBT T
The Group REHE
Other investments (note 16):  EAtIR& (f15116) :
Listed investments EmiRE 367,335 367,335 - -
Unlisted fund investments FETERKRE 169,314 - 50,153 119,161
536,649 367,335 50,153 119,161

At 31 December 2022, the financial instruments of the
Group carried at fair value were equity securities of
RMB214,512,000 (2021: RMB367,335,000) listed on the
Stock Exchange (see note 16). These instruments are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and their
fair value measurements fall into Level 1 of the fair value

hierarchy described above.

MNRZTZ_—_F+-_A=+—8 xEERAAL
BEARNSH T AEABRB AT EMARAE S
AR #214512,000 (ZZE=Z—F: AR
367,335,0007T) (;52 R MzE16) - ZE T ALK
FUAARENE BERQAAEFESEA LM

FIRH AR BEEREEE R -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no BE_T__F+_A=+—HIFE"
transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out A& EEEE — 4% T A 2 ) iz A% {F {A] a3 4 - DWHL)\

of Level 3.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

The valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements were determined by the Group’s
share of the amounts of net asset value of the fund portfolio
investment.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform
the valuations.

Disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used in level 3
fair value measurements:
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32 BREREERAAEE)

() RDREFE @)
() ROAREEZEHEEREE (B)

£ KRR EFERMANGEERNREAZE
HASERLHESCHANREEEFEHSRER

M EF=ROAENE  AEE-—RBZE
BEERAIBREROIRE RIS EHESR
REITHE -

= WA ER SR BERM M ABRR

R A

Effect on fair

value for
Valuation increase
Description technique Inputs Range of inputs
WAHBEM
it B BWAHE gE HAnENTE
Unlisted fund investments FLTEESRE Market USD1.8 million
approach Equity value to USD3.4 million Increase
k)3 EnEE 1.8A8ET =
E3ABBET
Discount for Lack
of Marketability 5%-15% Decrease
R M5 5%Z15% D
AR
Unlisted fund investments FEMESEE Net asset value ~ Net asset value N/A Increase
BETE BEFE N 0
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based

HREREERAALE ®)

DREFE (&)

REE=ZMUARAEAENEE 2R

2022

B
RMB’000

ARBT T

119,161
13,427

(26,420)
(25,889)
9,690

on level 3:
At 1 January Rn—H—H
Additions NE
Net (loss)/gain recognised in other A E M 2 WA P RERA (B18),/
comprehensive income Wz 58
Settlements #E1ST
Exchange realignment DEE 5, 5 &
At 31 December = B ==

89,969
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2021
===
RMB'000
ARET T

1,485
119,036

1,991

(1,485)
(1,866)

119,161



32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(iiiy  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

(g) Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgement and therefore cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value for each class of financial instruments:
(i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, and trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate fair value because of the
short maturities of these instruments.

(ii) Interest-bearing bank loans

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair
value based on the borrowing rates currently available for
bank loans with similar terms and maturity.
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32 BREREERAAEE)

(f) DREFE #E)
(i) MHFRAALBIENEHREERAEN

DNARE
R-F_—_FR-_F_—F+t-A=t—8"
AREBIZRASBFHRAATRN SR T ANRK

HEEERAABZHEALEERAER

(@) DAEME

ARERNEERBREEETSEN KSR

TEHZEREH G - XFHEEEEH I

/*/F&THHEEI%)de’ﬁﬁkﬂﬁﬁZ%lﬁ 54
= I\

N,

X

H
Tﬁ%/ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ cBRNEEFAERREY
ERnEME -

EHEemIANAABEEANTAERRZE

ThE

(i) REeRESZEEY ERESERRH
fREWKRIE BNESRARHEMES
E78E]

HRZEIANFHRE  WEEEEREAR

BERE -

(i) FTEBITER

*ETFEEM—M%HXH{\%%’\&EJHHEI*B%E’]% R1TE
FROBENEFE  ROTEFNREEEAAR
TE*E
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33 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

33 RRAERFBMREK

2022
—ZE—=

RMB’000

ARET T

144,116
14 1,859,881

2,003,997

4,707
401,972

406,679

Note
Kt

Non-current assets FRBEE

Other investments HmixE

Interest in subsidiaries RSB R Rz e

Current assets RENEE

Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 B8R 3 % b B 5K I8

Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEFEY

Current liabilities REBERE

Trade and other payables

B 5 M 3 & B A R 5R0R

1,463,918

(1,057,239)

946,758

21,254
925,504

Net current liabilities B BEEERE

TOTAL NET ASSETS EEFEARE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARKf#FE 28(a)
Share capital f&Zx

Reserves il

TOTAL EQUITY FESAAER

946,758

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 21 March 2023.

Zhang Yuping
Executive Director

220

Huang Yonghua
Executive Director
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2021

RMB’000
ARETT

287,857
1,505,517

1,793,374

4,442
441,083

445,525

1,212,089
(766,564)

1,026,810

21,616
1,005,294

1,026,810

R-B_=ZF=ZA-+-HEEFSHERR

RETIED
REF BEKE
HITEF BITEFE



34 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

As at 31 December 2022, the directors consider the

immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the

Group to be Best Growth International Limited, which is

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does

not produce financial statements available for public use.

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA

has issued a number of amendments, which are not yet effective

for the year ended 31 December 2022 and which have not been

adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.
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34 EERRRESR

EERAR R-ZE-_—F+=-RA=+—H &K%
EZzEEARRGRIESNFAREBERLHS
MR A ERBERER AR - ZEETERE
HARA LR 2 HEHRE -

35 BE-ZE-_—_H+=-A=+-—
LS EECSEHBERENR
FIEET - IBEA R RENT

oy B/
4

BERSUWBHRRTERY  FESFHMAED
BABORIERT - WEBIIRBE_T_—F+—
A=t—BLFERRER  MIARRZZEITER
RPHEA - ZERBHRE T EEASERR
ZIAR e

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

AT B ik 2 &

FItRHO SRt EARI AR

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
TRBERE 1 RE B BFHEEREFBAF2N (BFX)  BRE BRKENET —F_=F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

BB ERIESTE (BF]2) B2 1Aa1EZAIERT

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

1 January 2023
—ZE-=%—H—H
1 January 2023

BEGIERIE 129 (55TF) - BRAE—X ZEFHEER B EIEBNEL R ENET —Z-=%—A—H
Amendments to HK-int 5 (Revised), Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of 1 January 2024

Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause (HK Int 5 (Revised))

Bl — BEELR (KEET) (B5TA) - FEEE — ZFEELT (KEFT) Z5/0BH#E — EAANEHEEE —TZME—H—H
ERERENCTHENZ 7 (BF — BEFSH (FE5T)) mEET

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024

BEEITERIE 19 (B5TA) - BB RIETE A BEDBINEET —ET-mFE—-H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024

BB ERAIE 18 (1B5T4) — W ZEm B B & —T-ME—A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024

BB BHEERIE 165 (B514) - BHHE R EEFHBIEE R BRIEET —TmMFE—-H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BB B ERIE 109 REESFERIZ2685: (B5T4) - BRKEZ AR &1\ Alst A &R % 2 FH FE

EELEXTEMERT

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

AEE RN ERPZEFEESHN & ERMER
RELNEE - L5HBTERARFEH AT
EEHHRAMBRRELEATE
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STOCK INFORMATION RmEHR

Place of Listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of LR BEBARZARE A B ER
Hong Kong Limited B A - F SR

Stock Short Name: Hengdeli AR L8E : 3389

Stock Code: 3389 N E)#UE  www.hengdeligroup.com

Company Website:www.hengdeligroup.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS =

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman) R EE (BEFSEE)
Mr. Huang Yonghua EKERAE

Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan A E
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Shi Zhongyang SSRGS A
Independent Non-executive Directors B EHITESE

Mr. Cai Jianmin EEREE

Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William =B A

Mr. Liu Xueling e

Ms. Qian Weiging (appointed on 21 March 2023) BREEL L (2023FE3 21 HEERFE)
AUDIT COMMITTEE ERZEEERE

Mr. Cai Jianmin (Committee Chairman) BRERYAE (5 FE)
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William i) Sitan

Mr. Liu Xueling b s
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE SMEEERE

Mr. Liu Xueling (Committee Chairman) RETRLE (ZTE52F/F)
Mr. Cai Jianmin ZRREAE

Mr. Zhang Yuping SR H R A
NOMINATION COMMITTEE RBREZEESKE

Mr. Zhang Yuping (Committee Chairman) REEhd (ZE52FE)
Mr. Cai Jianmin EERE4E

Mr. Liu Xueling bt
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Mr. Ng Man Wai (CPA, FCCA)
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Cricket Square Hutchins Drive

P.O Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 301, 3/F, Lippo Sun Plaza
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As to PRC Law

Beijing Kangda Law Firm
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No.19 Jianguomenwai Street, Chaoyang District
Beijing, the PRC

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zaih<gs

NEIME
RN HE(CPAFCCA)

AR SR

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive

P.O Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
RREEREBTEEEME

BB BRI ER E2858
EANGESIE301E

1B 1 2k
BB NBRADEGER
BEIAE F6/E3806-09F

%= 4]

RIELES RIS ARA A
BESERD

BB

NEESLEEE

7 RR B 385%

TEESE A D

2FE231E

e
TR

AR AR 2R 75 AT
BERRELES S
HBRAESE

HR B AR

bR TR ERM S AT
R R ARG &=
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BIBR KE2301=E
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited BBPREBESZLARAT
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre BEREFERFRNBRE1835%
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong AMALA7I712E171655 4

BERDBFERE

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE HEHRETERNDBFERLE

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100,Cayman Islands

Grand Cayman,KY1-1100,Cayman Islands

INVESTORS INQUIRY

Ms. Gao Shi

Unit 3806-09, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2927 9607
Fax: (852) 2375 8010
Email: shi.gao@hengdeligroup.com

MEDIA INQUIRY

Ms. Gao Shi
Unit 3806-09, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2927 9607
Fax: (852) 2375 8010
Email: shi.gao@hengdeligroup.com

Ms. Kelly Fung
Unit 2301, 23rd Floor, The Centrium
60 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3150 6763

Fax: (852) 3150 6728
Email: kelly.fung@pordahavas.com
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